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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Shri Suresh Kumar, IAS- Retd.
Chairman and Nominee of JKSPDC Limited
DIN: 06440021
Shri Suresh Kumar, is a retired IAS officer (JK 1986) and has a distinguished academic background.
He has been awarded Silver Medal for his Contribution in an Outstanding Measure towards Creating
Atmosphere for Elections and Successful Conduct in the year 1996 & awarded Chief Ministers Gold

Medal for Honesty / Integrity and Meritorious Public Service in the year 2011.

Shri Suresh Kumar joined the Board of CVPPL on 22nd November, 2019.

Sh. H. Rajesh Prasad, IAS
Director-Nominee of JKSPDC Limited
DIN: 06516512

Shri H. Rajesh Prasad, IAS, is an Indian Administrative Services Officer of 1995 batch. Shri. Prasad is

a graduate in Commerce Stream and further completed Master of Business Administration from Indian
Institute of Management, Bangalore, M.P.M. from Pondicherry University & LL.B. Delhi from University
Delhi. He is presently Principal Secretary, PDD, GoJK.

Shri H. Rajesh Prasad joined the Board of CVPPL on 20th October, 2022.
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Sh. Santosh Dattatraya Vaidya, IAS
Director-Nominee of JKSPDC Limited

DIN: 05340193

Shri Santosh Dattatraya Vaidya, IAS, is an Indian Administrative Services Officer of 1998 batch.

Shri Vaidya, is presently Principal Secretary, to the GoJK,

additional charge of Chairman & Managing Director JKIDFC

Finance Department. He is also holding

Shri Santosh Dattatraya Vaidya joined the Board of CVPPL on 31% August, 2023.

B

Sh. Sanjay Kumar Singh
Director-Nominee of NHPC Limited
DIN: 10718481
Shri Sanjay Kumar Singh, was working in SJVN Ltd. as Chief General Manager. He has more than 32

years of vast & varied experience in Power & Infrastructure sector in respect of execution of mega and

prestigious projects in India & Bhutan. He holds degree in Bachelor of Engineering (Civil). In SJVN, he

has worked as Head of the Project of Sunni Dam HEP (Construction stage), Naitwar Mori HEP
(Construction stage), Luhri HEP stage Il (S&l stage), Jhakhol Sankri HEP (S&l stage). He has also
served as Chief Executive Officer (CEO) of STPL (A wholly owned subsidiary of SJVN Ltd.).

Shri Sanjay Kumar Singh, joined the Board of CVPPL on 4th September, 2024.
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Sh. Ramesh Mukhiya
Managing Director-Nominee of NHPC Limited
DIN: 10415607
Shri Ramesh Mukhiya is an alumni of Jadavpur University, Kolkata and completed his Graduation in

Civil Engineering in 1990. He started his career as Probationary Executive at Rangit Power Station,
Sikkim in 1991 and played an active role in the commissioning of Rangit Power Station in the year
2000. He was also instrumental in commissioning of Teesta-V Power Station in the year 2008, Teesta
Low Dam-Ill Power Station in the year 2013. Moreover, during his tenure at Teesta Low Dam-IV HE
Project, he was instrumental in getting all the Statutory Clearances of the project and start the
construction activities. Sh. Ramesh Mukhiya had been Head of Project for Teesta-IV Project (500MW)
and Pakal Dul HE Project (1000 MW) and also held additional charge of Regional Office, Banikhet as
Executive Director. As Project and Regional Head, he was instrumental in taking critical decisions

which have paved way for smooth functioning of Project as well as Power Stations.

Shri Ramesh Mukhiya has assumed the charge of Managing Director, CVPPL on 05th December 2023.

gl

Sh. Anuj Kapoor
Director-Nominee of NHPC Limited
DIN: 10137420

Shri Anuj Kapoor is an Associate Member of the Institute of Cost Accountants of India and also holds a
Bachelor's Degree in Commerce from the University of Delhi. Shri Kapoor has vast experience of more
than 35 years in NHPC Ltd. in the core areas of Finance with in-depth understanding and knowledge of
Financial, Contractual and Regulatory issues involved in construction as well operations of Hydro

Projects.

Shri Anuj Kapoor joined the Board of CVPPL on 23rd July, 2025.
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Smt. Madhusmita Pany
Director-Nominee of NHPC Limited
DIN: 09319007

Smt. Madhusmita Pany is Executive Director (Law) in NHPC Limited.

Smt. Madhusmita Pany joined the Board of CVPPL on 21st December, 2022.
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CHAIRMAN’'S SPEECH

“To be a world class clean
energy organization
with empathy and strong
commitment
to bring about inclusive and
sustainable Growth”

DEAR SHAREHOLDERS

A very warm welcome to each one of you. It gives me immense pleasure to greet you
all at the 14™ Annual General Meeting of CVPPL. On behalf of CVPPL Board, | want
to thank all of you for taking out time to join us today.

The Annual Report of the year ended 31 March 2025, along with the Board's Report
and Audited Financial Statement have been circulated to you. With your permission,

| shall take them as read.
| will take up some of the notable achievement of CVPPL during the year ending

March, 2025.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE OVERVIEW

The Company has not yet started its commercial operation from projects, which are still
under construction. Company has earned only ‘Other Income’ i.e. interest income on

short-term surplus funds invested in the form of Term Deposits with Banks.

The Revenue from Operations & Other Income for the year ending 31 March, 2025 is
Rs 10.89 Crores and in the year ending 31 March, 2024, it was Rs. 35.75 Crores.
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e HIGHLIGHTS OF THE YEAR

During the year under report, CVPPL achieved several milestones, some of them are as

under:

Pakal Dul HE Project:

1.

The second Tunnel Boring Machine (TBM) for the construction of the 7,350-meter
Head Race Tunnel-2 (HRT-2) of the Pakal Dul Project was launched in May 2024
and successfully completed the construction of Adit-2 in October 2024, marking a
major milestone and paving the way for the commencement of HRT-2 excavation.

The excavation of HRT was started w.e.f October'2024.

. In a major step towards the commissioning of the Pakal Dul Project, the Lowering of

stators, each weighing 270 MT, has been successfully completed for Unit-1 on
07.11.2024 and for Unit-2 on 30.11.2024.

. The critical activity of construction of Cut Off wall in cut off wall area of Dam site

of Pakal Dul HE Project has been started during the year and of curtain grouting in cut
off wall area has been completed during October'2024.

Kiru HE Project (624 MW)

1.

CVPPL successfully signed agreements for a Term Loan of Rs. 3,738.53 Cr, thereby
achieving financial closure for the project.

. During the year the E&M Works were started with lowering of Draft Tube Diffuser

in Unit#1 and erection of draft tube completed in Unit #1 on 14.02.2025 and erection
of draft tube segments completed in Unit #2 on 26.03.2025.

. Kiru HE Project also accomplished significant achievement in Power House works viz.

Concreting of columns upto EOT crane beam level in all 4 units achieved on
29.03.2025.

. Erection of steel liner in Inclined Pressure Shafts of Hydro Mechanical Works was

started on 19.12.2024.

Kwar HE Project (540 MW)

1.

During the year, the remaining work packages of the Kwar Project i,e Electro-

Mechanical and Hydro-Mechanical were successfully awarded.
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2. Completion of Dam Abutment Stripping (cum 2.5 Lakh cum) achieved on

September'24.

3. Dam Concreting from the deepest foundation level of S2 Block was started on
04.12.2024 before schedule. This important feat was inaugurated by Worthy
Chairman & Managing Director, NHPC through Video-Conferencing, in presence
of Director (Projects &Technical), NHPC and CVO, NHPC as well as senior officers
of CVPPL.

As per Clause 8 of Supplementary Promoters Agreement:

8.2 The GoJK shall get 12% free power generated from the Projects. An additional 1%
free power for local area development fund shall also be provided by the Company.
The fund shall be operated as per the guidelines issued in the Hydro Power Policy
2008. Further, out of balance 87% power, the GoJK would have the right to purchase
from the company in proportion to the share of JKSPDC in the equity of the company
at the price determined as per regulatory norms. After this, the balance power will be
sold by NHPC at the market price to the purchaser with the first right of refusal being

given to Jammu & Kashmir Power Development Department.

| would like to inform the details of Power Purchase Agreements (PPASs) signed in respect
of Pakal Dul, Kwar and Kiru HE Project and consent received in their behalf which are

as under:
Pakal Dul HE Project Kwar HE Project Kiru HE Project
(1000 MW) (540 MW) (624 MW)
PPA SIGNED | MW PPA SIGNED | MW PPA SIGNED | MW
WITH/ DATE OF WITH/ DATE OF WITH/ DATE OF
SIGNING SIGNING SIGNING
Chhattisgarh 250 Chhattisgarh 100 Chhattisgarh 250.00
State Power State Power State Power
Distribution Distribution Distribution
Company Ltd. Company Ltd. Company Ltd.
(20.06.2023) (20.06.2023) (15.07.2024)
Gujrat Urja Vikas | 443.70 | Gujrat Urja Vikas | 239.60 | Gujrat Urja Vikas | 542.88
Limited Limited Limited
(08.08.2023) (08.08.2023) (06.12.2023)
Uttar Pradesh | 542.88
Power
Corporation Ltd.
(29.07.2023)
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Jammu and | 350 Jammu and | 100 Jammu and | -
Kashmir  Power Kashmir  Power Kashmir  Power
Corporation Ltd. Corporation Ltd. Corporation Ltd.
13%  (12%Free | 130 13%  (12%Free | 70-2 13%  (12%Free | 81.12
power & 1% power & 1% power & 1%
LADF) LADF) LADF)
(14.10.2023) (14.10.2023) (12.09.2024)
Sub -Total (J&K) | 480 170.2 81.12
Grand Total 1173.70 509.8 1416.88

Note: The final Order for allocation of power shall be issued by MOP, GOI with respect
to above-mentioned HEPs in due course of time.

Further, Consent letter has been received from the following :

Pakal Dul HE Project

Kwar HE Project

Kiru HE Project

Power Corpn. Ltd

Power Corpn. Ltd

(1000 MW) (540 MW) (624 MW)

Consent MW Consent MW Consent MW

Received Received Received

Haryana Power | 250 Haryana Power | 200 Haryana Power | 624

Purchase Centre Purchase Centre Purchase Centre

Maharashtra 100 Maharashtra 54 - -

State Power State Power

Distribution Distribution

Company Ltd Company Ltd

Power Company | 444 Power Company | 240 Power Company | 543

of Karnataka Ltd. of Karnataka Ltd. of Karnataka Ltd.

- - - - Bihar State | 300
Power  Holding
Company Ltd.

- - - - GRIDCO Limited, | 100
Odisha

- - Punjab State | 100 Punjab State | 100
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- - - - BSES Yamuna | 50
Power Ltd., Delhi

- - BSES Rajdhani | 50 BSES Rajdhani | 100
Power Ltd., Delhi Power Ltd., Delhi

Andhra Pradesh | 88.8* Andhra Pradesh | 48* - -

Power Power

Coordination Coordination

Committee Committee

*As on date balance power available in PakalDul HEP is NIL and in Kwar HEP is 30.2
MW.

e CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

CVPPL is committed and strives to promote and maintain good standards of CSR and
Sustainability in all its business activities. The CSR activities are being carried out in

accordance with Schedule VII of Companies Act, details as provided in Board’s Report.

I, on behalf of Board of Directors, places on record its sincere gratitude for the valuable
guidance and support extended by Prime Minister Office, Ministry of Power, Gol, Ministry
of Environment & Forest and Climate Change, Gol, Govt. of Jammu and Kashmir,
Central Electricity Authority, Central Water Commission and the Promoters of CVPPL,
without which the Company would not have been able to carry out its responsibilities.
We acknowledge the participation and involvement of each one of them, solicit their

continued co-operation, and support in the future as well.

I, also deeply appreciate all the Employees working in CVPPL, for their immense

dedication, commitment and cooperation.

Thank You.

Sd/-
Place: Jammu Suresh Kumar, IAS-(Retd.)
Dated: 05.08.2025 CHAIRMAN

DIN-06440021
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

NOTICE is hereby given that the 14th Annual General Meeting of the members of
Chenab Valley Power Projects Limited will be held on Tuesday, the 30" day of
September, 2025 at 11:00 A.M. through Video Conference (*VC”)/ Other Audio Visual
Means (“OAVM”) to transact the following businesses. The venue of the meeting shall be
deemed to be CVPPL Registered Office, Chenab Jal Shakti Bhavan, Opposite Saraswati
Dham, Rail Head Complex, Jammu-180012-J&K.

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. To receive, consider and adopt the audited financial statements of the company for the
financial year ended on 31st March, 2025 together with the Board’s report, the report of

auditor’s thereon and comments of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India.

2. To appoint a Director in place of Shri H.Rajesh Prasad-IAS (DIN: 06516512), who retires
by rotation and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment for the term at the
pleasure of JKSPDC Limited/Govt. of J&K.

3. To appoint a Director in place of Smt. Madhusmita Pany (DIN: 09319007), who retires by
rotation and being eligible, offers herself for re-appointment for the term at the pleasure
of NHPC Limited.

4. To authorize Board of Directors of the company to fix the remuneration of the Statutory
Auditors for the financial year 2025-26 and if thought fit, to pass the following resolutions,

as Ordinary Resolution:

USHd FHATrE AT el ATFT 73T, FIETA 4T F WA, I §3 Precaaq, ST 180012, (¥ 09 FeAR e anfaween
Regd. Office: Chenab Jal Shakti Bhavan, Opposite Saras?é&%a , Rail Head Complex, Jammu-180012, (UT of Jammu & Kashmir)
dsarse/ WebsSi wwcvppindia.com
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‘“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 142 read with relevant
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof, for the time being
in force), the Board of Directors be and is hereby authorized to fix the remuneration of

Statutory Auditor for the financial year 2025-26.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby
authorized to do all acts and take all such steps as may be necessary, proper or

expedient to give effect to this resolution.”

By order of the Board of Directors

For Chenab Valley Power Projects Limited

Sd/-
(SUDHIR ANAND)

Company Secretary
Date: Jammu
Place: 08.09.2025

Notes:

(i) The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) has, vide its circular dated September 19,
2024, read together with circulars dated September 25, 2023, December 28, 2022, May
5, 2022, April 8, 2020, April 13, 2020, May 5, 2020, January 13, 2021, December 08,
2021 and December 14, 2021 (collectively referred to as “MCA Circulars”), permitted
convening the AGM through VC/OAVM, without physical presence of the members at a
common venue upto September 30, 2024. Hence, in compliance with the Circulars, the
AGM of the Company is being held through VC/OAVM.

(i) The instructions for joining the Annual General Meeting are as under:

a. The meeting will be held through Microsoft Teams/Zoom Application.

USHd FHATrE AT el ATFT 73T, FIETA 4T F WA, I §3 Precaaq, ST 180012, (¥ 09 FeAR e anfaween
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dsarse/ WebsSi ww~cvppindia.com
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b. Members can join the meeting either through Microsoft Teams/Zoom app or
through desktop by using the link sent along with the Notice of AGM on the
registered email id.

c. In case of android/ iphone connection, Participants will be required to download
and Install the appropriate application as given in the e-mail sent to them.
Application may be downloaded from Google Play Store/ App Store.

d. Further Members will be required to allow Camera and use Internet audio settings
as and when asked while setting up the meeting on Mobile App.

e. Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or
through Laptop connecting via Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss
due to Fluctuation in their respective network. It is therefore recommended to use
Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches.

f. The facility for joining the meeting will be kept open fifteen minutes before
scheduled time for AGM and will be closed at conclusion of the meeting.

g. For any assistance, members may write to Company Secretary at
cs@cvppindia.com or contact at +91-9419181543.

(i) A member entitled to attend and vote at the AGM is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend
and vote on his/ her behalf and the proxy need not be a member of the Company. Since
the AGM is being held in accordance with the Circulars through VC/ OAVM, the facility
for appointment of proxies by the members will not be available.

(iv) Members attending the AGM through VC/ OAVM shall be reckoned for the purpose of
quorum under Section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act).

(v) Since the AGM will be held through VC/ OAVM, the Route Map is not annexed in this
Notice.

(vi) In terms of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013, Shri H. Rajesh Prasad-IAS and
Smt. Madhusmita Pany, Directors, being eligible offers themselves for re-appointment.

The Board of Directors commends their re-appointment.

USHd FHATrE AT el ATFT 73T, FIETA 4T F WA, I §3 Precaaq, ST 180012, (¥ 09 FeAR e anfaween
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(vii) Brief details of directors seeking reappointment at the Annual General Meeting are

as under:
Name Shri H.Rajesh Prasad-IAS Smt. Madhusmita Pany
Date of Birth & Age 1st June, 1967 7 May, 1966
(58 years) (59 years)

Qualification

B.Com and Master of Business
Administration, Bangalore, M.P.M.
from Pondicherry University & LL.B.
Delhi from University Delhi.

B.A., LL.B., LL.M., MBA (HR)

Terms & Conditions of

appointment or
re-appointment along
with the details of

remuneration.

As decided by Appointing Authority
i.e. JKSPDC Limited/Govt. of J&K

As decided by Appointing Authority
i.e. NHPC Limited

attended and held during
the year 2024-25.

Date of first appointment 20/10/2022 21/12/2022
on Board.

Relationship with other NIL NIL
Directors, Manager &

KMP.

No. of Board Meetings 7/9 8/9

Directorship,
Membership/Chairmans
hip in Committees held
in other Companies

1. JKSPDC Limited
(Nominee Director / Promoter).

2. JPDC Limited
(Nominee Director / Promoter).

. RHPCL
(Nominee Director / Promoter).

«» As per MCA Data.

1. NHDC Limited
(Nominee Director).

% As per MCA Data.

Number of shares held
in the Company

01 (One) Equity Share as Nominee

of JKSPDC Limited

Nil

(viii) In compliance with the Circulars, Notice of the AGM along with the Annual Report 2024-

25 is to be sent through electronic mode to those Members whose e-mail addresses are

available with the Company.

USHd FHATrE AT el ATFT 73T, FIETA 4T F WA, I §3 Precaaq, ST 180012, (¥ 09 FeAR e anfaween
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(ix) Corporate Members are requested to send a scanned copy (PDF/JPEG format) of the
Board Resolution authorizing its representative to attend and to vote at the AGM,

pursuant to Section 113 of the Act. The said resolution/authorization shall be sent to the

Company Secretary by e-mail through registered e-mail address to cs@cvppindia.com.

(x) The voting will be done by show of hands at the first instance unless chairman decides
otherwise or any member demand for poll. In case the poll is decided by the chairman
or demanded, the poll will be conducted immediately and all members are requested to
send their assent or dissent on each business at cs@cvppindia.com through the email

ids on which they have received the notice of AGM.

(xi) The Register of Directors & Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) and their shareholding
maintained under Section 170 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Register of Contracts
and arrangements in which Directors are interested maintained under Section 189 of
the Companies Act, 2013 will be available electronically for inspection by the members
during the AGM. All documents referred to in the Notice will also be available for
electronic inspection without any fee by the members from the date of circulation of the
Notice up to the date of AGM. Members seeking to inspect documents can send an

e-mail to Company Secretary at cs@cvppindia.com mentioning their name, folio number

and Permanent Account Number (PAN).

(xii) Pursuant to Section 139 (5) of Companies Act, 2013 the statutory auditors of a
Government Company are appointed or re-appointed by the Comptroller and Auditor
General of India (C&AG). Further, their remuneration has to be fixed by the Company in
a General Meeting or in such manner as the Company in General Meeting may
determine in terms of Section 142(1) of the Companies Act, 2013. The members may
authorised the Board to fix an appropriate remuneration of Statutory Auditors to be

appointed by C&AG for financial year 2025-26, as may be deemed fit by the Board.

(xiii)  None of the Directors of the Company is in any way related to each other except in

their professional/ employment capacity.
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BOARD’S REPORT

Dear Members,

We are pleased to present the 14th Annual Report on the performance of CVPPL for the
financial year ended March 31, 2025. The report includes audited financial statements, the
Auditor's Report, and a review of financial statements by the Comptroller and Auditor
General of India (C&AG).

The year 2024-25 marked a period of significant progress for the company, particularly in
advancing the construction of key hydroelectric projects-PakalDul, Kiru, and Kwar and
further obtaining the approval from CEA w.r.t Memorandum of Changes for Kirthai-ll
Project. These projects witnessed substantial momentum, providing the much-needed
impetus toward achieving their timely completion. The company is steadily positioning
itself as a major force in the hydroelectric sector, not only within the Union Territory of
Jammu & Kashmir but across the country.

Key accomplishments achieved during 2024-25 are as follows:

» The second Tunnel Boring Machine (TBM) for the construction of the 7,350-meter Head
Race Tunnel-2 (HRT-2) of the PakalDul Project was launched in May 2024 and
successfully completed the construction of Adit-2 in October 2025, marking a major
milestone and paving the way for the commencement of HRT-2 excavation. Significant
progress was also achieved across other project fronts, including the lowering of 270 MT
Stators in Units 1 and 2, initiation of Steel Liner Erection in the Vertical Pressure Shatfts,
commencement of Cut-off Wall works at the Dam Site etc.

» CVPPL successfully signed agreements for a Term Loan of Rs. 3,738.53 Cr, thereby
achieving financial closure for the project. The year withessed significant progress across
all work fronts. Key milestones included the commencement of Electro-Mechanical
works with the lowering of the draft tube, initiation of steel liner erection in the inclined
pressure shafts, and completion of concreting of columns up to the EOT crane beam level
for Unit-4.

» During the year, the remaining work packages of the Kwar Project i,e Electro-Mechanical
and Hydro-Mechanical were successfully awarded. Following the reconstruction of the
coffer dam, dam concreting commenced ahead of schedule on 04.12.2024. All ongoing
project activities are progressing in line with the planned schedule. Given the current pace
of execution, the project is anticipated to be completed ahead of the stipulated timeline.
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» During 2024-25, the company signed Power Purchase Agreement with Jammu and
Kashmir Power Corporation Limited (JKPCL), Uttar Pradesh Power Corporation Limited
(UPPCL), Chhattisgarh State Power Distribution Company Ltd and Damodar Valley
Corporation, Kolkata for off-take of power from PakalDul and Kiru HE Projects.

1. FINANCIAL RESULTS:

The Company’s financial performance for the year ended 31 March 2025 is summarized
below:

(Rs. in Lacs)

Particulars 2024-25 2023-24
Revenue from Operations & Other Income 1,089.13 3,575.40
Profit before Tax (1,002.90) 1,971.10
Tax Expenses 269.72 898.85
Profit for the vyear before net movements in (1,272.62) 1,072.25
Regulatory Deferral Account Balances

Regulatory Deferral Account Balances (net of Tax) 24.51 (4.06)
Profit for the Year (1,248.11) 1,068.19
Other Comprehensive Income 00 00
Total Comprehensive Income (1,248.11) 1,068.19
Less Appropriations 00 00
Closing Balance of Retained Earnings carried (1,248.11) 1,068.19
forward to Reserve & Surplus

2. STATE OF AFFAIRS:
The Company has not yet started its commercial operation from projects which are still under
construction and Revenue from Operations is therefore Nil. Company has earned only Other
Income i.e. interest income on short-term surplus funds invested in the form of Term Deposits

with Banks.

3. STATUS OF PROJECTS:
I. PAKAL DUL HE PROJECT (1000 MW):

Brief Introduction:
The Pakal Dul HE Project (1000MW) is under construction on river Marusudar, a tributary of
river Chenab in District Kishtwar of UT of J&K. The Project is a storage scheme and shall

utilize the permissible storage of 0.1 MAF under Indus Water Treaty. The project envisages
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construction of a 167m high Concrete Face Rock fill Dam, 2 nos. of Head Race Tunnel of

7.20 mtr. dia and 9.6 km length each, an underground Power House with 4 units of 250 MW

Vertical Francis Turbine each and 4 nos., 5.5 m dia. horseshoe shape, each 125 m long Tail

Race Tunnel. The annual energy generation will be 3230 MU.

Hon’ble Prime Minister of India laid the Foundation stone of the project on 19th May 2018.
PROJECT LAYOUT

U/s Coffer
Dam ——
HRT’s i Surge
CFRD i\x ./ shaft
L. ‘ — i '.-7_7,;"
il \\\ PH
\& L\ cavern
m \ Pressure cavern
Diversion - Shaft ’.,
Tunnel " =
/
D/s"goffer B - Miv
Dam D Cavern

PROJECT SCHEME

Status of the project:

. Statutory Clearances

All Statutory clearances in respect of the project have been obtained from various
departments of the Central/State Governments namely- Techno Economic Appraisal (TEA)
by CEA, Environmental Clearance by MOEF, Forest Clearance by GoJK, Wildlife Clearance
by GoJK, Indus Water Treaty Clearance by MoWR etc.

. CCEA Approval

Investment Approval of Cabinet Committee on Economic Affairs (CCEA), Govt. of India was
accorded on 28.10.2014 at a sanctioned cost of Rs. 8112.12 Cr at March 2013 price level.

e Exemptions Accorded by GoJK

- 12% Free Power for a period of 10 years from COD

- Water Usage Charges: For a period of 10 years from COD
- Exemption of WCT, Entry tax and Toll Tax
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Assistance Extended by Gol
Subordinate debt of Rs.2500 Cr at 1% interest rate.

Equity contribution of Rs 1192 Crs to be infused by JKSPDC in the project to be released
as grant to CVPPL.

Rehabilitation and Resettlement (R&R) plan

The Govt. of J&K has approved the Rehabilitation and Resettlement plan of the project vide

order dated 22.02.2017. Enhancement of compensation has been further approved by GoJK

vide order dated 07.03.2019. Implementation of the plan by District Administration is in

progress.

iv. PROGRESS OF MAJOR WORK PACKAGES AS ON 315TMARCH 2025

The project being executed in five major packages viz. Power House Package, Dam

Package, E&M Package, HM Package and HRT-TBM Package. The physical progress

achieved as on 31.03.2025 is as below:

Sl. |Package Agency Awarded on | Physical Progress (%)
1 PH Package |M/s Afcons - JAL JV 21.02.2018 64%

2 Dam Package |M/s Jai Prakash Associates Ltd| 21.06.2018 52%

3 HM Package [M/s PES Ltd 26.08.2019 60%

4 E&M Package |M/s Voith Hydro Ltd 02.01.2019 79%

S HRT-TBM M/s L&T Ltd 03.07.2020 48%
STATUS OF MAJOR WORKS (as on 31.03.2025):

A. POWER HOUSE PACKAGE

Sl. | Activity Photograph

1. | Power House

a) Excavation (Cum):

Total Qty : 145693

Executed : 145693 (100%)
Completed.

b) Power House Machine

Hall Concreting (Cum):
Total Qty : 54000
Executed : 40087 (74%)
Balance : 13913

i =

ViE| | > S\
Mt\\ N
l:l l I EETR,
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2. | Pressure Shaft

a) Vertical Pressure Shaft (1
to 4):

Excavation (m)

Total Qty 1164

Executed 11123 (97%)

Balance 141

3. | Surge Shaft

a) SurgeShaft-2
Slashing (m)

Total Qty : 200
Executed :117.7 (59%)
Balance :82.3

b) Upper Surge Gallery-1
(260m) Completed

c) Upper Surge Gallery-2
(257m) Completed

Surge Shaft-2
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4. | Valve House Excavation
(17295 Cum): Completed

Concreting of Columns and
Beams in progress.

B. DAM PACKAGE
Sl.| Activity

1. | CFRD Rock Filling (Cum)

Photograph

Total 1 7546000

Qty

Executed : 4462938 (59%)
Balance : 3083062
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Power Intake Structure

a) Surface Excavation (Cum):

Total Qty : 447500
Executed : 366196(82%)
Balance :81304

b) Excavation of Gate Shaft
for HRTs (m)

Total Qty 467
Executed
Balance

Bulkhead Gate Saft Platform

s
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3. | Excavation of Gate Shaft for
Tunnel Spillway-1(m)

Total Qty .67
Executed . 20.5 (31%)
Balance : 46.5

Excavation of Gate Shaft for
tunnel Spillway-2(m)

Total Qty . 67
Executed : 35 (52%)
Balance : 32
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4. | Surface Spillway

Surface Excavation (Cum)
Total Qty : 778000
Executed : 762807 (98%)
Balance : 15193

5. | Tunnel Spillway Outlet

Surface Excavation (Cum):
Total Qty : 420000
Executed : 400365(95%)
Balance : 19635
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6. | Excavation of HRT'S (by DBM)

a) Excavation (m):
Total Qty : 4117
Executed : 4025.8(98%)
Balance : 91.2

b) Concrete lining (m):
Total Qty : 4117
Executed : 2585 (63%)
Balance : 1532

Concrete Lining of HRT

C. HRT-TBM PACKAGE
SI. | Activity Photograph

1. | Head Race Tunnels

a) HRT-1 (m)

Total Qty : 7350
Executed : 3172.73(43%)
Balance : 4117.2

a) HRT-2 (m)

Total Qty : 7350
Executed : 2809 (38%)
Balance : 4541
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2. | Segment Casted (Nos.)

Total Qty : 58800

Executed : 29811(51%)

Balance 28989

7 & A A
Casting Yard
D. HM Works:
Sr.]Activity Unit | Total | Cumulative |Balance|% Progress
Qty. progress Qty.

1. [Steel lining in Penstock and Pressure| M 2177 994 1183 46%
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Vertical Pressure Shaft (2B) liner work Horizontal Pressure Shaft Liner Erection

E. E&M Works:

i. Work awarded to M/s Voith Hydro Ltd. on 02.01.2019 and scheduled activities are in
progress.
e Erection:

Erection of PH 1st and 2nd EOT Crane completed.
Erection and commissioning of MIV EoT Crane completed.
Erection of Draft Tube Unit#1, 2, 3 and 4 completed.
Erection of Spiral Casing ofUnit#1, 2, 3 and 4 completed.
All of 13 nos. GSU Transformers placed at their designated slots in the Transformer
Cavern.
Stator Lowered in Unit # 1 and 2 on 07.11.2024 and 30.11.2024 respectively.
Rotor buildup work of Unit # 1 in progress.
Stator buildup of Unit # 3 and 4 in progress.

Erection of Turbine and Generator component of Unit # 1 and 2 is in progress.
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Runner (Unit-1)
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‘ Pl —

Rotor 1: Rim Build-up for Unit-1
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II. KIRU HE PROJECT (624 MW):

Brief Introduction:

The project, a run-of-river scheme with pondage is located in District Kishtwar, J&K. The
Kiru HE Project is under construction on river Chenab and envisages construction of 135 m
high concrete gravity dam near village Kiru/Patharnakki,9 m dia. and 666m long horse
shoe shaped diversion tunnel, 4nos. 5.5m dia, 304m long underground circular steel lined
pressure shafts/penstocks, 4 nos., 7m dia horse shoe shaped concrete lined TRT with
lengths from 165m to 190mand an underground Power House of cavern size 182 m x 23.6
m x 51.2 m with 4 units of 156 MW each. The annual energy generation will be 2272 MU.

Hon'ble Prime Minister of India has laid foundation stone of the project on 3" Feb 2019.

PROJECT LAYOUT

X
Power House Transformer cavern
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Status of the project:
i) Statutory Clearances

All Statutory clearances in respect of the project have been obtained from various
departments of the Central/State Governments namely Techno- Economic Appraisal
(TEA) by CEA, Environmental Clearance by MOEF, Forest Clearance by GoJK, Indus
Water Treaty Clearance by MoWR etc.

ii) CCEA Approval

MoP, Gol vide letter dated 08.03.2019 has conveyed investment approval for construction
of the project at a cost of Rs 4287.59 Crs at July 2018 PL.

e Exemptions Accorded by GoJK
- Water Usage Charges: For a period of 10 years from COD
- Exemption of 9% SGST: Consent given by GoJK
- Exemption of toll tax: Accorded by GoJK vide SRO 402 dated 14.09.2018.
e Assistance Accorded by Gol.
- Equity of GoJK as Grant from Gol. Equity contribution of JKPDC amounting to
Rs 630.50 Crs has been released to CVPPL.

i) Rehabilitation and Resettlement (R&R) plan
The J&K govt. has approved the Rehabilitation and Resettlement plan of the project vide
order dated 07.03.2019.
Implementation of the plan by District Administration is in progress.

iv) Progress of Major Works as on 31°" March’ 2025
The project being executed in three major packages viz. Civil Work Package, E&M
Package, and HM Package. Details of the same is as below.

Sl. Package Agency Awarded on |Physical Progress (%)
1 Civil Works [ M/s Patel Engineering Ltd. | 24.02.2020 60.52
2 HM Works M/s PES Ltd. 24.02.2020 36.75
3 E&M Works M/s Andritz Ltd. 24.02.2020 74.58
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A.STATUS OF MAJOR CIVIL WORKS:
SI. | Activity Photograph
1. | Dam Works

a. Concreting(Cum)
Total Qty : 1200000

Executed 829341 (69%)
Balance : 370659

Galaxy 524'Ultra
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2. | Power Intake

a.Concreting (Cum)
Total Qty : 140000
Executed : 35460 (25%)
Balance : 104540

3. | Power House Cavern

a. Concreting (Cum)
Total Qty : 49000
Executed : 21251 (43%)
Balance : 104540
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4. | Transformer Hall Cavern

a. Concreting (Cum)
Total Qty : 49000
Executed : 21251 (43%)
Balance : 104540

5 | Tail Race Tunnel

TRT#1: Concreting  of
outfall structure upto EL
1393.5m completed.

TRT #2: Concreting of outfall
structure upto EL 1390m
completed.




CVPPL- Annual Report 2024-25

CHENAB VALLEY POWER PROJECTS LIMITED
Registered Office: Chenab Jal Shakti Bhavan, Opp. Saraswati Dham,
Rail Head Complex, Jammu-180012 (J&K)

Tel. No: 0191-2479531,E-mail Id: cs@cvppindia.com

CIN: U40105JK2011G0I003321

Chenab Valley
Power Projects Ltd

B. Hydro mechanical Package (Lot-Il)
e LOAIssued to M/s PES Engineers Limited on 24.02.2020.
o Erection of Pressure Shaft Steel Liner in progress
o Erection of Steel liners in Lower Horizontal Pressure Shaft #1 #2 & # 3 completed.
e 325 m of erection of Steel Liners in PS#1, PS#2, PS#3 and PS#4 achieved.

7 e G G
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—

Erection of Steel Liners — Inclined PS#3

Page 36



CVPPL- Annual Report 2024-25

CHENAB VALLEY POWER PROJECTS LIMITED
Registered Office: Chenab Jal Shakti Bhavan, Opp. Saraswati Dham,
Rail Head Complex, Jammu-180012 (J&K)

Tel. No: 0191-2479531,E-mail Id: cs@cvppindia.com
CIN: U40105JK2011G0I1003321

CVPP’

Chenab Valley

Power Projects Ltd

Erection of Steel Liners —Horizontal PS#4

C. Electro Mechanical Package (Lot IlI)
- Work awarded on 24.02.2020.

Erection

- Earthing of Service bay, Bus Duct unit 1, 2, 3 & 4 and Power House Unit 1, 2, 3 and 4
has been completed.

- Erection of Draft Tube and Diffuser in Unit-1 is completed.

- Erection of Draft Tube and Diffuser in Unit-2 is completed

- Erection of Draft Tube Diffuser in Unit-3 is in progress.

- Erection of 240T EOT crane in Power House is completed
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Unit # 2: Draft Tube Segments

“Vivo Y200 Profe : : TR
'Apr1.'2025,12‘_y' /
Unit # 3: Diffuser Segments
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KWAR HE PROJECT (540 MW):
Brief Introduction

The project is located in district Kishtwar of J&K State on Chenab river. The Kwar HE
Project (540 MW) envisages construction of 109 m high concrete gravity Dam, 9.5 m dia.
and 685 m long horse shoe shaped diversion tunnel, 4nos. 5.65 m dia underground steel
lined penstocks of length 108 to 182 m, an underground Power House with 4 units of 135
MW each and 2 nos., 9.5m dia horse shoe shaped, concrete line TRT’s of lengths 2786 m
and 2963m. The annual generation will be 1975 MU.

Hon’ble Prime Minister of India has laid foundation stone of the project on 24™ April 2022.

PROJECT LAYOUT

DT Inlet
EL 1293

Spillway Blocks

Dam Top Level - EL 1387
Oulet For envirnoment release

Pensl toe
Penstock 2

DT OUTLET
EL 1285

AVRAN

TUN
EL 12425 CABLE

Dam bottom(Deepest Foundation level)1278

POWER HOUSE CAVERN

ADIT TO PS BOTTOM
TRANSFORMER CAVERN _m‘ \ ‘
ADIT-CUM- -SURGE
GALLERY FOR TRT-2

1310 ESS TUNNEL TO
Draft Tube Gate Shaft EL ACC RN
ADIT to Control Room TRANSF'ORMER CAVE!

Tail Race Tunnel 1

PLUNGE POOLR

EL 1310

Tail Race Tunnel 2

ADIT-CUM-SURGE
GALLERY FOR TRT-1

The status of the project is as follows:

Statutory Clearances

Statutory clearances in respect of the project have been obtained from various
departments of the Central/State Governments namely Techno- Economic Appraisal
(TEA) by CEA, Environmental Clearance by MOEF, Forest Clearance by GoJK etc.
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ii) CCEA Approval

MoP, Gol vide letter dated 10.05.2022 has conveyed investment approval for construction
of the project at a cost of Rs. 4526.12 Crore at September’2020 PL.

e Assistance accorded by GoJK:
Water Usage Charges : Exempted for a period of 10 years from COD
12% Free Power : The exemption of free power will be 10% in the first year

and will decrease by 2% every year upto 5th year after
COD of the project. The share of free power will restore to
12% from 6th year onwards.

Exemption of 9% SGST: To be Reimbursed

Exemption of toll tax : Accorded by GoJK vide SRO 402 dated 14.09.2018

e Assistance accorded by Gol
Equity share for the Project: Equity of Rs. 655.08 Crores from JKSPDC as Grant from
Gol.
Gol would arrange loan (NSSF loan) o8 3119.42 Cr @ 7.3% p.a. to CVPPL, with
loan tenure of seven years after commissioning of the project and extendable

depending upon the requirement.

iii) Rehabilitation and Resettlement (R&R) plan

GoJK has approved the R&R plan of the project with approved cost of Rs. 35.83 Cr.
vide order dated 03.08.2018.

The implementation of the R&R Plan by District Administration s under progress.

iv) Progress of Major Works as on 31°'March’2025

The project is to be executed in following three packages:

Sl. Package Agency Awarded on
1 Civil Works M/s Patel Engineering Ltd. 11.05.2022
2 HM Works M/s Om Metal Infra Ltd. 25.10.2024
3 E&M Works M/s Power Machine India Ltd. 24.02.2020
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Excavation
(61000 Cum) completed
on 30.11.2024

Dam Concreting

Component Wise Progress of Civil works as on 31.03.2025
SI. | Activity Photograph
1. | Dam Works:
a)Stripping of Dam
abutments (269000Cum)
completed on 03.01.2025
b)Dam  Pit

Concreting (Cum)
Total Qty : 750000

Executed : 77873 (17%)
Balance : 672127
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Power House Excavation
(Cum)

Excavation (Cum)

Total Qty 141000
Executed : 81803 (58%)
Balance 59197

Transformer Cavern
Excavation upto EL
1309.00 (Cum)

Total Qty 62000
Executed : 54470 (88%)
Balance 7530
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5. | Tail Race Tunnel:

Adit to TRT (536 m)
excavation completed on
07.10.2024

Adit to TRT

6. | Tail Race Tunnel (TRT):

TRT-1 (m)

Total Qty : 2786
Executed : 557.5 (20%)
Balance : 2228.5
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7. | Tail Race Tunnel (TRT):

TRT-2 (m)

Total Qty : 2963
Executed : 428.2 (14%)
Balance : 2534.8

8. | Surge Gallery of TRT

Adit Cum Surge Gallery for
TRT-1 (766 m) excavation
completed

Adit Cum Surge Galley for
TRT-2 excavation (m)

Total Qty : 776
Executed : 300.1 (39%)
Balance : 475.9
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9. Pressure Shaft-3
excavation (m)

Total Qty : 124
Executed : 51.9 (42%)
Balance : 72.1

10. | Pressure Shaft- 4
excavation (m)

Total Qty : 111
Executed : 68 (61%)
Balance : 43
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IV. KIRTHAI-Il HE PROJECT (820 MW)

i) Brief Introduction:
Kirthai-ll is a run-of- river project located in Kishtwar district, J&K at about 25Kms
upstream of Kiru H.E project on river Chenab .The project would provide an annual
generation of 3329.52 MU in a 90% dependable year. MOU for implementation of Kirthai-I
HEP (930 MW) through CVPPL has been signed between JKSPDC and NHPC on
03.01.2021.

ii) Status of Clearances:
STATUS OF CLEARANCES:

1. | TEA by CEA o CEA vide letter dt. 27.12.2021 has transferred the TEA in
favor of CVPPL.

e Validity of appraisal of Kirthai Il HEP for has been
extended by CEA vide letter dated 20.11.2024 upto

13.06.2026.
2 | Approval of e The Survey and Investigation work is completed.
Memorandum of e CVPPL submitted MOC (Memorandum of Changes) on
Changes 08.05.2024 with installed capacity of 820 MW as per

additional survey and investigation.

e Conditional clearance of MOC has been received from all
appraising group except GSI.

e Acceptance of Memorandum of Change awaited from
GSI/CEA.

e Cost estimate submitted to CEA on dated 23.05.2025 for
approval.

e CEA has raised few observations on the submitted cost
estimate and same is being replied by CVPPL.

3 | Forest Clearance e Application for FC-I submitted to Parivesh Portal on
19.10.2022.

e The compliance of PSC observations has been uploaded
to Parivesh Portal on 21.12.24.
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e The PSC meeting has been held on 30.12.24 and
proposal accepted by PSC vide MoM dt. 02.01.25.

e The Part Il of forest proposal has been filled up at
Parivesh by DFO, Kishtwar on 29.04.25.

e Nodal Officer (FCA), Jammu inspected the project area
on 30.05.2025.

e PSC-Il meeting held on 21.06.25 under the chairmanship
of Nodal Officer (FAC), Jammu.

e Recommendation of PSC-Il sent to nodal officer on
28.06.2025 which was forwarded to DFO Kishtwar on
30.06.2025.

e DFO Kishtwar has replied the same on 03.07.2025 and

sent the same to nodal officer.

4 | Environmental e EAC recommended for grant of Environment clearance

Clearance (EC) on 15.04.2021.

e MOEF&CC vide letter dated 24.05.2021 intimated that
EC will not be issued to PP till Stage-I FC is granted.
CAT plan has been approved.

e NOC issued by JKSPDC for issue of EC by MOEF&CC
in the name of CVPPL on 29.11.2021.

e CCF & NO (FCA) vide letter dt 23.01.25, conveyed the
approval of PCCF &HoFF for CAT plan of Project with
some terms & conditions.

e Updation of three season base line data for EC is in

progress.

i) Status of Land Acquisition:
1. Project vide letter dt 23.11.23 requested DC, Kishtwar for identification of Pvt.& gowvt.
land to be acquired for Kirthai Il HEP
2. Indent in prescribed format placed to DC, Kishtwar vide letter dt06.06.2024, for
acquisition of 12.61 ha of Private & 60.89 ha of Govt. Land required for Kirthai-Il HE
Project.
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3. The revenue document has been prepared for all Private & Govt. land and submitted
to Tehsil office for further process.
4. The revenue document prepared for land acquisition is under scrutiny at Tehsildar

Office of Revenue Department for further processing. The same is under process.

iv) Status of Tendering:
Preparation of Bid document of the project is under progress. The Project shall be
implemented in 03 Packages as under:

() Lot-1: Civil Works under Item Rate Contract.
(i)  Lot-2: HM Works under Single EPC Package.
(i) Lot-3: E&M Works under Single EPC Package.

4. DIVIDEND:

The Company has been assigned four projects for construction, maintenance and operation,
namely PakalDul (1000MW), Kiru (624MW), Kwar (540MW) and Kirthai Stage Il HEP
(930MW). Out of above, PakalDul, Kiru and Kwar H.E Projects are in active construction
phase and Kirthai Stage Il H.E. Project is under the process of clearance. As no project is in
operation and there is only interest income on short-term surplus funds invested in the form
of Term Deposits with Banks, therefore, Your Directors have decided not to declare any

dividend during the financial year 2024-25.

5. CAPITAL STRUCTURE AND NET WORTH:
The company’s paid up share capital as on 31st March, 2025 is Rs. 5,63,001.13 Lacs. The
Paid up Share Capital of the Company has increased from Rs. 4,45,034.13 Lacs on 31st
March, 2024 to Rs 5,63,001.13 Lacs as on 31st March, 2025. The Net worth as on 31st
March 2025 and 31st March 2024 is Rs 5,70,736.48 Lacs and Rs. 4,76,933.60 Lacs

respectively.

6. TRANSFER OF SHARES:

There was transfer of shares during the financial year 2024-25. The details of the share

transfers are as.
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Sl. | Name of No. of Shares | Value of the | Name of the | Date of
Transferor Transferred Share Transferee Transfer
(Equity)
1. | Sh. Raj Kumar 01 Rs. 10/- Sh. Rajneesh 09.09.2024
Chaudhary Agarwal
2. | Sh. Uday Shankar 01 Rs. 10/- Sh. Narendra Kumar | 29.01.2025
Sahi

7. DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARY, JOINT VENTURE OR ASSOCIATE COMPANIES:

The Company does not have any Subsidiary, Joint Venture or Associate Company.

8. BOARD OF DIRECTORS:

The Board of the Company was duly constituted in accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Act 2013.

As on date of this report, the Board of Directors consists of following members:

Sl. Name Designation DIN Date of
appointment
1 Sh. Suresh Kumar, IAS (Retd.) | Nominee Director & | 06440021 | 22.11.2019
Chairman

2 Sh. H. Rajesh Prasad, IAS Nominee Director 06516512 | 20.10.2022

3 Sh. Santosh D. Vaidya, IAS Nominee Director 05340193 | 31.08.2023

4 Sh. R.P. Goyal Nominee Director 08645380 | 01.10.2020

5 Sh. Sanjay Kumar Singh Nominee Director 10718481 | 04.09.2024

6 Sh. Ramesh Mukhiya Managing Director 10415607 | 05.12.2023

7 Smt. Madhusmita Pany Nominee Director 09319007 | 21.12.2022

e Sh. Vijay Kumar Sinha, ceased to be director due to withdrawal of nomination by NHPC on
31.07.2024.

e Sh. Ram Swaroop, ceased to be director due to withdrawal of nomination by NHPC on
04.09.2024.
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9. MEETINGS OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS:

During the year, the Directors of the Company met on the following dates:

Number & Date Place Board No. of Directors Present
of Meeting of Strength In Through Name of Board Members % of
Meeting Person Video Attendance
Conferencing of Board
Meeting
81BoD CO. 7 2 4 Suresh Kumar-IAS (Retd.), 85.71
Meeting Jammu H. Rajesh Prasad-IAS,
May 07, 2024 R.P. Goyal, Vijay Kumar Sinha,
Ramesh Mukhiya &
Madhusmita Pany.
82BoD CO. 7 2 4 Suresh Kumar-IAS (Retd.), 85.71
Meeting Jammu H. Rajesh Prasad-IAS,
June 21, 2024 R.P. Goyal, Vijay Kumar Sinha,
Ramesh Mukhiya &
Madhusmita Pany.
83“BoD CO. 7 2 3 Suresh Kumar-IAS (Retd.), 71.42
Meeting Jammu H. Rajesh Prasad-IAS,
July 31, 2024 R.P. Goyal, Vijay Kumar Sinha,
Ramesh Mukhiya &
Madhusmita Pany.
84™BoD CVPPL 7 5 1 Suresh Kumar-IAS (Retd.), 85.71
Meeting Camp H. Rajesh Prasad—IAS,
September Office, Santosh D. Vaidya-IAS,
09, 2024 Faridabad R.P. Goyal, Sanjay Kumar
Singh, Ramesh Mukhiya &
Madhusmita Pany.
85"BoD CO. 7 2 4 Suresh Kumar-IAS (Retd.), 85.71
Meeting Jammu H. Rajesh Prasad—IAS,
October 08, Santosh D. Vaidya-IAS,
2024 R.P. Goyal, Sanjay Kumar
Singh , Ramesh Mukhiya &
Madhusmita Pany.
86"BoD CO. 7 3 4 Suresh Kumar-IAS (Retd.), 100
Meeting Jammu H.Rajesh Prasad-IAS,
October 25, Santosh D. Vaidya-IAS,
2024 R.P. Goyal, Sanjay Kumar
Singh , Ramesh Mukhiya &
Madhusmita Pany.
87"BoD CoO. 7 2 3 Suresh Kumar-IAS (Retd.), 71.42
Meeting Jammu H.Rajesh Prasad-IAS, R.P.
January 07, Goyal, Sanjay Kumar Singh,
2025 Ramesh Mukhiya.
88™BoD CO. 7 1 4 Suresh Kumar-IAS (Retd.), R.P. 71.42
Meeting Jammu Goyal, Sanjay Kumar Singh,
January 29, Ramesh Mukhiya &
2025 Madhusmita Pany.
89"BoD CO. 7 0 5 Suresh Kumar-IAS (Retd.), R.P. 71.42
Meeting Jammu Goyal, Sanjay Kumar Singh,
March 11, Ramesh Mukhiya &
2025 Madhusmita Pany.
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10. TRANSFER TO GENERAL RESERVE:

The Company has not transferred any amount to General Reserve during the year 2024-25.

11. STATUTORY AUDITORS:
The Statutory Auditors of the Company are appointed by the Comptroller and Auditor
General of India (C&AG). During the F.Y. 2024-25, Statutory Audit of Company has been

undertaken by M/s VAK & Associates, Chartered Accountants, Jammu.

12. SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT:
Secretarial Audit Report for FY 2024-25 in prescribed format as given by M/s Ramit Mam&
Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries is enclosed at Annexure | to the Board’'s
Report, which is self-explanatory.

13. MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS:
There are no material changes affecting the financial position of the Company which have
occurred between the end of the financial year of the Company to which the financial

position relates and the date of this report.

14. PUBLIC DEPOSITS:
The Company has not accepted any public deposit from the public / members within the
meaning of Section 73 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the Companies (Acceptance
of Deposit) Rules, 2014 made there-under and, as such, no amount of principal or interest

was outstanding on the date of the Balance Sheet and on the date of this Report.

15. DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:

In line with requirement of Section 134(3)(c) read with Section 134(5) of the Companies Act,

2013 with respect to the Directors’ Responsibility Statement, it is confirmed that:

a) In the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been

followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures.

b) The Directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and
made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the company at the end of the financial year and of the
profit and loss of the company for that period.
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c) The Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2013 for
safeguarding the assets of the company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other
irregularity has been taken.

d) The Directors had prepared the annual accounts ongoing concern basis.

e) The Directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all

applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.
16. SECRETARIAL STANDARDS:

Applicable Secretarial Standards, i.e SS-1 and SS-2, relating to ‘Meetings of the Board of
Directors’ and * General Meetings’, respectively, have been duly followed by the Company.

17. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS BY THE COMPANY:

The Company has not given any loan nor guarantee or made any investments or acquired
any securities during the financial year 2024-25, which are covered under section 186 of the
Companies Act, 2013.

18. PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES IF
ANY:
During the financial year 2024-25, the Company had not entered into any contract or
arrangement with related parties, which could be considered material. The Company’s
related party transactions are only with one of the JV partner (NHPC Limited) for receiving
the consultancy & other services. All the contracts/ transactions/ entered into with related
party was on arm’s length basis, in the ordinary course of business and in the Company’s
interest.
There are transactions that are required to be reported in accordance with the section
134(3)(h) of the Companies Act, 2013 in Form AOC-2 which is annexed as Annexure Il.

19. COMMENTS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS ON QUALIFICATIONS, RESERVATIONS
MADE BY THE STATUTORY AUDITORS, IF ANY ALONG WITH THE COMMENTS OF
C&AG:

The Statutory Auditors has not made any qualifications or reservation in their Independent
Auditors Report for FY 2024-25. Comments of Comptroller and Auditor General of India on
financial statement for financial year 2024-25 pursuant to section 143(6) (b) of the

Companies Act, 2013 along with management replies thereon are attached Annexure lll.
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20. STRENGTHING IN RISK MANAGEMENT STRUCTURE:
The Company is aware of the fact that the development of Hydroelectric Projects is

associated with various uncertainties like geotechnical surprises, hydrological uncertainties,
seismic risks, environmental issues, unforeseen contractual litigations, remoteness of
project location, long gestation period, regulatory risks, etc., which could lead to

unanticipated increase in project cost, time over-run, etc.

With the start of construction of 1000 MW PakalDul H.E Project and commencement of
construction activities, our company is formulating an appropriate risk management policy
identifying the risk exposures of the Company including steps required for managing and
mitigating the risks for implementation.

However, the Company has evolved and implemented Fraud Prevention and Detection
policy.

The risks associated with Hydro Projects being undertaken by the Company are broadly
classified into the following categories:

(a) Strategic Risk:

The HoPs of the projects are responsible for timely action to manage the risk, which may

have detrimental effect on the business of the Company.

(b) Einancial Risk:

No financial risks, which may have effect on the balance sheet, have been identified so far.

(c) Operational Risk:

Mitigation measures have been taken by the HoPs of the project at Kishtwar wherever

required for the operational risk identified during the year.

21. VIGILANCE ACTIVITIES:

The objective of the vigilance function is to ensure that the highest level of integrity is
maintained throughout the company. The main function of the vigilance department is to be
vigilant and watchful and to keep the system awake against corruption through strong
vigilance administration. Vigilance administration comprises of preventive and punitive
anticorruption measures. It includes detecting irregularities, analyzing and finding out

reasons for such irregularities and making effective systematic improvements to curb them.
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It also entails identifying the public servants responsible for misconduct and taking

appropriate punitive actions.

CVPPL Vigilance Division is following CVC and Govt. of India guidelines under the
supervision CVO-NHPC Limited, which mandates certain compliances related to other like
Central Government Department/PSU. Circulars/Memorandum/Guidelines issued by CVC
are mandatory compliance in CVPPL. Vigilance Department co-ordinates with Central
Bureau of Investigation (CBI), Central Vigilance Commission (CVC) and other concerned

departments of the Government.

The Vigilance activities/functions are taken care by Vigilance Division under their Action
Plan which includes handing of Complaints/cases and its investigation, regular/surprise
inspections, regular monitoring of NITs uploaded on organization website/GeM CPP
e-Portal, examination of concluded tenders & execution of works, timely payments to
contractors/ Suppliers and conducting Vigilance Awareness Campaigns/ training for

improvement of the system etc.

During the year 2024-25, Intensive Examination of Power House Civil Works package of
PakalDul HE Project & E&M package of Kiru HE Project was carried out by Technical
Examiner, CVC and their observations have been replied with the consent of CVO, NHPC

for further perusal by CVC team.

Apart from above, five (05) number CTE type inspections were also conducted by the
Vigilance Division during FY 2024-25. As a part of preventive vigilance, circulars and
guidelines are being issued regularly based on various inspections / examinations carried

out from time to time and also from CVC compendium as and when needed.

Monthly /Quarterly reports are being submitted to CVO-NHPC Ltd. and CVC. Half yearly

reports on vigilance works are also being apprised to the CVPPL Board.

Vigilance Awareness Week on CVC Guidelines was observed at CVPPL from 28™ October’

2024 to 3" November’ 2024 to promote transparency and working ethics in CVPPL.
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22. EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN:

An extract of annual return in form MGT-9 is annexed to this report as Annexure-|V.
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23. STATUTORY INFORMATION:
A. Energy Conservation and Technology Absorption:

a. Natural lighting:
The orientation and glass paneling of CVPPL Corporate Office is in such a way that
significant natural sun light does enter in the CO thereby lessening usage of electrical

lightings hence reducing electrical consumption.

b. Energy efficient LED lights:
LED lights have been installed in the Corporate Office of CVPPL to reduce the power
consumption.

c. HVAC:
Energy efficient HYAC system has been in operation at C.O Jammu so as to reduce the
power consumption.

d. Sewage Treatment Plant:
As per the Building Permission granted by JDA, there was requirement of providing only
septic tanks for sewage treatment, however, taking a proactive step, our company decided
to go for advanced technology and opted for installation of aerobic Sewage Treatment Plant
(STP) instead of traditional septic tanks. The STP with 70 KLD installed capacity involving
Fluidized Aerobic Bio Reactor technology has been installed for the waste water
management of the Corporate Office building. In addition to sewage, the STP shall also
treat the waste water discharged from building.

e. Grid Connected Rooftop Solar Power Plant:
Under Smart City Mission, 15KWp Grid Connected Rooftop Solar Power Plant has been
installed at CVPPL, CO, Rail Head Complex Jammu so as to support the National Grid by

reducing the electrical load upon.
B. Adaptation and Innovation:

a) Building Orientation:
The Corporate office building design has been developed to take advantage of the best
aspects of Jammu’s climate. The Facade Optimization Principle has been applied in design
for daylight & shading according to mass and orientation so as to adapt for future climate
change. The building mass is oriented in the east-west direction with the larger sides facing

north and south thereby minimizing solar heat gain during summers.
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b) Site Planning:
Availability of larger percentage of green/open areas around the building (i.e. about 30% of
the total site area) has been achieved by adopting Vertical Expansion of the building (both
over and underground). The underground area has been fully utilized by providing two
basement floors to be used for parking of vehicles.

c) Seating Arrangement:
In order to avail maximum efficiency of HVAC and for reducing power consumption, the
seating arrangement has been planned in such a way that the closed rooms and full height
cabins are placed along the outer walls/glass walls so that the heating effect of sun light
does not extend to the work stations and other open areas, which are placed on interior side

of the floors.

d) Rain Water Harvesting System:

With increasing concretization, most of the rain water in urban areas finds its way directly
into the drains resulting into heavy loss of recharge potential of otherwise non-concrete
areas. Reiterating its commitment towards sustainable development, CVPPPL has opted for
developing Rain Water Harvesting System for recharge of ground water. The system has
been installed with 2 Nos. Rain Water Harvesting pits of size 2.5m dia and 3.0m effective
depth with 160 (OD) UPVC slotted pipe up to a layer where sandy aquifers/permeable
layers exist.

24. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO:

The foreign exchange transaction is summarized below:
(Rs. in Lacs)

Particulars 2024-25 2023-24

Expenditure in foreign currency

) Know — how

1)) Interest Nil Nil

i) Other Misc. Matters Nil Nil

Nil Nil

Earning in foreign currency

) Interest Nil Nil

1)) Others Nil Nil
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26.

. INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND STANDARDS:

The company has engaged M/s BAWEJA & KAUL, Chartered Accountants as consultant for
“Providing Independent Review and Assurance on existence of Internal Financial Controls
and their operating effectiveness in CVPPL. The consultant has reported that internal
financial controls are operating efficiently and effectively in the Corporate Office and Projects
of CVPPL. Further, the efficacy of internal financial control systems has also been reported
by the Statutory Auditors in Annexure “B” to the Independent Auditors’ Report for the
Financial Year 2024-25.

TRAINING AND HUMAN RESOURCE DEVELOPMENT:

Employees are a company’s biggest asset, and investing in talent is crucial for sustainable
business growth and success. Training and Development programs provide the perfect
opportunity to expand the knowledge base within an organization, and most importantly,
great learning experiences make for a happier, more productive workforce. Comprehensive
employee training is vitally important to the success of a competitive workforce. No matter the
industry, filling the gaps in our employees’ professional knowledge is essential to keeping

them productive and fulfilled.

Understanding the value of expanding our employees’ skills and knowledge for better
performance and motivation, CVPPL never lags behind to make an investment in the
continuous upgradation and learning for its employees. During the Financial Year 2024-25,
employees had been nominated to 40 different Training Programmes / Conferences /
Webinars / sessions, etc. including Technical/Non-Technical and Behavioural Programs
organised at internal as well as external forums. Skill upgradation Programs on PRIMAVERA
and AUTOCAD were organised through recognised CADD Centre to acquaint our
employees with the latest technologies and innovations in the respective software’s.
Training Programs on the topics, viz., River modelling and Inflow Forecasting System for
Hydro Power Projects, Insurance Policies, Procedures & Best Practices specific to
Hydroelectric Projects, Geophysical Techniques for Trenchless Technology Installation, Use
and Management of FIDIC Conditions of Contract, Public Procurement, Cyber Security,
Environment Regulations, Transformer Protection, etc. were also imparted through

specialised Trainers / Agencies.



https://www.elucidat.com/solutions/employee-training/�
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Statutory-oriented Programs on POSH Act,2013, Regulatory Compliances under Labour
Laws were organised in-house, besides nomination of employees were made to various
workshops organised on Labour Laws to update them on statutory compliances.
A rejuvenating Workshop on Health & Stress Management was also organised at the
Projects to refresh the mind of the employees and address their health concerns.
10" International Yoga Day on 21.06.2024 was also celebrated with great enthusiasm and

active participation of employees.

High appreciation and satisfactory feedback were received from employees regarding the

effectiveness of above listed programs.

Training Programme on “Best Lifestyle Practices for better Management”
at PakalDul HEP, Kishtwar.
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Program on “Influencing others with Communication Skills” at Kiru HEP,

Kishtwar
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Training Programme on “PRIMAVERA” at CADD Centre, Jammu
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Training Program on “River modelling and Inflow Forecasting System for
Hydro Power Projects” at IIT, Jammu
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Training Programme on “Health & Stress Management” at Kwar HEP,
Kishtwar
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Training Programme on “Organizational Belongingness: Visioning the
Future: thereof” at Corporate Office, Jammu
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Training Programme on “Insurance Policies, Procedures & Best Practices
specific to Hydroelectric Projects” at Corporate Office, Jammu
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Program on “Regulatory Compliances under Labour Laws” at Corporate
Office, Jammu
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Awareness Program on “Sexual Harassment” at Corporate Office, Jammu
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Training Programme on “Stress & Health Management” at PakalDul HEP,
Kishtwar
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27. EMPLOYEES PROMOTION:

28.

In reference to the resolution of CVPPL Board 85th meeting, the vacancy —based promotions
are on —hold in CVPPL in r/o all CVPPL Cadre employees.

Whereas, the Cluster based promotion of CVPPL Cadre employees, where vacancy is no
constraint has been initiated as per existing CVPPL Promotion Policy. However, the same is
to be submitted for appraisal of CVPPL Board in the next meeting followed by issuance of

promotion orders.

HUMAN RESOURCE MANAGEMENT:
Human Resource Management (HRM) is a multifaceted discipline focused on managing

employees from different segments within CVPPL to achieve its strategic and diversified
goals. It encompasses a wide range of activities, including recruitment, training, performance
management, compensation, and employee relations, all aimed at optimizing employee
performance and engagement. The roles of HRM in CVPPL is instrumental and performance
driven in building and retaining energetic, enthusiastic and motivated workforce, fostering a
positive work environment and ensuring timely accomplishments of assigned goals and

compliance of relevant laws and regulations.

HR Rules And Palicies:

HR Rules and policies constitute the integral part of the organisation on which the whole
system revolves. CVPPL at its construction phase has introduced the 02 policy so far for
welfare of its employees during the year 2024-25, as per need and requirement aligned with
the objectives of the organization i.e. Introduction of CVPP ‘Child Care Leave on Adoption of
a Child and Special Leave connected to inquiry of Sexual Harassment, Introduction of
Scheme for Reimbursement of Health Supplements and Convalescence needs for CVPPL/
GoJK Executives and Non-unionized Supervisors performing Night shift duty at CVPPL
Project Construction sites.

Besides, the modifications have also been incorporated in the Policies like Modification in
contribution limits of Social Security Scheme & rules, Modification in CVPPL Project Affected

families (financial limits) etc.

Moreover, CVPPL is also ensuring compliance with DPE guidelines and as per the

requirement of system in vogue.
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b. Details of Contract Labour Deployed in CVPPL:

As on 31.03.2025, a total of 8820 nos. of contract labour have been provided employment
by various contractors (like M/s Afcons, M/s L&T, M/s JAL, M/s Voith, M/s Patel etc.)

who have been awarded works/ services contracts of CVPPL Corporate office/Projects /Units.

Out of 8820, a total of 7339 nos. of contract labour are from J&K. Out of these 7339
labour from J&K, 5754 are from Kishtwar District itself, including 531 nos. of contract
labour from Project Affected Families.

The percentage increase in the number of Contract Labourers hired by contractors as on
31.03.2025 in comparison to the previous year (31.03.2024) is 21.85%.

Details of Contract labour engaged by
contractors in CVPPL

10000
9000
8000

7000
6000
5000
4000
3000
2000
R -

Contract labour from Total PAFs Contract Labour fromContract Labour from Total CL provided
other states Kishtwar J&K employment

c. Industrial Relations:

The IR situation at CVPPL Projects and offices was conducive except few major interruptions
of contract Labour through their union (Kissan Mazdoor Union). The matters pertaining to
unions of Contractual workers engaged by contractors have been addressed through
conciliation proceedings held in the office of RLC (Central), Jammu, mediations by local
administration and decision taken by Management and Board of Directors. During the year,
contractual Workers union at many of times threatened the CVPPL management to proceed
on strike without making Contractors (their immediate employer) a party to the dispute and

created many hindrances on the works of Project sites.

During the year, number of Industrial protests witnessed at the sites of CVPPL Projects and

the same is being resolved / adjudicated through appropriate legal mechanism.
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d. Security Arrangements at CVPPL Project Sites in Kishtwar District

Projects and Employees are the important assets of CVPPL and their safety and security is
our primary responsibility. Considering the safety and security of vital installations,
machineries, infrastructures and employees deployed at various Projects, it becomes crucial
to implement strong and strengthen security measures. The three CVPPL Projects i.e.
PakalDul, Kiru and Kwar HE Projects in the district Kishtwar are at progressing/ advancing
phase of construction activities where round the clock, security& safety of Project human
resources, machineries and men is the constant necessity. Presently, the security
requirements in the Projects is managed with the private security guards of contractors, DGR
sponsored Ex-serviceman security, minimum deployment of JK police and paramilitary

forces.

In light of the prevailing alarming situations across J&K especially Kishtwar being a sensitive
region, the matter regarding deployment of CISF security personnel at important/ vital
installations of 03 Project sites of CVPPL for safeguarding and protection of human lives/
assets of the Projects of National importance has been taken with up Ministry of Power&
MHA/ CISF HQ. CISF authority has conducted Preliminary Assessment Survey and
submitted their report to CISF HQ. Formal induction will be done by CISF after completion of

Pre-induction formalities/ facilities by CVPPL at Projects.

e. Manpower Planning:

Location wise details of all employees in CVPPL (as on 31-03-2025)

Group Cadre (6{0) Pakal Dul HEP Kiru HEP Kwar HEP Total
A Executives 80 68 69 43 260
B Supervisors 6 23 21 10 60
C&D Workmen 3 7 0 1 11
Total 89 98 90 54 331

e The above manpower is exclusive of Contractual employees engaged through various
contractors across CVPPL locations.
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f. Manpower Planning/Budget for next 04-05 years

In accordance with the directions of CVPPL Board passed in its 85" Meeting, a
comprehensive Manpower budget for next 04-05 years has been prepared in consultation
with NHPC on the basis of the CAE norms for allocation of manpower for Hydro Project and
the same after verification/vetting by NHPC has been submitted to Ministry of Power
for recommendation and obtaining necessary approval of DPE vide CVPPL Letter dated
28.03.2025.

g. Independence Day 2024
CVPPLCELEBRATES 78" INDEPENDENCE DAY

CVPPL celebrated the 78th Independence Day on 15th August 2024 with great pride
and patriotic fervour. Sh Ramesh Mukhiya, Managing Director hoisted the National Flag
at Corporate Office, Jammu with guard of honour and salutation to the National Anthem.

He congratulated all the employees, Security Personnel and present Staffs.

MD (CVPPL) on his opening address paid tributes to the freedom fighters and martyrs who
sacrificed their lives for the Nation’s Independence. He highlighted the significance of

freedom and asked everyone to commit themselves for the splendid work of nation building.

In his speech he thanked everyone engaged for the excellent progress achieved in
completing the ongoing Pakal Dul, Kiru and Kwar Hydroelectric Projects in Kishtwar district
and for the support being extended by the UT of J&K. It was highlighted that these projects
were of National importance and extremely important for carbon emission reduction to

combat climate change.

On this occasion the employees, their family and children performed for the cultural program
with great enthusiasm and patriotic spirit. The celebration concluded with singing of National
Anthem and distribution of sweets, symbolising the joy and sweetness of freedom.

On this occasion, “Har Ghar Tiranga” abhiyan was organized under the leadership of
Sh. Ramesh Mukhiya, Managing Director. In which he encouraged all the employees for

hoisting the national flag at their household premises.

Independence Day 2024 celebrations were also held at Pakal Dul, Kiru, Kwar and Kirthai-II

HE Projects at Kishtwar.
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h. CVPPL 76™ REPUBLIC DAY ON 26TH JANUARY 2025

CVPPL CELEBRATES 76TH REPUBLIC DAY

CVPPL celebrated the 76th Republic Day on 26th January 2025 with great pride and patriotic
fervour. Sh. Ramesh Mukhiya, Managing Director unfurled the National Flag at Corporate
Office, Jammu & congratulated the employees and their families on Republic Day.

In his address, he stated that Republic Day is a national festival and this day is very important
for all of us because the Constitution of India was adopted by the Constituent Assembly on
26 November 1949 and it was decided to implement it from 26 January 1950. This day is a
remembrance of our faith in the constitution and the ideas embodied in.

The Managing Director expressed his full confidence regarding completion of Pakal Dul &
Kiru HE Projects by the end of next year. He also encouraged all employees working in
CVPPL, Corporate Office, Jammu for their 100% contribution for an early completion of all
three construction Projects of national importance.

He lauded the efforts being put in by all employees and other construction workers at

Kishtwar despite of adverse geographical and climatic conditions.
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CVPPL CELEBRATES 14th FORMATION DAY

CVPPL CELEBRATES 14th FORMATION DAY
Chenab Valley Power Projects Ltd. (CVPPL) celebrated its 14th Formation Day on 13th June,
2024 at CVPPL Corporate Office, Jammu; Project Sites at Kishtwar and Camp Office,
Faridabad. CVPPL was incorporated on this day in the year 2011 to harness the vast hydro
potential of Chenab Basin in J&K.
Sh. Ramesh Mukhiya, Managing Director congratulated the employees and their families
on this occasion.
The formation day was celebrated with a get-together event amongst all employees and their
family members with enthusiasm and gaiety. Sh. Rizwan Uddin, Regional PF Commissioner,
Jammu and other senior officers of State Govt. also graced the occasion.
On this occasion, Sh. Ramesh Mukhiya, MD CVPPL addressed the employees and
highlighted the major achievements in the construction works of three projects namely
PakalDul HE Project (1000 MW), Kiru HE Project (624 MW) and Kwar HE Project (540 MW)
in Kishtwar. PakalDul HE Project (1000 MW) and Kiru HE Project (624 MW) are expected to
be commissioned by September 2026. He applauded the support of UT of J&K and local
administration for their support for smooth execution of the project works and also praised all
employees for their untiring efforts being put in for timely completion of the Projects at

Kishtwar.

Sh. Mukhiya, MD, CVPPL stressed upon the employees to work hard to achieve the assigned
milestones of the company ahead of schedule.
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29.

30.

31.

NUMBER OF CASES FILED, IF ANY AND THEIR DISPOSAL UNDER SECTION 22 OF
SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN ACT:

In accordance with the provisions contained in Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace
(Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 2013, Internal Complaints Committee (ICC) have

been constituted at all CVPPL Locations.

Disclosures in relation to the of Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention,
Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 2013 during the F.Y. 2024-25:-

a. No. of complaints filled during the F.Y. :- Nil
b. No. of complaints disposed off during the F.Y.:- Nil
c. No. of complaints pending for more than 90 days. :- Nil

CVPPL complies with the provisions of Maternity Benefit Act, 1961.

PROJECT MONITORING:

CVPPL is following a robust system for monitoring of the projects. Effective Monitoring
forms an essential component for preventing time and cost overruns. The monitoring of
the progress of the major works of Pakal Dul HE Project, Kiru HE Project and Kwar HE
Project are being done through project management software viz Primavera which has
been installed at C.O Jammu and Project offices Kishtwar and necessary training for
acquainting the employees to use the software effectively has also been conducted.
Interfacing schedules of the packages in primavera are also being integrated for effective
monitoring and arresting any delays due time lags between interfaced activities. The delays,
if any are being regularly communicated to the contractors so as to plan for making up
the delay. Various review meetings are being held with all stakeholders for deliberating on
the progress as well as issues of the projects for timely resolution of the same.
The contractors of all major work packages are being regularly sensitized about the targets to

be achieved and daily monitoring of the works is being ensured as per the targets.

The status of the projects is being apprised to PMO, MoP, CEA, NHPC, JKPDD, JKSPDC
and various other Central/UT Govt. Departments through status reports which are being
regularly sent at the fixed timelines i.e., Quarterly/Monthly/Weekly. Further, the status and
important issues of the company are being highlighted in various review meetings at

Central/UT Govt departments for remedial action on the issues at the earliest.
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The details of the scheduled status reports sent are given below:

1. Monthly Status report of Projects/programmes/schemes inaugurated or foundation
stone laid by Hon’ble PM to MoP, Gol.

2. Quarterly/As and when desired Progress report of ongoing Prime Minister’s
Development Plan (PMDP-2015) projects in J&K to MoP, Gol.

3. Monthly updation of Complete detailed data information of Central Sector
Infrastructure Projects costing Rs. 150 Crs and above — Online Computerized
Monitoring System (OCMS) to MoSPI, Gol

4. Monthly updation of progress & milestone and issues on Project Monitoring Group
(PMG) portal of DPIIT, Ministry of Commerce & Industry, Government of India

5. Monitoring of Hydro-Electric Projects by CEA under Section 73(f) of Electricity Act
2003, monthly status to HPM, CEA

6. Monthly Status and Compliance of the conditions of Appraisal of the Projects to HPA,
CEA.

7. PRAGATI issues status to JKPDD and MoP, Gol

8. Weekly report to MoP, Gol regarding Implementation of Cabinet Decision on
e-Samiksha Portal of Cabinet Secretariat.

9. Quarterly CCEA approval Condition compliance report to MoP, Gol

10. Monthly MIS Report of CVPPL to SB&D, Planning and PMSG Divisions NHPC

11. Monthly Status Report to JKSPDC, GoJK

12. Monthly Status Report to JKPDD, GoJK

13. Monthly status of CVPPL projects to Divisional Commissioner, GoJK.

14. Hydroelectric schemes concurred by CEA and yet to be taken up for construction to
HPM & HPA CEA.

15. Various other status reports sent as and when desired in the requisite format from the

statutory departments.
32. LOCAL INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT:

The R&R Plans of Pakal Dul, Kiru and Kwar HE Projects, as approved by GoJK contain
provisions for infrastructure development in the local area with allocation of Rs. 40.00 Crs for
Pakal Dul, Rs. 28.87 Crs for Kiru and Rs. 13.54 Crs for Kwar HEP. These funds totaling to

Rs 82.41Crs is a boon for development of the remote area of Kishtwar District. The fund has
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33.

been made available to District Administration. The fund is being utilized by District
Administration for development of infrastructure of the area, which results in employment

generation and elevating the socio-economic conditions of the locals.

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY INITIATIVES:

Information Technology is critical for the sustainable and long-term success of any
organization. CVPPL considers Information Technology as a strategic tool for the attainment

of sustainable growth and to improve overall productivity and efficiency.

Under the umbrella of Digital India Campaign, the organisation has taken various digital
initiatives viz. CVPPL has implemented e-Office of NIC as per Government guidelines at all
project locations including Corporate Office, Jammu. CVPPL has also acquired VPNs for
accessing of e-Office in remote project locations. Using digital technologies, which includes
Virtual meetings, Administration and operation of official website of CVPPL, Intranet and

webmail id’s, CVPPL is easily reachable to public, stakeholders etc.

CVPPL has taken up various other digital initiatives towards paperless working providing
greater transparency and ease of doing work. Management & Support to CPPP e-
procurement portal including e-reverse Auction portal developed and maintained by NIC and
GeM Portal as per Govt. guidelines for optimizing the resources, to enhance the

transparency and accountability in the system.

All locations of the Company including remotely located Projects are connected to Corporate
Office through multimode communication links using MPLS-VPN / ILL and VSAT. Acquiring
of VMS (Video Management System) is already in process for better monitoring/

management and surveillance of projects / power stations.

Critical IT Infrastructure including servers, data storage, communication equipment etc. have
been installed at safe locations and are being managed through internal resources.
A centralised Firewall has also been implemented to protect Servers / Desktops against
Cyber threats. Implementation of New Age ERP system to integrate functions like finance,

human resources, procurement etc. by parent company NHPC is in progress.

CVPPL is committed towards Digitization and paperless office through IT initiatives.
The objective of digitization is to minimize time for any services/information required by

users. Further, CVPPL is continuously working to improve IT services through improved
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34.

35.

online infrastructure and by increasing internet connectivity throughout CVPPL offices and
Enhancement of cyber security measures to safeguard against evolving threats in the

digital space.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY & SUSTAINABILITY POLICY:

CVPPL is committed to the concerns of its stakeholders and strives to promote and maintain
good standards of CSR and Sustainability in all its business activities. To meet this
commitment CVPPL respects the rule of law, local communities and societies at large and it
makes conscious efforts to enhance the quality of life and environmental sustainability

through its CSR & Sustainability activities.

CVPPL has formulated a CSR & Sustainability Policy in line with Section 135 of the
Companies Act, 2013, Schedule VII of the Act and Companies (Corporate Social
Responsibility Policy) Rules read with General Circulars issued on CSR by
the Ministry of Corporate Affairs and the guidelines on Corporate Social Responsibility and

Sustainability issued by Department of Public Enterprises (DPE).

The Policy provides for the provisions pertaining to implementation of CSR activities under
various sectors in pursuance to the applicable Acts, Rules and Guidelines.

The CSR & Sustainability Policy of CVPPL has been placed in public domain on the website
of CVPPL at the link https://www.cvppindia.com/CSR.aspx?Policies.

The Statutory disclosures with respect to the CSR Committee and an Annual Report on CSR

activities forms part of this report as Annexure-IV.

STATUS OF COURT CASES:

Breakup of sub-judice cases for the period ending March 2025.

S.No | Type of | Total Forum/Court STATUS
Litigation Number of
cases
1. Service 08 8 cases pending before | Pleadings completed in all
Matters the High Court of | cases.
Jammu& Kashmir and
Ladakh.
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2. Civil 04 01 in the JK&L High | Pleadings have been
Matter** Court-Jammui; completed by the parties.
03 in the District Court of
Kishtwar, JK.
3. Arbitration | 04 01 in the Punjab and |In respect of Arbitration
Matters Haryana(P&H) High | matter, which is pending for
Court-Chandigarh; adjudication before the P&H

03 before Arbitral | High Court at Chandigarh,
Tribunals having its seat | pleadings are completed and
at Jammu. the trial continues. Whereas,
Arbitration matter titled as
M/S S3 Infotech Private
Limited versus CVPPL,
pleadings are completed and
is at the Evidence stage.
Other two arbitration matters
are at pleading stages.

4. Contempt | 02 01 in the JK&L High |In final stage as parties have
Petitions Court-Jammu and 01 in | completed the pleadings.

the P&H High Court- | Matter partly heard as well.

Chandigarh Whereas, in other contempt

petition that has been filed by
the CVPPL before the P&H
High Court, notice has been
issued against the other side.

5. Labour 02 Central Electricity Objections filed in both
Matters*+* Regulatory Commission, | Petitions.
New Delhi.

SUMMARY OF CASES FOR THE YEAR 2024-2025

* Includes all cases in which appellate proceedings have taken place during the reporting
period or are pending;

* |Includes Land Acquisition matters and contractor’s registration cards.

* |Includes Reference made by the Central Government upon failure of conciliation before
RLC(C) Jammu, for adjudication of an industrial dispute under section 10 of ID, Act 1947.
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36. RIGHT TO INFORMATION:
CVPPL has complied with the provisions of the Right to Information Act, 2005. Total 20 nos.
of RTI Applications and 02 nos. of appeals have been duly replied to and disposed of in a
time bound manner as mandated under the RTI Act, 2005 during 2024-25.

ACCLAMATION:

The Board of Directors of your company places on record its sincere appreciation for the
valuable support and guidance extended by the Govt. of J&K, Ministry of Power, Ministry of
Environment & Forest and Climate Change, PMO, Central Electricity Authority, Central Water
Commission and the Promoters of CVPPL, without which the Company would not have been
able to carry out its responsibilities. We acknowledge the participation and involvement of

each one of them, solicit their continued co-operation, and support in the future as well.

Your Directors place on record its deep gratitude for the co-operation and continued support
extended by the Statutory Auditors and the office of the Comptroller and Auditor General of

India.

Your Board of Directors deeply appreciate all the agencies of the Govt. of India and Govt. of
J&K, their officers and staff members who bravely faced the Covid pandemic and kept the

essential services operational.

Your Directors also deeply appreciate all the Employees working in CVPPL, for their

immense dedication, commitment and cooperation.

By Order of the Board of Directors
CHENAB VALLEY POWER PROJECTS LIMITED

Sd/-
Place: Jammu Suresh Kumar, IAS- (Retd.)
Dated: 05.08.2025 CHAIRMAN

DIN-06440021
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H. No 24/4 ROOP NAGAR
JAMMU J&K 180013
Mob: 7006124213
RAMIT MAM & ASSOCIATES Email- csrk32703@gmail.com
Company Secretaries

FORM No. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025
[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No.9 of the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To
The Members

CHENAB VALLEY POWER PROJECTS LIMITED

CIN: U40105JK2011G0OI003321

CHENAB JAL SHAKTI BHAVAN OPPOSITE SARASWATI DHAM,
RAIL HEAD COMPLEX JAMMU J&K 180012

| have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions
and the adherence to good corporate practices by the Chenab Valley Power Projects
Limited (CIN: U40105JK2011G0I003321) (herein after referred to as the ‘Company’).

The Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for
evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion
thereon.

Based on my verification of the Company’s statutory registers, books, papers, minute
books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the Company and also the
information provided by the Company, its officers and authorized representatives during
the conduct of secretarial audit, | hereby report that in my opinion, the Company has,
during the audit period covering the financial year ended on March 31, 2025 complied with
the statutory provisions listed here under and also that the Company has proper Board-
processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to
the reporting made hereinafter:

| have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other
records maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on March 31, 2025
according to the provisions mentioned below and the Company has complied with said
provisions except mentioned there under:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under;

(i) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA’) and the rules made
thereunder; (NOT APPLICABLE)

(i)  The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;
(NOT APPLICABLE) :
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(iv)  The Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations
made thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct
Investment and External Commercial Borrowings; (NOT APPLICABLE)

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and
Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’) are not applicable to the
Company as the Shares of the Company are not listed with stock Exchange
during Audit period.

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares
and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 1992;

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2018

(d) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits &
Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021 (Erstwhile Securities and Exchange Board of
India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulation, 2014;

(e) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible
Securities) Regulations, 2021 (Erstwhile Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008);

| (f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share
Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing
with client;

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares)
Regulations, 2021; and

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations,
2018;

(vi)  Other laws specifically applicable to company have substantially complied with.
| have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

(i) Secretarial Standards - SS-1 (related to Board Meetings) and SS-2 (related to
General Meetings) issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

(i) The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company. (NOT APPLICABLE)
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Company Secretaries

During the period under review and as per the explanations and representations made by
the management and subject to clarifications given to us, the Company has generally

complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, etc.
| further report that:
a) The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted.

b) The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the

period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

c) Adequate notice was given to all directors at least seven days in advance to the
scheduled Board/Committee Meetings except in those cases where the meetings were
conducted at shorter notice. Agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent in
advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and
clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at
the meeting. Majority decisions were carried through while the dissenting members'’

views were captured and recorded as part of the minutes.

| further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company
commensurate with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure

compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

| further report that the compliance by the Company of the applicable financial laws
such as direct and indirect tax laws and maintenance of financial records and books of
accounts has not been reviewed in this Audit since the same have been subject to

review by Statutory Auditors/CAG and other designated professionals.

| further report that during the audit period, the Company had following events, which
had bearing on the Company's affairs in pursuance to above referred laws, rules,

regulations, guidelines etc.
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DETAIL OF ALLOTMENT OF SHARES DURING THE YEAR 2024-25:

(i) The Company allotted 22,86,90,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- as fully paid up
amounting to Rs 2,28,69,00,000/- to NHPC Ltd. on 07/05/2024.

(ii) The Company allotted 8,24,49,998 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each as fully paid up
amounting to Rs. 82,44,99,980/- to JKSPDC Ltd. on 07/05/2024.

(i) The Company allotted 01 Equity Share of Rs. 10/- as fully paid up amounting to

Rs 10/- to Sh H.Rajesh Prasad (Administrative Secretary-JKPDD) representative
of JKSPDC on 07/05/2024.

(iv)  The Company allotted 01 Equity Share of Rs. 10/- as fully paid up amounting to
Rs 10/- to Sh Pankaj Magotra (Managing Director-JKSPDC) representative of
JKSPDC on 07/05/2024.

(v) The Company allotted 12,50,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- as fully paid up
amounting to Rs 1,25,00,00,000/- to NHPC Ltd. on 31/07/2024.

(vi) The Company allotted 25,00,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- as fully paid up
amounting to Rs 2,50,00,00,000/- to NHPC Ltd. on 09/09/2024.

(vii)  The Company allotted 6,00,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- as fully paid up
amounting to Rs 60,00,00,000 /- to NHPC Ltd. on 08/10/2024.

(viii) The Company allotted 26,23,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- as fully paid up
amounting to Rs 2,62,30,00,000 /- to NHPC Ltd. on 07/01/2025.

(ix)  The Company allotted 12,12,30,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- as fully paid up
amounting to Rs 1,21,23,00,000 /- to JKSPDC Ltd. on 07/01/2025.

(x) The Company allotted 5,00,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- as fully paid up
amounting to Rs 50,00,00,000/- to JKSPDC Ltd. on 29/01/2025.

For Ramit Mam & Associates
Company Secretaries

Ramit K 26/5/25

ACS No -327037C P No: 23257
FRN: $2021JK806900

Peer Review Certificate No: 4169/2023
UDIN: A032703G000662079

Place: Jammu
Date: 26.06.2025
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Co

mpany Secretaries

To
Th

ANNEXURE TO SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

e Members

CHENAB VALLEY POWER PROJECTS LIMITED

CIN: U40105JK2011G0OI003321

CHENAB JAL SHAKTI BHAVAN OPPOSITE SARASWATI DHAM,
RAIL HEAD COMPLEX JAMMU J&K 180012

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

Maintenance of Secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the
Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records
based on our audit. |

| have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain
reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial
records during the period of my audit. The audit process was carried on the basis of
documents, reports and records made available to me, which were relied upon as
audit evidence for conducting the audit.

The verification was done on test check basis to ensure that correct facts are
reflected in secretarial records. | believe that the process and practices, | followed
provide a reasonable basis for my opinion.

Wherever required, | have obtained the management representation about list of
applicable laws, compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events
eic.

The compliance of the provisions of corporate and other applicable laws, rules,
regulations and standards is the responsibility of management. My examination was
limited to the verification of procedure on test check basis.

The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the
Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has
conducted the affairs of the Company.

For Ramit Mam & Associates
Company Secretari

ACS No -32703;

FRN: S2021JK806900

Peer Review Certificate No: 4169/2023
UDIN: A032703G000662079

Place: Jammu

Da

te: 26.06.2025
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Annexure - Il

Form No. AOC -2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3)of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related
parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arms length
transactions under third proviso thereto

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis

(a) Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship
(b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions
(c)
(d

Duration of the contracts / arrangements/transactions
) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions
including the value, if any

(e) Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements or NIL

transactions

(f) date(s) of approval by the Board

(9) Amount paid as advances, if any:

(h) Date on which the special resolution was passed in general

meeting as required under first proviso to section 188

2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis

(a) Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship NHPC Limited (Promotor)

(b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions Consultancy Charges, Rent and Electricity
Charges

(c) Duration of the contracts / arrangements/transactions NA

(d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions | Consultancy Charges, Rent and Electricity

including the value, if any: Charges
(Rs. 3082.68 Lakhs for F.Y. 2024-25)

(e) Date(s) of approval by the Board, if any: NA

(f) Amount paid as advances, if any: NIL

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

CHENAB VALLEY POWER PROJECTS LIMITED

Sd/-
Place: Jammu Suresh Kumar, IAS-(Retd.)
Dated: 05.08.2025 CHAIRMAN

DIN-06440021
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Annexure Il

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT GENERAL
(AUDIT), JAMMU & KASHMIR

W A

Lir No: AMG-1l Wing/2025-2026/DI18-28953354
Date: 21 Aug 2025

To,

The Managing Director,
Chenab Valley Power Projects (P) Ltd.
Head Oftice, Jammu

Subject: COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER & AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA UNDER SECTION 143
(6)(b) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF CHENAB VALLEY POWER
PROJECTS (P) LIMITEDFOR THE YEAR ENDED ON 31 MARCH 2025 (PR-171540)

Sir'Madam,

I am 10 Torward herewith the Comments of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India under section 143(G}(b) of the Companies Act,
2013 on the financial statements of Chenab Valley Power Projects (P) Limited for the year ended on 3F March 2025 for placing the same
before the Annual General Meeting of the shareclders of the Company. A copy of minutes of the AGM may be shared with this office.

Yours faithfully,

JAGBIR SINGH
Dy. Accountant General
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COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER & AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA
UNDER SECTION 143 (6}(b) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 ON THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF CHENAB VALLEY POWER PROJECTS (P)
LIMITEDFOR THE YEAR ENDED ON 31 MARCH 2025

The preparation of financial statements of Chenab Valley Power Projects (P) Limited
for the year ended on 31 March 2025 in accordance with the financial reporting framework
prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 is the responsibility of the management of the
Company. The Statutory Auditors appointed by the Comptroller & Auditor General of India
under Section 139(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 are responsible for expressing opinion on
these financial statements under Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 based on
independent audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section
143(10) of the Act. This is stated to have been done by them vide their Audit Report dated 8
May 2025.

I, on the behalf of the Comptroller & Auditor General of India, have conducted a
supplementary audif under Section [43(6)(a)} of the Companies Act, 2013 of the financial
statements of Chenab Valley Power Projects Private Limited for the year ended on 31 March
2025. The supplementary audit has been carried out independently without access to the
working papers of the Statutory Auditors and is limited primarily to inquiries of the Statutory
Auditors and Company personnel and a selective examination of some of accounting records.
Based on my supplementary audit, ] would like to highlight the following significant matters
under Section 143(6){b) of the Companies Act, 2013 which have come to my attention and
which in my view are necessary for enabling a better understanding of the financial
statements and the related Audit Report:

A. GENERAL

A.1 There is an addition of T48.87 crore to the ‘Freehold Land’ during 2024-25 shown under
‘Property Plant and Equipment” (Note 2.1}. Though the land acquisition has been awarded for
Pakal Dul Hydro Electric Project, the mutation of the land is yet to be recorded in favour of
the Company as at 31 March 2025, disclosure to the effect is deficient.

B. INDEPENDENT AUDITORS” REPORT
B.1  Annexure-A to the Independent Auditors’ Report

As per Para 3 (xvii) of the Companies {Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (CARO 2020), the
auditor is required to report whether the company has incwrred cash losses in the financial
year and m the immediately preceding financial year and the amount of such cash losses is
also to be stated.

However, the Independent auditor’s report for 2024-25 does not disclose the cash loss of
%11.66 crore incurred by the Company during 2024-25. Thus, the Independent Auditor’s
Report is deficient to that extent.

B.2 As per the requirement of Standard on Auditing (SA) 700 (Revised)-—‘Forming an

Opinion and Reporting on Financial Statements’, the auditor’s report is required to include a
distinct section with the heading ‘Responsibilities of Management for the Financial
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Statements’ outlining management’s responsibilities in relation to the preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in accordance with the applicable financial reporting
framework and assessing the entity’s ability to continue as a going concern.

However, the Independent Auditor’s Report of the Company for the year ended 31March
2025 does not contain the ibid section. Hence, the Independent Auditors Report is deficient to
that extent.

For and on the behalf of the
Compiroller & Auditor General of India

Sd/-

Principal Accountant General
Jammu and Kashmir
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Annexure-B

COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER & AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA UNDER SECTION 143 (6) (b)
OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF CHENAB VALLEY POWER
PROJECTS LIMITED FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON 31 MARCH 2025

Comment

Management’s Reply

A. General.

There is an addition of Rs.48.87 crore to the ‘Freehold
land” during 2024-25 shown under ‘Property Plant
(Note 2.1). Though the
acquisition has been awarded for Pakal Dul Hydro

and Equipment land
Electric Project, the mutation of the land is yet to be
recorded in favour of the Company as at 31% March
2025, disclosure to the effect is deficient.

Necessary disclosure in this regard has been
made in note 2.1 with the approval of
Competent Authority. (Copy enclosed as
Appendix-I).

B. INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT
B.1. Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report

As per Para 3 (xvii) of the Companies {Auditor's Report)
Order, 2020 (CARQ 2020), the auditor is required to report
whether the Company has incurred cash losses in the
financial year and in the immediately preceding financial
year and the amount of such cash losses is also to be
stated.

However, the Independent Auditors report for 2024-25
does not disclose the cash loss of Rs. 11.66 Crores incurred
by the Company during 2024-25. Thus, the Independent
Auditor’'s Report is deficient to that extent.

The statutory Auditors have issued an
Addendum  dated  11.06.2025 making
necessary incorporation of cash loss of Rs.
11.66 Cr. in their Audit Report Dated
08.05.2025 to align the same in compliance
with CAG Observations. (Copy of Addendum is
enclosed as Appendix-I11}.

B. INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT
B.2.

As per the requirements of Standard on Auditing {SA) 700

(Revised}) — “Forming an Opinion and Reporting on
Financial Statements”, the auditor’s report is required to
include a distinct section with the heading

“Responsibilities the Financial
Statements.” Qutlining management’s responsibilities in

relation to the preparation and fair presentation of the

of Management for

financial statements in accordance with the applicable
financial reporting framework and assessing the entity’s
ahility to continue as a going concern,

However, the Independent Auditor’s Report of the
Company for the financial year ended 31st March 2025,
does not contain the ibid Section. Hence, the Independent
Auditors Report is deficient to that extent.

The statutory Auditors have issued an
Addendum dated 11.06.2025  making
necessary incorporation in their Audit Report
Dated 08.05.2025 to align the same in
compliance with CAG Observations. {Copy of
Addendum is enclosed as Appendix-II)
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NOTE NO. 2.1 Property, Plant and Equipment as on 34.3.2025

Appendix-|

GROSS CARRYING AMOUNT

{Amount in ¥} ¢

DEPRECIATION NET CARRYING AMOUNT
Additiens Deducti
St o, PARTICVLARS Asat itk eductions Other As at 315t Maren, As Forthoyear | Adustmonts | ASAUYS  |Asatasstétarch|  Asat
01-Apr-2n24 Adjustments 2925 HM-Apr-2024 4 Mareh, 2025 2025 31st March, 2024
ur Others T Others
i Lang - Freehold 526744850 488587866 1015432756 [ 1015432756 oG744590,
D) Reads and Bridgas 548628418 9475501 3074 557707845, 73373539 18659928 96933577 460774268 470354779
ifly Buildinas 252642063 22795824 860481 314578306 131130570 26370869 -671483 156829986 187748320 161512393
iv) Railway sitdings 1] 1] [{] [ i}
" Hydraulic WorksiDams, Waler Conducier 0 0 o 0
systean, Hydro mechanical gates, tunnals) 0
vi) Generaling Plant and machinery o a o 0 0|
vil gfg‘sﬂ:m“‘“"e‘y 101985134 101885434 11053352 53775962 16431314 (5553820 50031782
Planl and machinery 4451431 5 55
viity Transrission lings 44614311 461431 5099268 2358635 74548 3758410 39515045
) Plant and machinery Others 7674714 932738 26606957 5213022 1497458 6710420, 21885462 22451192
%) Gonstruction Equipment 108748 5912 114650 5032 2008 70401 307620 163716}
;‘;ﬂi:asg‘fp" System/Drainege snd 6479020 3885220 0574 10260476 780116 265997 1046143 9253363 £699714
Elecldcal installations ¢ 3 o [ 1}
iy Vehicles 18127676 2464684 15572892 10352479 1262313 +2108912 9504980 6168012 7775087
Hv) Akeralt! Boais 1] 1] 1] [i] 0
xv) Furniture and fixiura 57772244 19402011 3800059 B2596 13285493 20334824 5873796 -575955 25532667 47652831 37437420
| xvi} Compulers HBA4B807 15258500 3781743 2064 80474900 40150877 12406455 -244760 50109932 20305069 28767830
vii} Communication Equipment 1886044 30319988 HEE813 4319019 743297 798331 -74818 1464809 2854210 1122647
iy Cifice Equipmonis 115796723 30865370 2565991 7741 144188311 AQ360807 10427605 =507 10 50781308 93807003 75435915
Total 1811369902 [} $54451230 0 13205290 ~1415682 2391220560 343437451 83296410 GIA68TA 422407617 19EBE1314Y 1467852421
Previous year 1345280635 2383040 475768071 2386040 9071EH -5BBO1E 1811389902 272015206 73948982 ~24705607 343497481 1487852421 1073261429
MHote: -
211 (a} Title deods of kinmaveable Properties not held in name of the Company as on 315t March 2025
Description of ltatn of Property Gross Title Deeds hatd in the nama of Whether title deed holder is a promoter, director or refative of Property held Reason for hot belng held in the
Relevent Line itest In tho Balance Sheef Carrying Value P tar or arnpl of promataridirectoy since wiich date name of the Cempany
Land (3815 Hectare) 466350148 Govt of Jameur and Kashmir Nil Fy 202122 10 Mutahen of 1and reordered in ravenue
hreugh CVPPL date records i the name of Govt of J&k
Wrougl CYPPPL {Kwar), &5 per
Assistant-Comnsisgioner Revene
letter, the land is Erpehold tng
Property. Flant and Equipment possession has been handed over to
CVPPPL {Kwar}
Building Nil HA NA A NA
Oihers Nit NA NA NA HA
1B} Title deeds of imnoveable Properties nat held in nasne of the Company as on 31at March 2024:.
Oescription of Item of Froporty Grass Title Oeads held n the name of] Wheltiar tifle deed bolder is a promater, director or relative of Praperty held Reasen for net belirg held In the
Relevent Ling item in the Balance Sheat Carrylng Value Promatetidirestor o cniployce of prometer/diractor singe which tate name of the Company
Land (38.15 Heclare) 465744850 Govl al Jammu and Kashrur Kl FY 202122 1p Mutation of Izl reordered in revenue
(heaugh CVPPL, date records in e name of Govl. of J&k
through CVPPRL, {Kwar). As par
Assislant Commissioner Revenue
lalter, the fand i Freehotd and
i - possession has been handed aver lo
Property, Planl and Equipment GVPPPL (Kwar)
Buiiding Nil NA N2 NA NA
Othars Hil HA A A
242  Amownt shown under lhe adjusiment colupiy maiudes amount towards 9% SGST clam 1o be raimbursed by e Stale Tax Deparimaenl and lowards adustment in vahse of the assets dunng ha finsi paymen! seldemant 55 compared lo Provj
213  Addiional driclesure of Propary Plant and Equipment (PIYE) as par gross tiock, elrassnis and sccumuiated depreqiatcn under previcus GAAP has baen providad as Annexure- 10 this Note

214 Audivonw Frae bold Land duiy the Y 307438 aclipes Ry 46,84.82. 6107 pedaimig (o fand achimsion seardod o Pakal e HEP. ha mutshen of e fand o8 cureenly
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CA.Vinay Jamwal Appendix-Il

-VAK & Associates.
Chartered Accountants,
First Floor, Khullar Market, Sector-3,
Trikuta Nagar, Jammu-180020 (J&K)
Phones: 0191-3500119: 9419190384
. Emailvakjmu@gmail.com

ADDENDUM TO INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF
Chenab Valley Power Projects Ltd.

We have made the amendments in following points of the Independent Auditor’s Report dated 08.05.2025 on
the accounts of Chenab Yalley Power Projects Ltd, for the F.Y, 2024-25,

Ref. of Audit Existing Report Revised Report .
Report

Page MNo.2 of | No Such Para on the Report | The Following Para has been added before the Para

Independent | Dated 08.05.2025 “Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Auditors Financial Statements”
Report.

Responsibilities of Management and those Charged
with governance for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Director is responsible for the
matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these Financial
Statement that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance, total
comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash
flows of the Company in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the Indian Accounting Standards specified
under section 133 of the Act,

This responsibility also includes maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of
the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds
and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgment and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the Financial Statements that give a
true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Financial Statements, Management
and the Board of Directors are responsible for assessing
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends
to liquidate the Company or to cease operations or has
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for
overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.

Branch Offices: (i) Patel Chowk,Pathankot {Pb), (ii)‘Sujcﬂpur,Paihcnko’rth;l. {il) RailwayRoad,Pathankot {HP), FRN:D19634N
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CA.Vinay Jamwal
VAK & Associcafes.
Chartered Accountants,
First Fioor, Khullar Market, Sector-3,
Trikuta Nagar, Jammu-180020 (J&K)
Phones: 0191-3500119: 9419190384

- Emadil:vakimu@gmail.com

Point no | According to the | According to the information and explanations given to
{xvii) of | information and { us, and the procedures performed by us, and on an
Annexure A | explanations given to us, | overall examination of the financial statements of the
FF? depen der:rt]e and the procedures | company, we report that the company has incurred
Auditors performed by us, and on an | cash losses of Rs. 11.66 Cr. {Rs. 12.48 Cr. - Rs. 0.82 Cr.

report overall examination of the { (Depreciation Being Non-Cash Expenditure)} in the
financial statements of the | financial year and the company has not incurred cash
company, we report that | loss in the immediately preceding financial year. ,
the company has incurred
cash losses in the financial
year and the company has
not incurred cash loss in the
immediately preceding
financial year.

YAK & Associates,
Chartered Accountants
FirmRegnNo: 019636N

e Doy

CA.Yinay Jamwal
Partne
MNo: 502417

Branch Offices: (i) Pate! Chowk,Pathankot(Pb), {if) Sujanpur,Pathankei(Pb), (i) RailwayRoad,Pathankot [HP), FRN:019434N
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14" Annual Report
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Power Projects L

Annexure -IV
Form MGT -9

Extract of Annual Return as on the financial year ended on March 31, 2025

[Pursuant to Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

I REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS

i) CIN (Company Incorporation Number) : U40105JK2011G0I003321

i)  Registration Date : 13/06/2011

iy~ Name of the Company :  CHENAB VALLEY POWER PROJECTS LIMITED

iv)  Category / Sub-Category of the Company : Company Limited by Shares / India Non-

Government Company

v)  Address of the Registered office and contact : Chenab Jal Shakti Bhawan, Opposite Saraswati
details Dham, Rail Head Complex, 180012-J&K

vi)  Whether Listed Company : No

vii)  Name, Address and Contact details of the : NA
Registrar and Transfer agent, if any

I PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated

S. No. | Name and Description of main products / services NIC Code of the | % to total turnover
Product / service of the Company
1. Energy (Hydro Power) Electric Power Generation by 35101 100

Hydroelectric Power Plants

. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

S.No. | Name and Address of the | CIN/ GLN Holding / % of Applicable
Company Subsidiary I | shares held Section
Associate
NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

—

ND
(o)}

o
FPage
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Iv. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)
i) Category-wise Share Holding

Category of No. of Shares held at the beginning of | No. of Shares at the end of the year %
Shareholders the year 01.04.2024 31.03.2025 Change
during
the year

Demai Physical Total % of | Dem Physical Total % of
Total | at Total
Shares Shares
A. Promoters

Indian
a) Individual / HUF | NIL 5 5 0.00 - 7 7 0.00 NIL
b) Central Govt - - - - - - - - -
c) State Gowt (s) - - - - - - - .
d) Bodies Corp. - | 4450341281 | 4450341281 | 100 | NIL | 5630011279 | 5630011279 | 100
e) Bank / FI - - - - - - - -
f) Any Other - - -

—_ = == =

Sub Total NIL | 4450341286 | 4450341286 5630011286 | 5630011286 | 100 NIL
(A)(1):-

(2) Foreign NIL NIL NIL NIL | NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

a)NRI's - - - -
Individuals
b) Other - - - -
Individuals
c) Bodies Corp. - - -
d) Banks / Fl - - -
e) Any Other .... - - -

Sub - Total (A) (2) NIL

Total - | 4450341286 | 4450341286 | 100 | NIL | 5630011286 | 5630011286 | 100 NIL
Shareholding of
Promoter (A) =
(A)(1)+(A)(2)

B. Public
Shareholding
1. Institutions NIL

a) Mutual Funds - - -
b) Banks / FI - - -
c) Central Govt - - -
d) State Govi(s) - - -
e) Venture Capital - - -

—

ND

o
FPage
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Funds - - -
f) Insurance
Companies
g) Flls - - -
h) Foreign Venture - - -
Capital Funds
i) Others (Specify) - - -

Sub - Total NIL
(B)(1) -

2. Non - NIL
Institutions

a) Bodies Corp. - - -
i) Indian - - -
ii) Overseas - - -
b) Individuals - - -
i) Individual | - - -
shareholders
holding  nominal
share capital upto
Rs. 1 Lac

i) Individual | - - -
shareholders
holding  nominal
share capital in
excess of Rs. 1lac

c) Others (Specify) | - - -
Sub - Total - NIL -
(B)(2) :-

Total Public | - NIL -
Shareholding

(B)=(B)(1) + (B)(2)

C. Shares held by | - -
Custodian for
GDRs & ADRs

Grand Total - | 4450341286 | 4450341286 | 100 | NIL | 5630011286 | 5630011286 | 100 NIL
(A+B+C)

—
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(ii

Shareholding of Promoters

S. No. | Shareholder’s | Shareholding at the beginning | Shareholder’s | Share holding at the end of
Name of the year Name the year
No. of Shares | % of total | % of Shares No. of Shares |% of total % of %
Shares of | Pledged/ Shares of| Shares | change
the encumbered the Pledged/ | in share
Company to total Company | encumber | holding
shares ed tototal | during
shares | the year
01. J&K Power 2046229999 | 45.98 NIL J&K Power | 2299909997 | 40.85 NIL (-5.13)
Development Development
Corporation Corporation Ltd.
Limited
02. Rajat Gupta 1 0.00 NIL Rajat  Gupta 1 0.00 NIL NIL
(Representative (Representative
of NHPC) of NHPC)
03. NHPC Limited | 2404111282 | 54.02 NIL NHPC Limited 3330101282 | 59.14 NIL 512
04. Suresh Kumar 1 0.00 NIL Suresh Kumar 1 0.00 NIL NIL
(Representative (Representative of
of JKSPDCL) JKSPDCL)
05. Raj Kumar 1 0.00 NIL Rajneesh 1 0.00 NIL NIL
Chaudhary Agarwal
(Representative (Representative of
of NHPC) NHPC)
06. R.P.Goyal 1 0.00 NIL R.P. Goyal 1 0.00 NIL NIL
(Representative (Representative of
of NHPC) NHPC)
07. Uday Shankar 1 0.00 NIL Narendra Kumar 1 0.00 NIL NIL
Sahi (Representative
(Representative of NHPC)
of NHPC)
H.Rajesh Prasad 1 0.00 NIL NIL
(Administrative
Secretary JKPDD)
Pankaj Magotra 1 0.00 NIL NIL
(MD-JKSPDC)
Total Shares | 4450341286 100 NIL 5630011286 | 100 NIL NIL
Page 129




Chenab Valley
Projects Ltd

14" Annual Report
2024-25

(i)

Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change)

S.No. Shareholding in the beginning of the | Cumulative Shareholding during
year the year
No. of Shares % of total | No.of Shares | % of total shares
shares of the of the Company
Company
At the beginning of | 4450341286 100 5630011286 100
the year
Date wise Increase | Allotment of Additional
/ Decrease in Equity Shares to the
Promoters Share tune of Rs 2536800000
holding the year to JKSPDC Lid. &
specifying the Rs 9259900000 to NHPC
reasons for Ltd., during the vyear
increase / decrease | 2024-25. Total Additional
(e.g. allotment / Allotment during the Year
transfer / bonus / 2024-25 Rs. 11796700000.
sweat equity etc.) (1179670000 Equity
Shares @ Rs. 10/-)
At the End of the 4450341286 100 5630011286 | 100
year
(iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of
GDRs and ADRs):
S. Shareholding in the beginning of | Cumulative Shareholding during
No. the year the year

For Each of the Top
10 Shareholders

No. of Shares

% of total shares
of the Company

No. of Shares

% of total shares
of the Company

At the beginning of
the year

NIL

Date wise Increase /
Decrease in Share
holding during the
year specifying the
reasons for increase /
decrease (eg.
allotment / transfer /
bonus / sweat equity
etc.):

NIL

At the End of the year
(or on the date of
separation, if
separated during the
year)

—
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(v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:
S.No.| Name of the Director’s & Shareholding at the beginning Cumulative Shareholding during
KMP of the year (as on 01.04.2024) the year (01.04.2024 to 31.03.2025)
A Directors No. of % of total shares No. of Shares % of total Shares
Shares of the Company of the Company
1. | Sh. Suresh Kumar, IAS (Retd.) 1 1
(On behalf of JKSPDC)
2. | Sh. H. Rajesh Prasad, IAS 1
(On behalf of JKSPDC)
3. | Sh. Santosh D. Vaidya, IAS
(On behalf of JKSPDC)
4. | Sh.R.P. Goyal 1 1
(On behalf of NHPC)
5. | Sh. Sanjay Kumar Singh
(On behalf of NHPC)
6. | Sh. Ramesh Mukhiya
(On behalf of NHPC)
7. | Smt. Madhusmita Pany
(On behalf of NHPC)
B KMP
1. | Sh. Ramesh Mukhiya
(Managing Director)
2. | Sh. Sudhir Anand
(Company Secretary)

INDEBTEDNESS

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment

Secured Loans Unsecured | Deposits | Total Indebtedness
excluding deposits Loans

Indebtedness at the beginning of NIL NIL NIL

the financial year

i) Principal Amount - - -

ii) Interest due but not paid NIL NIL NIL

iii) Interest accrued but not due - - -

Total (i+ii+iii) NIL NIL NIL

Change in Indebtedness during
the financial year

* Addition

* Reduction

Net Change

Indebtedness at the end of the
financial year

i) Principal Amount

ii) Interest due but not paid

iii) Interest accrued but not paid due

Total (i+ii+ii)
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VL.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and / or Manager:

S.No. | Particulars of Remuneration Name of MD / WTD / Manager Total Amount in Rs.
Managing Director -
Sh. Ramesh Mukhiya
(01.04.2024 to 31.03.2025)
1. Gross Salary -
a) Salary as per provisions 80,19,311 80,19,311
contained in Section 17(1) of the
Income Tax Act, 1961*
b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) 2,67,048 2,67,048
Income Tax Act, 1961
¢) Profits in lieu of salary under - - -
Section 17(3) Income Tax Act,
1961
2. Fee for attending Meeting - - NIL
3. Stock Option - - NIL
4, Sweat Equity - - NIL
5. Commission - - NIL
- as % of Profit - NIL
(PF Contribution from Employer) - - -
— others, specify....
6. Others, please specify** 8,43,929 8,43,929
Total (A) 91,30,288 91,30,288
Ceiling as per the Act NA | NA - NA

* Salary under Section 17(1) of the Income Tax Act, 1961 includes Performance Related Pay (PRP), Gratuity and EL Encashment
paid as per respective position held by the directors during that period.

** Others include EPF, Social Security Scheme & Pension Fund Contribution by employer and medical reimbursement (non-taxable)
etc. which were not included in point no. (1).
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B. Remuneration to other Directors:
S. No. Particulars of Name of MD / WTD / Manager Total Amount
Remuneration
1. Independent Directors - - - - NIL
* Fee for attending board - - - - NIL
committee meetings
* Commission - - - - NIL
* Others, please specify - - - - NIL
NIL
Total (1) - - - - NIL
2. Other Non — Executive Sh. Suresh - - - NIL
Directors Kumar
(Chairman)

Fee for attending board - - - - NIL
committee meetings
Commission - - - - NIL
Others, please specify - - - - NIL

- as % of Profit - - - - NIL
*others, specify.... 24.41,287 - - - 24.41,287
Total (2) - - - -
Total (B) = (1+2) 24,41,287 - - - 24,41,287
Total Managerial 24.41,287 - - - 24.41,287
Remuneration
Overall Ceiling as per the - - - - NIL
Act

* Remuneration w.e.f 01.04.2024 to 31.03.2025 (including GST under RCM).

C. Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel other than MD / MANAGER / WTD

S.No. | Particulars of Remuneration Key Managerial Personnel
Company Secretary Total
(Sudhir Anand)
1. Gross Salary -
a) Salary as per provisions contained in Section 17(1) 26,48,005 - 26,48,005
of the Income Tax Act, 1961
b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income — tax Act, 1961 68,664 - 68,664
c) Profits in lieu of Salary under Section 17(3) Income - - - NIL
tax Act, 1961
2. Stock Option - - NIL
3. Sweat Equity - - NIL

—
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4. Commission - - NIL

- as % of Profit - - NIL
- others, specify - -

5. Others, please specify* 2,70,969 - 2,70,969

Total 29,87,638 - 29,87,638
* Others include leave encashment, medical reimbursement, EPF, Social Security Scheme Contribution etc. which were not
included in point no. (1).

VII. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT / COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:

Type Section of the | Brief Details of Penalty / | Authority [RD | Appeal made, if
Companies Act | Description Punishment / INCLT/ any (give
Compounding Count] Details)

Fees imposed

A. COMPANY
Penalty NIL
Punishment NIL
Compounding | NIL
B. DIRECTORS
Penalty NIL
Punishment | NIL
Compounding | NIL
C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT
Penalty NIL
Punishment | NIL
Compounding | NIL

By Order of the Board of Directors

CHENAB VALLEY POWER PROJECTS LIMITED

Sd/-
Place: Jammu Suresh Kumar, IAS-(Retd.)
Dated: 05.08.2025 CHAIRMAN

DIN-06440021

—
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CHENAB VALLEY POWER PROJECTS LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT ON CSR ACTIVITIES
(FY 2024-25)




1. Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company:
CVPPL is committed to the concerns of its stakeholders and strives to promote and
maintain good standards of CSR and Sustainability in all its business activities through
its Corporate Social Responsibility and Sustainability Policy since 2017. To meet this
commitment CVPPL respects the rule of law, local communities and societies at large
and it makes conscious efforts to enhance the quality of life and environmental
sustainability through its CSR & Sustainability activities.

CSR & Sustainability Policy of CVPPL forms the basis of conducting CVPPL’s business in
a socially responsible manner with the aim to integrate the objectives of hydro power
development and long term growth of the Company with social responsibility and
sustainability by maintaining high level of organizational integrity and ethical
behaviour, in conformity with expected standards of transparency in reporting and
disclosing the performance in all spheres of activities and by understanding and
addressing the social, economic and environmental concerns of key stakeholders
directly impacted by Company’s operations and activities.

CVPPL Board has approved the CSR and Sustainability Policy of CVPPL in 37 Board
Meeting held on 12/12/2017 in pursuance to the provisions contained under Section
135 of the Companies Act 2013.

The Policy provides for the provisions pertaining to implementation of CSR activities
under various sectors in pursuance to the Companies Act 2013, Schedule VII of the Act,
CSR Rules and amendments thereof.

The CSR & Sustainability Policy of CVPPL has been placed in public domain on the
website of CVPPL at the link https://www.cvppindia.com/CSR.aspx?Policies.

Highlights of the Policy

The budget provision for CSR & Sustainability works for a financial year will be 2% of
the average net profits made by CVPPL during the three immediately preceding
financial years. Since, the commercial operation of the Projects of CVPPL is yet to be
started, the profit in CVPPL is based mainly from the interest incurred on FDR.

Average net profit of the Company shall be calculated in accordance with the
provisions of Section 198 of the Companies Act 2013, as amended.

Being a hydro power developer, CVPPL will undertake CSR & Sustainability activities
primarily near to its projects/power stations or Corporate Office. It will be ensured that
at least 80% of the CSR & Sustainability activities are executed in and around CVPPL’s
Projects, Power Stations and Offices preferably within 25 Km and in the District where
the Project is located. However, other locations beyond 25 Km may also be chosen,
based on the needs and as per the direction of Government of India on National
Schemes / Campaigns, wherein up to 20% amount of CSR Budget may be spent, for the
larger benefit of society/environment.

The CSR activities shall be undertaken by CVPPL in accordance with Schedule-VIl of the
Companies Act, 2013.
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Expenditure on any other activity/item not in conformity with Schedule-VIl of the
Companies Act 2013, as amended from time to time, will not be accounted towards
CSR expenditure.

CSR Fund Allocation and Expenditure by CVPPL (year-wise):

Mandatory Fund Actual Expenditure
Allocation (Rs.) (Rs.)
2017-18 2% of average Net Profit of previous three years 6,94,928.00 6,98,460.00

2018-19 2% of average Net Profit of previous three years 12,39,193.00 12,39,820.00
2019-20 2% of average Net Profit of previous three years 22,54,878.00 13,11,553.00
2020-21 2% of average Net Profit of previous three years 29,43,495.00 42,47,040.00
2021-22 2% of average Net Profit of previous three years 26,49,830.00 * 3,11,627.00
2022-23 2% of average Net Profit of previous three years 22,13,210.00** 29,66,074.00%***
2023-24 2% of average Net Profit of previous three years 34,57,000.00# 24,97,711.004#
2024-25 2% of average Net Profit of previous three years 46,88,047.00 43,15,883.00###

Total 2,01,40,581.00 1,75,88,168.00
*An amount of Rs. 1,20,073.00 was approved by the Board for setting off against the requirement to
spend in FY 2021-22. After setting off Rs. 1,20,073.00 from the 2% of average net profit of preceding
three financial years (i.e. Rs. 26,49,830.00) the net CSR obligation for FY 2021-22 was Rs. 25,29,757.00.

Year Basis of Allocation as Percentage of Profit

** An amount of Rs. 1,20,073.00 was approved by the Board for setting off against the requirement to
spend in FY 2022-23. After setting off Rs. 1,20,073.00 from the 2% of average net profit of preceding
three financial years (i.e. Rs. 22,13,210.00) the net CSR obligation for FY 2022-23 was Rs. 20,93,137.00.

***This includes the expenditure of Rs. 20,65,195.00 towards CSR activities of FY 2022-23, Rs. 27,942.00
transferred to Prime Minister’s Relief Fund and Rs. 8,72,937.00 incurred towards CSR activities
(ongoing projects) of FY 2021-22 from unspent amount of FY 2021-22.

# An amount of Rs. 1,20,073.00 was approved by the Board for setting off against the requirement to
spend in FY 2023-24. After setting off Rs. 1,20,073.00 from the 2% of average net profit of preceding
three financial years (i.e. Rs. 34,57,466.00) the net CSR obligation for FY 2023-24 was Rs. 33,37,392.00.

## This includes the expenditure of Rs. 14,70,000.00 towards CSR activities of FY 2023-24, Rs. 5,000.00
transferred to Prime Minister’s Relief Fund and Rs. 10,22,711.00 incurred towards CSR activities
(ongoing projects) of FY 2021-22 from unspent amount of FY 2021-22.

### This includes the expenditure of Rs. 19,88,047.00 towards CSR activities of FY 2024-25, Rs.
19,80,990.00 incurred towards Ongoing CSR activities of FY 2023-24 from unspent amount of FY 2023-
24 and Rs. 3,46,846.00 — balance unspent amount from Ongoing CSR Activities of FY 2021-22
transferred to Prime Minister’s Relief Fund.

Sector wise CSR Expenditure by CVPPL (year-wise):

Expenditure (in Rs.)

Reducing in-

Education Healthcare Women |equalities faced| Disaster
Sector Sector Empowerment by socially[Management

backward groups

6,68,560.00] 29,900.00 0.00 0. 0.00 0.00 6,98,460.00
7,85,234.00 4,54,586.00 0.00 0. 0.00 0.00 12,39,820.00
7,72,517.00 39,000.00 1,24,125.00 1,76,229.000 1,99,682.00 0.00, 13,11,553.00
14,66,668.00f  25,81,132.00 0.00 0.| 1,99,240.00 0.00, 42,47,040.00
0.00 3,11,627.00 0.00 0. 0.00 0.00 3,11,627.00

0.00] 29,38,132.00 0.00, 0.00 27,942.000 29,66,074.00

0.00, 24,92,711.00 0.00 0.00 5,000.00, 24,97,711.00

Contribution to
Central Govt.
Funds




2024-25 0.00] 39,69,037.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 3,46,846.000 43,15,883.00
Total 36,92,979.00, 1,28,16,125.00, 1,24,125.00 1,76,229.00, 3,98,922.00 3,79,788.00 1,75,88,168.00

CSR Activities implemented in FY 2024-25:

Annual Action Plan on CSR for FY 2024-25 was approved by the Board of CVPPL
wherein following CSR activities were proposed to be undertaken in FY 2024-25 with
an estimated outlay of Rs. 48,37,951.00 (Rupees Forty-Eight Lakh Thirty-Seven
Thousand Nine Hundred and Fifty-One only), to be directly implemented by CVPPL
Projects in their respective areas in compliance to the theme notified by Government
of India 'Health and Nutrition', after following all codal formalities and guidelines.

Activity to be

Sl. No. Name of CSR Activity implemented by Estimated Cost of Activity
(Rs.)

18,54,500.00

Pakal Dul HEP

Providing of Medical Equipment / Lab
Equipment / Health / Nutritional
Supplements / Other related equipments
[ apparatus* Kwar HEP 14,00,000.00

Kiru HEP 14,49,904.00

Organising Medical Camp Pakal Dul HEP 1,33,547.00

TOTAL 48,37,951.00

The above CSR activities were initially approved as a single-year activity for
implementation in FY 2024-25 and involved the purchase of Medical Equipment / Lab
Equipments / Health / Medical supplements, wherein the specifications of the Medical
Equipment were to be decided by an Official of the rank of CMO from the
Administration of the concerned area. Further, the tendering procedure for making
purchase of the Medical Equipment / Medicines & health supplements also takes due
time for successful completion. Due to the involvement of time-lagging procedures,
the above cited CSR activities of Kiru & Kwar HEPs could not be completed within the
prescribed time-frame of the financial year 2024-25.

Subsequently, the Board reviewed the status / progress of implementation of the CSR
activities and approved extension in time duration for implementation of the activities
of Kiru & Kwar HEPs and thus approved these activities as Ongoing CSR Activity with
year-wise re-allocation of the funds. An amount of Rs. 19,88,047.00 has been incurred
against the allocated budget of Rs. 48,37,951.00 and the unspent amount of Rs.
28,49,904.00 in respect of Kiru and Kwar HEPs was transferred into “CVPPL Unspent
CSR Account for FY 2024-25” within the specified time period of thirty days from the
end of financial year. The unspent amount shall be spent, within the approved
stipulated time period, in pursuance to the applicable CSR norms and the CSR Policy of
CVPPL.

In addition to above, an expenditure of Rs. 19,80,990.00 was also incurred in FY 2024-
25 on “Ongoing CSR Activities of FY 2023-24" from “Unspent CSR Account for FY 2023-




5.

24. The balance unspent amount of Rs. 1,010.00 from “Ongoing CSR Activities of FY
2023-24" shall be deposited to a fund specified in Schedule VII as per Sub-Rule (2) of
Rule 5 contained under Companies (CSR Policy) Amendment Rules 2021, within a
period of six months of the expiry of the Financial Year i.e. 30th September,2025.

The photographs of implementation of the CSR activity in FY 2024-25 by Pakal Dul, Kiru
and Kwar HEP’s are provided in Appendix-1 and the newspaper clippings of the event
are provided in Appendix-2. The implementation of approved activities was duly
monitored by the Departmental Monitoring Committees constituted at Project Level
and also by the Nodal Officer (CSR) in pursuance to the CSR Policy of CVPPL. Further,
the funds allocated for FY 2024-25 have been utilised for the purpose and in the manner as
approved by the Board.

Composition of CSR Committee:

In pursuance to Section 135(9) of the Companies Act, the requirement for constitution
of CSR Committee is not applicable to CVPPL and as such the functions of CSR
Committee are being discharged by the Board of CVPPL.

A CSR committee of the Board comprising of below Board members is governing the
works of CSR of CVPPL:

Name of Director Designation / Nature of Directorship

Chairman
Sh. H. Rajesh Prasad, IAS

(Nominee Director)
Member

Sh. R. P. Goyal . .
(Nominee Director)

. Member
Sh. Ramesh Mukhiya

(Managing Director)

Provide the web-link where Composition of CSR Committee, CSR Policy and CSR
Projects approved by the Board are disclosed on the website of the Company:

The CSR Policy and other details are placed in public domain on the website of CVPPL
at the link https://www.cvppindia.com/CSR.aspx?Policies.

Provide the details of Impact Assessment of CSR Projects carried out in pursuance of
sub rule (3) of rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules,
2014, if applicable (attach the report):

Not applicable.

(a) Average net profit of the company as per sub-section (5) of section 135:

Despite there is no profit from the core activities as the commercial operation of the
Projects of CVPPL is yet to be started, the profit in CVPPL is based mainly from the
interest incurred on FDR (Rs. 23,44,02,350.00)



https://www.cvppindia.com/CSR.aspx?Policies

(b) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per sub-section (5) of section
135:

Rs. 46,88,047.00

(c) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous
financial years:

Nil.

(d) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any:

NIL.

(e) Total CSR obligation for the financial year [(b)+(c)-(d)]:

Rs. 46,88,047.00

(a) Amount spent on CSR Project (both Ongoing Project and other than Ongoing Project):

Rs. 43,15,883.00 (during the FY 2024-25)

(b) Amount spent on Administrative Overheads: Nil

(c) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: Nil

(d) Total amount spent for the Financial Year [(a)+(b)+(c)]: Rs. 43,15,883.00

(e) CSR amount spent or unspent for the Financial Year:

Amount Unspent (in Rs.)

Total Amount transferred to any fund
Total Amount| Total Amount transferred to

spent for the| Unspent CSR Account as per
Financial Year| sub-section (6) of section 135.
(in Rs.)

specified under Schedule VII as per
second proviso to sub-section (5) of
section 135.

A . Date of Name of the A . Date of
moun moun
transfer Fund transfer

PM’s
39,69,037.00 | 28,49,904.00 | 29/04/2025 National | 3,46,846.00] 27/09/2024
Relief Fund




(f) Excess amount for set off, if any: Nil

Particular

()

Two percent of average net profit of the company as per sub section (5) of section 135.

Total Amount spent for the Financial Year

Excess amount spent for the Financial Year [(ii)-(i)]

Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial
years, if any.

(v) | Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years [(iii)-(iv)]

NA: Not Applicable

7. Details of Unspent Corporate Social Responsibility amount for the preceding three
Financial Years

Amount Amount transferred to a fund as
Balance Amount

transferred specified under Schedule VIl as per -
remaining

to Unspent Amount in | Amount i i
_ p Unspent spent in second proviso to sub section (5) of to be
Preceding] CSR

Einancial | Account CSR Accounty the. section 135 (in Rs.) spent i.n Deficiency,
under sub | under sub Financial succeeding if any

; Year (in Financial
section (6) | section (6) N :
ame of | Amount Date of
of section | of section Rs.) Years (in

R the Fund (in Rs.) transfer Rs.)
135 (in Rs.) | 135 (in Rs.)

Year

Stands
transferred
on
27/09/2024

PM’s
2021-22 | 22,42,494.00| 3,46,846.00 National 3,46,846/-
Relief Fund

2022-23

Shall be
transferred
by
30/09/2025

PM’s
2023-24 | 19,82,000.00f 1,010.00 {19,80,990.00 National
Relief Fund

8. Whether any capital asset have been created or acquired through Corporate Social
Responsibility amount spent in the financial year: NO

If yes, enter the number of capital assets created / acquired.

Furnish the details relating to such assets(s) so created or acquired through Corporate
Social Responsibility amount spent in the Financial Year.




Short particulars of the Pin code of the Date of |Amountof CSR | Details of entity / Authority /
property or assets(s) property or creation | amountspent | beneficiary of the registered
[including complete asset(s) owner

address and location of

the property]

NA

(All the fields should be captured as appearing in the revenue record, flat no, house no,

Municipal office / Municipal Corporation / Gram panchayat are to be specified and also
the area of the immovable as well as boundaries)

NA: Not Applicable

Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average
net profit as per section 135(5):

The commercial operation of the Projects is yet to start, and thus no profit has been
earned from the CVPPL’s core activities. However, to build good will and benefit the
local populace in Project vicinity, CVPPL has been engaging in CSR Activities utilizing the
profit accrued from the interest on its Fixed Deposit Receipts (FDRs).

The activities under Annual Action Plan on CSR for the FY 2024-25 involved the purchase
of Medical Equipment / Medicines & health supplements / other related equipments,

etc. wherein the specifications of the Medical Equipment are to be decided by an
Official of the rank of CMO from the Administration of the concerned area. Further, the
procurement and tendering procedure also takes due time for successful completion. As
such, the completion of the CSR Activities of Kiru & Kwar HEP could not be materialized
fully within the prescribed time-frame i.e. 31.03.2025.

The Annual Action Plan on CSR for FY 2024-25, has thus, been amended by the CVPPL Board

and the activity has been approved as Ongoing Activity with extension in implementation
schedule.

SD/- SD/-
H. Rajesh Prasad, IAS Ramesh Mukhiya

Chairman, CSR Committee Managing Director CVPPL
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Appendix-01
Photographs of CSR Activity implemented by CVPPL in FY 2024-25

Project: PAKAL DUL HEP

Handing over of Healthcare items to Aadarsh Bal Niketan HS School Kishtwar by Pakal Dul
HEP on 25-03-2025 under CSR Plan 2024-25

Handing over of Healthcare items to Islamia Faridia School Kishtwar by Pakal Dul HEP on
25-03-2025 under CSR Plan 2024-25
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Handing over of Laboratory Equipment to PHC Dachhan by Pakal Dul HEP on 26-03-2025
under CSR Plan 2024-2025
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Handing over of X-ray machine to PHC Chatroo by Pakal Dul HEP on 25-03-2025
under CSR Plan 2024-25
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Free Medical Camp organised at Village Dool by Pakal Dul HEP on 24-03-2025 under
CSR Plan 2024-25




Project: KIRU HEP

Chenab Valley Power Projects Limited.
Faera ¥t wra e Rifies

HEALTH & WELLNESS GENTIE
P H C KEERU

Medical Block Kishtwar

NOED OVER TO;
Dr. Devansh Yadav (1AS)
(Deputy Commissioner Kishiwar) ||

VENUE : PHCKiru, Kisttwar
Date - 15.08.2024

Handing over of Medicines, Health Supplements and Bio-Chemistry Analyser to District
Administration, Kishtwar by Kiru HEP under Ongoing CSR Activity for FY 2023-24




Handing over of Health / Nutritional Supplements to District Medical Authorities, Kishtwar for
Primary Health Centre-Kiru, Kishtwar by Kiru HEP under Ongoing CSR Activity for FY 2023-24

Project: KWAR HEP

Handing over of Computerized Radiography System for X-Ray to District Hospital, Kishtwar by
Kwar HEP under Ongoing CSR Activity for FY 2023-24
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Appendix-02

Media Coverage of the CSR Events in FY 2024-25

mism that the 70 planned
KKGs would be operational
within the next month, un-
derscoring the district’s
focus on leveraging agri-
culture as a key economic
driver.

NAUluvIiaLed e
food bumpers
distribution
function

augurated the food bumpers distri-
bution function at Batapora Stadium,
here.

The function was organised by Or-
phan in Need, a Srinagar based
non-governmental organisation and
was attended by various civil society

DH Kishtwar gets Computerized
Radiography System for X-Ray

Kishtwar, Nov 09: In asig-
nificant step towards enhanc-
ing healthcare services in
the district, Deputy Com-
missioner Rajesh Kumar
Shavan on Saturday inau-
gurated a Computerized
Radiography (CR) System
for X-ray imaging at the
Outpatient Department
(OPD) of District Hospital
Kishtwar.

The advanced facility was
provided to the Hospital by
KWARHEP (CVPPL)under
Corporate Social Responsi-
bility (CSR) & Sustainable

 Activity 2023-24.

The newly inaugurated
system, with an estimated
cost of Rs 101akh, represents

- an upgrade in radiology
services, enablingfaster and
more accurate imaging to
streamline diagnostic pro-
cesses for OPD patients.

By utilizing advanced dig-
ital technology, the system
not only enhances image
quality but also reduces

_ patientexposure toradiation,

makingit a safer, more effi-
cientoption for both patients
and medical personnel.
The DC Kishtwar empha-
sized the administration’s
commitment to improve
medical infrastructure and
providing quality healthcare
servicestoresidents of Kisht-
war and surrounding areas,
stating, "The installation of
this CR system will signifi-
cantly enhance our diagnos-
tic capabilities, ensuring that

Rising Kasmie,
m“ : : :l E y ..m

RISING KASHMIR Newspaper dated 10.11.2024
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patie_nts receive timely and
precise care."

The Computer Radiogra-
phy System is expected to
serte hundreds of patients
monthly, reducing the load
onexistingfacilitiesavailable
thereby providing areliable
and accessible option for
essential diagnostic imaging.
The CVPPL Kwar HEP has
put in an order of another
Rs.70lakh equipment for the
Hospital.

"$99




UDAAN Newspaper dated 10.11.2024
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EARLY TIMES Newspaper dated 10.11.2024
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Inauguration of Computed Radiography
System for X-Ray at D1str1ct Klshtwar Hospltal

HIMALAYAN MAILNEWS
JAMMU, NOV o9

Chenab Valley Power Pro-
jects Ltd. (CVPPL) is com-
mitted for providing en-
hanced facilities by
maintaining a trust to social
responsibility and improve-
ment of society with the re-
sponsibility towards social
cause and upliftment. Con-
tinuing with the responsibil-
ity towards social cause, to-
day on ogth November
2024, Rajesh Kumar Sha-
van, Dy. Commissioner -
Kishtwar inaugurated the
"Computed Radiography
System for X-Ray" at Dis-
trict Hospital Kishtwar
handed over by Shashi Kant
Giri, Head of Project, Kwar
H.E. Project under CSR &
Sustainable Activity. The
event was also graced by the
Dr. Rajinder Kumar, Chief
Medical Officer, Kishtwar,

Dr. Yudhvir Singh Kotwal
Medical Superintendent
DHK and other officers.

Rajesh Kumar Shavan,

Dy. Commissioner - Kisht-
war and Shashi Kant Giri,
Head of Project, Kwar H.E.
Project, also had progres-

sive discussion related to
the upcoming CSR Activi-
ties and other developmen-
tal works.

ASCOMS Hospital hosts Pre-Conference
Workshop for DIAGNOSTICON'25

HIMALAYAN MAILNEWS
JAMMU, NOV o9

ASCOMS & Hospital, in
collaboration with the Con-
sortium of Accredited
Healthcare Organisations
(CAHO), successfully orga-
nized a pre-conference
workshop for DIAGNOSTI-
CON'25 on 8th November
2024, Friday at the AS-
COMS Auditorium. The
workshop, held with the
aim of enhancing knowl-
edge on healthcare accredi-

Governi Body), Dr. Bella
Mahajan (HOD, Microbiol-
ogy) and senior faculty

- —
healthcare institutions. Dr.

Malini R. Capoor (VMMC &
SJH, Delhi) discussed "Bio-

'(VMMC & Safdarjung Hos-

pital, Delhi) covered "Care
of Patients". Dr. Neelam

HIMALAYAN MAIL Newspaper dated 10.11.2024

Page|16




AMKHLIN”Pnhﬁ

DH Kishtwar gets Computerized
Radiography System for X-Ray

NIN NEWS SERVICE
KISHTWAR, NOV 09

In a significant step
towards enhancing
healthcare services in the
district, Deputy
Commissioner Rajesh
Kumar Shavan on Saturday
inaugurated a
Computerized
Radiography (CR) System
for X-ray imaging at the
Qutpatient Department
(OPD) of District Hospital
» Kishtwar.

. The advanced facility was
provided to the Hospital by
KWAR HEP (CVPPL)
under Corporate Social
Responsibility (CSR) &
Sustainable Activity 2023-
24,

The newly

system, with an estimated digital
lakh, system not only enhances

cost of Rs 10

technology, the

represents an upgrade in image quality but also

radiology

services, reduces patient exposure to

enabling faster and more radiation, making it a safer, pro

| accurate

imaging  to more efficient option for ludﬁmr
diagnostic % Wu“*mdw

¥ surrounding areas, stating,
* "The installation of this CR

system will significantly
enhance our diagnostic
capabilities, ensuring that
patients receive timely and

Computer
Radiography System is
expected to serve hundreds -
of patients. —monthly,.
reducing the load on*
existing facilities available

 thereby providing a reliable -

I essential

p Imaging. *
' The CVPPL Ku pmm'

and acoessiblq: option for "
dugnosue.

0

- put in an orde dfmo

inaugurated By utilizing advanced The

adm-,iniétration's
commitment to improve

P i

renﬁmbofl@dﬂmmd

Rs.70 lakh equipment ﬁar-
the Hospital. ”
The maugu:ahon ‘was
conducted in the presence

of Shashi Kant Giri, HOP
KWAR, HEP CVPPL

Kishtwar; Dr. Rajinder

Kumar, CMO Kishtwar;

Dr.Yudhvir Singh Kotwal,

MS DH Kishtmxnndothe:
hnpihlshff

NORTH-IN-NEWS Newspaper dated 10.11.2024

-
yto

port
De-

and
isre:

J??ﬁ?iﬁ@?&%ﬁ%%???%%%-




U ULIDARs 2w~ ~mm =

anua
lowing them to receive cus-
tomlzed assistance. Follow-
ing the thorough verification
of documents, beneﬁcnancq
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DH Kishtwar gets Computerized

Radiography System for

X-Ray

tient exposure to radiation,
making it a safer, more effi-
cient option for both pa-
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CVPPL organizes Medical
Camp at Pdkdl ])ul

NL CORRESPONDENT

Kishtwar: The Pakal Dul
Hydroelectric Project in
Kishtwar organized a Free
Medical Camp for the resi-
lents of Arzi, Kwar, Dool,
Cherji, and Kwar Tanji vil-
lages today. The camp was in-
wgurated by Prabhat Kumar,
5M (Power House), and fea-
tured medical professionals
Dr. Vijay Kumar from
CVPPL, Dr. Aqgib Javed, and
Dr. Ayesha from the J&K
[lealth Department, Kisht-
war. This initiative was part
>f the Corporate Social Re-
sponsibility (CSR) plan for
2024-25 by CVPPL, aimed at
providing health services to
local communities. A dedi-
:ated team of doctors and
paramedics offered free con-
sultations and medications to
yver 158 patients, including 78
wvomen, by 5:00 PM. The camp
was particularly beneficial for
the elderly and women in the
region. The local residents ex-

pre%sed deep gratltwie to the
Managing Director of CVPPL.,
Ramesh Mukhiva; General
Manager (HoP) of the Pakal
Dul Project, Vishal Anand;
and other senior officials for
their efforts in organizing this
medical camp for the welfare
of the local community.
CVPPL management also ex-
tended their thanks to the Dis-
trict Commissioner (DC)
Kishtwar, Rajesh Kumar
Shavan, and the Chief Med-
ical Officer (CMO) Kishtwar,
Rajinder Singh, for their sup-
portand cooperation in ensur-
ing the success of the medical
camp.

CVPPL provides computed radiography system,
Medical Equlpments to Health Deptt Klshtwar

HIMALAYAN MAILNEWS
JAMMU, MAR 25

CVPPL Pakal Dul Hydro-
electric Project Kishtwar
provided Medical and Labo-
ratory equipment to Health
& Family Welfare Depart-
ment Kishtwar, Islamia
Faridia Higher Secondary
School and Adarsh Bal
Vidya Niketan in Kishtwar
with the cumulative cost of
Rs. 11.65 lakhs under CSR
Plan 2024-25. BMO, Dr.
Saima Agoo, profusely
thanked Managing Director
CVPPL, Ramesh Mukhiya,
and Vishal Anand, HoP
Pakal Dul HEP for provid-
ing a Computed Radiogra-
phy System to facilitate dig-
ital imaging.

This machine will meet

the emergent requirement
of local patients who had to
travel long distances for Ra-
diography requirements.
Principal IFHS School,
Mehboob Kazi praised the
efforts of the CVPPL for
providing medical equip-
ment to the school's Dis-

pensary. Rajesh Sharma
Principal ABN School ac-
knowledged the continuous
efforts of CVPPL in the
growth and development of
School. CVPPL would be
spending an amount of ap-
proximately Rs. 50 Lakhs
under CSR Plans during the

Page|19

current FY on various
Health and Nutrition re-
lated activities in Kishtwar.

Vishal Anand thanked
DC Kishtwar and CMO
Kishtwar for their consis-
tent guidance and support
in implementing CSR Ac-
tivities.
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CVPPL Pakal Dul Hydroelectric Project Organizes
Free Medlcal Camp in Kishtwar

BABER FAR00Q
KISHTWAR, MAR 24

In a significant initiative towards
community welfare, CVPPL Pakal
Dul Hydroelectric Project Kishtwar
organized a free medical camp today
for the residents of Arzi, Kwar, Dool,
Chexjx and Tanji villages. The camp

was inaugurated by Prabhat Kumar,

GM Power House, in the presence of
a large gathering of local people.This
medical camp is part of the
Corporate Social Responsibility
(CSR) Plan 2024-25 of CVPPL. A ded-
icated team of three doctors, includ-
ing one female doctor, provided free
medical consultations and distrib-

uted medicines to over 200 patients,
including 85 women.The camp con-
tinue till late evening ensuring that
more local residents, especially the
elderly and women, receive neces-
sary medical care.The local commu-
nity expressed immense gratitude
towards Vishal Anand, General
Manager & Head of Project, and sen-
ior officials of Pakal Dul Project, for
organizing the medical camp.
Residents of Arzi, Kwar, Dool, Cherji,
and Tanji villages appreciated
CVPPL's efforts, acknowledging the
significant health benefits this initia-
tive provided to the people of the
region. They also expressed their
hope for more such welfare programs
in the future.CVPPL remains com-
mitted to the well-being of local com-
munities and will continue to under-
take initiatives that positively impact
the lives of people in the project-
affected areas.




NL CORRESPONDENT

Kishtwar: CVPPL’s Pakal
Dul Hydroelectric Project
(Kishtwar) has donated med-
ical and laboratory equip-
ment worth Rs. 11.65 lakhs to
several institutions under its
Corporate Social Responsi-
bility (CSR) Plan for 2024-25.
The donations were made to
the Health & Family Welfare
Department Kishtwar, Is-
lamia Faridia Higher Sec-
ondary School, and Adarsh
Bal Vidya Niketan, with the
aim of improving healthcare
and educational facilities in
the region.

The donation includes a
Computed Radiography
System, which was handed
over to the Health Depart-

ment to meet the urgent radi-
ography needs of local pa-
tients, reducing their need to
travel long distances for
such services. BMO Dr.
Saima Agoo expressed her

Snarca nawural nernage. 10e occasion was gracca oy

CVPPL donates medical
equipment to Health dept

gratitude towards CVPPL’s
Managing Director Ramesh
Mukhiya and Vishal Anand,
HoP Pakal Dul HEP, for the
contribution.

Mehboob Kazi, Principal
of Islamia Faridia Higher
Secondary School, praised
CVPPL for enhancing the
school’s dispensary with
vital medical equipment,
while Rajesh Sharma, Prin-
cipal of Adarsh Bal Vidya
Niketan, acknowledged the
continued support from
CVPPL in the school’s devel-
opment.

CVPPL also plans to allo-
cate approximately Rs. 50
lakhs in the current fiscal
year for various health and
nutrition activities under its
CSR initiatives in Kishtwar.
Vishal Anand thanked the
DC Kishtwar and CMO
Kishtwar for their unwaver-
ing guidance and support in
implementing these CSR
projects.

WCI-DCIE 2O nana i nanda.

COMPUTED RADIOGRAPHY SYSTEM & MEDICAL EQUIPMENTS
PROVIDED TO HEALTH DEPT. KISIITWAII & SGHﬂﬂlS BY IWPP |

KISHTWAR | 25 March 2025
CVPPL Pakal Dul Hydroelectric Project
Kishtwar provided Medical and Laboratory
equipment to Health & Family Welfare
Department Kishtwar, Islamia Faridia
Higher Secondary School and Adarsh Bal
Vidya Niketan in Kishtwar with the
cumulative cost of Rs. 11.65 lakhs under
CSR Plan 2024-25. BMO, Dr. Saima Agoo,
profusely thanked Managing Dm.uor _z=
VPPL, Ramesh Mukhiya, and Vishal [*"
Anand, HoP Pakal Dul HEP for providing a
Computed Radiography System to facilitate
digital imaging. This machine will meet the
emergent requirement of local patients who
had to travel long distances for Radiography requirements.

Principal IFHS School, Mehboob Kazi praised the efforts of

the CVPPL for providing medical equipment to the school's
Dispensary. Rajesh Sharma Principal ABN School
acknowledged the continuous efforts of CVPPL in the
growth and development of School.

CVPPL would be spcndlng an amount of
approximately Rs. 50 Lakhs under CSR Plans during
the current FY on various Health and Nutrition related
activities in Kishtwar. Vishal Anand thanked DC
Kishtwar and CMO Kishtwar for their consistent
guidance and support in implementing CSR Activities.




Subject: Certificate as per the provisions of sub-section (5) Section 4 of the Companies (CSR
policy) Amendment Rules, 2021.

As per the provisions of sub-section (5) of Section 4 of the Companies (CSR Policy) Amendment
Rules, 2021, it is hereby certified that amount of Rs. 39,69,037/- (Rupees Thirty-Nine Lakhs
Sixty-Nine Thousand Thirty-Seven only) has been utilized on CSR activities in the FY 2024-25 by
CVPPL for the purpose and in the manners as approved by the Board of CVPPL. The details are
as under:

Name [ Ongoing project Other than going project ‘! Total
of i | Unspent—- '-Ur;;ﬁenf _Arnat_int ;’Balanée ]Tota_lm_ | Amount | A'T'f""“t ;
Project | Amount | Amount | utilized in | Unspent | Amount | utilized in | utilized in |
of FY | of FY | FY 2024-25 Amount ' allocated Fy 2024- FY 2024-
202122 | 202324 | (Rs.) lof FY for  FY 25(Rs) | 25(Rs) |
(Rs.) | (Rs.) ' | 2023-24 2024-25
? (Rs.) (Rs.) | |
| Pakal 2,46,018 - 2,46,018 - 19,388,047 | 19,88,047 | 22,34,065 "
Dul HEP | i
Kiru 1 1,00,828 | 9,82,000 | 10,82,828 - 14,49,904 @ - 10,82,828
HEP | S . — I
Kwar - 10,00,000 | 9,98,990 - 14,00,000 | - 9,98,990
HEP
Total 3,46,846 | 19,82,000 | 23,27,836# | - | 48,37,951 | 19,88,047 | 43,15,883

# Balance Unspent Amount of F.Y, 2021-22 of Rs. 3,46,846/- (Pakal Dul HEP- Rs, 2,46,018/-
and Kiru HEP- Rs. 1,00,828/-) has been deposited with PM’s National Relief Fund during the

F.Y. 2024-25.
5, /Llr};FJ h c

Head of Fi ance
Corporate Officer, CVPPL

oatet 17 0 6:2025 Zeeqe |00
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Annexure-VI

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

I.  INDUSTRY STRUCTURE AND DEVELOPMENT

India is fortunate to be endowed with a diverse range of primary energy sources, including
coal, hydropower, uranium/thorium, and renewable energy. Among these, hydropower stands
out as the only renewable resource that has been historically recognized for its economic
viability, operational flexibility, and long-term sustainability. Its development plays a pivotal

role in ensuring the energy security of the nation.

Hydropower is a clean, renewable, and non-polluting energy source with several inherent
advantages. Hydroelectric stations possess the unique ability for rapid start-up, shutdown,
and load modulation, making them highly adaptable to fluctuations in demand and ideal for
meeting peak power requirements. Moreover, the cost of hydro generation is inflation-free

and tends to decrease over time, unlike fossil fuel-based generation.

Hydropower projects are characterized by their long operational life, often exceeding 50
years, and play a crucial role in conserving scarce fossil fuels. In addition, their development
contributes to economic up liftment of remote and backward regions, providing infrastructure,
employment, and opportunities for local development.

As of March 31, 2025, India’s total installed power generation capacity stood at 475,210 MW,

with the following contributions:

e Thermal: 221,828 MW

e Renewable Energy (RE): 220,100 MW (including small hydro)
e  Hydropower (Large Hydro): 47,730 MW

e Nuclear: 8,180 MW

For FY 202425, a capacity addition target of 19,680 MW was set, comprising:
e 14,040 MW (Thermal)
e 3,790 MW (Hydro)
e 1,900 MW (Nuclear)
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Against this target, by March 31, 2025, a total capacity of 33,241 MW was added, including:
e 3,718 MW (Thermal)
e 800 MW (Hydro)
e 29,523 MW from Renewable Energy (including small hydro projects)

Despite these additions, India has commissioned only about 52,828 MW of its estimated
hydropower potential of 150,000 MW. A significant portion of this untapped potential lies in
the Himalayan and hill states/UTs, including Arunachal Pradesh, Uttarakhand, Himachal
Pradesh, Sikkim, and Jammu & Kashmir. These regions represent the next frontier for

hydropower expansion.

The rapid increase in solar capacity, which is diurnal and intermittent by nature, highlights the
growing importance of hydropower for grid balancing and peak load support. With its peaking
capability, hydropower is uniquely positioned to complement variable renewable sources and

ensure grid reliability.

Beyond energy generation, storage-based hydropower projects offer multiple co-benefits
such as flood control, irrigation support, water supply, tourism promotion, and local
employment generation. These benefits further reinforce hydropower's role in delivering long-
term water and energy security, as well as its contribution to India’s decarbonisation goals.

The industry landscape and policy environment indicate strong tailwinds for sustained growth
in the hydropower sector. With a substantial untapped resource base, increasing demand for
flexible generation, and a growing need for grid stability, hydropower is poised to play a

central role in India’s transition to a cleaner and more resilient energy future.

II. STRENGTH

e CVPPL is developing four mega projects on river Chenab and its tributaries and have
gained wide experience and expertise in development of large hydro power projects.

e Being the subsidiary company of NHPC, the valuable guidance of premier hydro
company of India is being lent to CVPPL for complete design of hydro power projects,
large value contract award etc.

e CVPPL has competent and committed workforce. In terms of Articles of Association of

the Company, the manpower required for the implementation of CVPPL Projects shall

Page 160



CVPP’

Chenab Valley

Power ProjectsLtd

be provided or lend to the Company on secondment/ transfer/ deputation basis by
NHPC Limited and Jammu & Kashmir State Power Development Corporation Limited
(JKSPDCL). The workforce deputed by NHPC and JKSPDC has extensive experience
in the industryand are strengthening the cadre of CVPPL with knowledge and hands-on
information for constructing large hydro powers.CVPPL fully recognize that the
contribution of its employees is integral to the achievement of its ambitious plans and
the skill, industry knowledge and operating experience of these executives provide the
Company with a significant competitive advantage.

CVPPL has signed Power Purchase Agreements for Pakal Dul HE project, Kiru HE
Project and Kwar HE Project with Chhattisgarh State Power Distribution Company Ltd,
Gujrat Urja Vikas Nigam Ltd., Uttar Pradesh Power Corporation Limited and JKPCL.

OPPORTUNITIES

The Union Territory of Jammu & Kashmir (J&K) is richly endowed with hydropower
potential, with an estimated capacity of 14,867 MW, of which the Chenab Basin alone
accounts for 11,283 MW. As of March 31, 2025, approximately 2,014 MW has been
harnessed in the Chenab Basin, while an additional 6,500 MW (approx.) is currently
under various stages of development. This underscores the untapped opportunity and

the growing relevance of hydropower in the region.

The increasing imbalance in the hydro-thermal energy mix, rising penetration of variable
renewable energy (VRE) sources like solar and wind, shortages of peaking power, and
frequent grid frequency fluctuations have drawn renewed attention from the Government
of India toward accelerating hydropower development. Hydropower, with its peaking
capability, grid stability features and long asset life, is now being strategically positioned

as a balancing and enabling source in the energy transition landscape.

India possesses vast untapped hydropower potential, especially in Himalayan states
such as J&K. This provides a significant opportunity for Central and State PSUs,
including Chenab Valley Power Projects Ltd. (CVPPL), to expand their operational

capacity and play a pivotal role in meeting national energy goals.

According to projections by the Central Electricity Authority (CEA), India will need to add
approximately 817 GW of generation capacity by 2030 to meet growing demand. In
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alignment with the country’s COP26 climate commitments, 500 GW of this capacity must
come from non-fossil fuel sources, thereby creating immense headroom for growth in the
renewable energy sector.

This evolving landscape not only highlights the importance of accelerated hydropower
development in regions like the Chenab Basin but also positions companies like CVPPL

at the forefront of India’s clean energy transformation.

THREATS, WEAKNESSES, RISKS AND CONCERNS

Management perceives following as threats, weaknesses, risks and concerns in
construction of Hydro Power Projects:

e Land Acquisition

Hydropower projects are generally located in hilly, difficult and remote terrains, which
requires substantial area of land for submergence and development of infrastructure
including project's components. The process of land acquisition is quite cumbersome.

e Geological Surprises
Hydropower projects generally involve substantial underground works of headrace
tunnel and surge shaft. Geological surprises associated with underground work may
result in time and cost over-run.

e Natural Calamities
As hydropower project are generally proposed in hilly terrains and are generally
subject to associated geological adversities such as hill slope failures, road blocks,
flash floods and cloud bursts etc., which may cause severe set-back in construction of
projects.

e Unexpected complexities
Development of a Project may be subject to unexpected complexities and delays in
execution, which may result in time and cost overrun for developing projects,
compared to estimates. The generation capacity may vary substantially because of
variations in hydrology due to climatic conditions, which may cause significant

variation in revenue earnings of the Company.

e Long Gestation Period

Hydroelectric Power Projects are capital intensive and have a long gestation period.
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Increase in cost

Hydroelectric power projects have long gestation period and are also subject to

various geological surprises & adversities resulting in time and cost overruns,

compared to estimates. The cost overruns may lead to increase in tariff.

V. SEGMENT WISE ORPRODUCT WISE PERFORMANCE
Development of PakalDul, Kiru, Kwar & Kirthai-Il Hydroelectric power project (2984

MW) in Chenab river Basin and any other project entrusted to the Company to

generation and sale power is the only business of the Company. Further, the Company

is having a single geographical segment as it is operating in the UT of Jammu &

Kashmir only.

VI. OUTLOOK

Electricity is fundamental to livelihoods, economic progress, and overall well-being. In
India, the potential for growth in energy demand and infrastructure remains immense.
As the country continues its trajectory of rapid industrialization and urbanization, the
demand for reliable and sustainable electricity is expected to rise significantly in the
coming decades.

Your Company remains steadfast in its commitment to ensuring the availability of
reliable and quality electricity to all sections of consumers in the Union Territory of
Jammu & Kashmir as well as other parts of the country. Despite logistical challenges
arising from difficult terrain and the remote locations of project sites, your Company is
fully dedicated to overcoming these barriers through proactive planning,
technological innovation, and stakeholder collaboration.

India’s vast unexploited hydropower potential presents a significant opportunity for
accelerated development. With a growing global emphasis on achieving ‘Net Zero’
emissions, the role of hydropower as a clean, renewable, and low-emission source of
energy is gaining renewed importance. Hydropower not only contributes to emissions
reduction but also provides critical services for the modern power grid, including:

- Peaking power support

- Frequency and voltage regulation

- Fast ramping capability

- Energy storage through pumped storage schemes
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e These features make hydropower a natural complement to intermittent renewable
energy sources such as solar and wind, whose integration into the grid increases the
need for balancing and stability solutions.

e Additionally, the Government of India’s policy initiatives and regulatory reforms
including streamlined project approvals, improved financing mechanisms, and
incentives for renewable development are expected to catalyze investment and
accelerate implementation in the hydro sector.

¢ In this evolving energy landscape, your Company is well-positioned to leverage its
expertise and project pipeline to contribute meaningfully to India’s clean energy

transition, while also driving socio-economic development in the UT of J&K.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND ITS ADEQUACY

CVPPL has clearly defined organizational structure, manual and Policies to ensure orderly,
ethical and efficient conduct of its business. The company has engaged M/s BAWEJA &
KAUL, Charted Accountants as consultant for “Providing Independent Review and Assurance
on existence of Internal Financial Controls and their operating effectiveness in CVPPL. The
consultant has reported that internal financial controls are operating efficiently and effectively
in the Corporate Office and Projects of CVPPL. Further, the efficacy of internal control
systems has also been reported by the Statutory Auditors in Annexure “B” to the Independent
Auditors’ Report for the Financial Year 2024-25. The Internal Audit of the Company including
its Projects was conducted by external agency i.e., M/s Upendra& Associates. ,Jammu for
the F.Y. 2024-25.

FINANCIAL DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS

PROFIT & LOSS ITEMS
A. INCOME

Three projects of the Company namely PakalDul (1000MW),Kiru (624MW) and Kwar
(540MW) HEPs are in active construction stage and one project i.e., Kirthai-ll (930 MW)is
under clearance stage etc. As such, there is no revenue from operation (sale of energy) at
present. The income of the Company during financial year 2024-25 comprises of other

income of Rs. 1,089.13 Lacs(Previous Year Rs. 3,575.40Lacs) majorly consist of Interest on
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Investment of surplus fund in FDRs with Banks as per Investment Policy of the Company.
Decrease in the Interest Income during the year is on account of less Investment of Surplus
Funds in FDR due to utilization of funds in CAPEX of Projects.

B. Expenditure

During the financial year 2024-25, total expenditure charged to profit & Loss Account
comprising of non-allocable expenditure attributable to construction was Rs. 2,092.03 Lacs in
FY 2024-25which was Rs.1,604.30 Lacs in FY 2023-24. There is Increase of 30.40%mainly
due to Increase in Employees Benefit Expenses by Rs. 201.80 Lacs, Depreciation and
Amortization expenses by Rs. 3.34 Lacs and other Expenses by Rs. 287.21 Lacs. The
increase in expenditure has been marginally off-set by decrease in Finance Cost by Rs. 4.62
Lacs.

Increase in Employee Benefit Expenses is on account of provision created for pay anomaly
arrears as a result of outcome of judgement dated 12.11.2024 of Hon’ble High Court of
Punjab & Haryana at Chandigarh.

Increase in Other Expenses is on account of creation of provision for Intangible assets under

arbitration, Increase in Repair and Maintenance Expenses, Increase in hiring of vehicles etc.

C. Profit before Tax

The profit before Tax & Movement in Regulatory Deferral Account Balances during financial
year 2024-25 was Rs. (-) 1002.90 Lacs (Previous year Rs.1,971.10 Lacs.)

D. Tax Expenses

The tax outgo on the profits was to the tune of Rs.269.72 Lacs in financial year 2024-25
(Previous year 898.85 Lacs). The decrease in tax expenses in FY 2024-25 is on account of
decrease in other Income (Interest on investment of surplus fund in FDRs) from Rs.3575.40
Lacs in FY 2023-24 to Rs. 1089.13 Lacs in FY 2024-25.

E. Regulatory Deferral Account Balances in respect of exchange differences on
Foreign Currency monetary items.

Exchange differences arising on translation/settlement of foreign currency monetary items to

the extent charged to the Statement of profit & Loss and further recoverable from or payable

to the beneficiaries in subsequent periods as per CERC Tariff Regulations are being

recognized as “Regulatory Deferral Account Balances and to be adjusted from the year in
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which the same become recoverable from or payable to the beneficiaries after Date of
Commercial Operation (COD) of the project. Accordingly, the Company has created
Regulatory Assets and recognized corresponding Regulatory Income of Rs.24.51Lacs during
FY 2024-25 (Previous year Rs.(-) 4.06 Lacs) which is recoverable from beneficiaries in future

periods.
CASH FLOWS

A. Net Cash from Operating Activities

The net Cash from Operating Activities is Rs. 6,206.92 Lacs and Profit before Tax and
Regulated Income but after exceptional items is Rs.(-) 1,002.90 Lacs during the F.Y. 2024-
25. The net Cash from Operating Activities was Rs. (-) 2,391.16Lacsand Profit before Tax
and Regulated Income but after exceptional items was Rs. 1,971.10 Lacs during the F.Y.
2023-24.

B. Net Cash from Investing Activities

The net cash flow from/used in Investing Activities is Rs.(-) 3,36,218.02 Lacs during the
FY 2024-25. This mainly reflects expenditure on Property, Plant & Equipment, Other
Intangible Assets and expenditure on Construction Projects of Rs.(-) 3,40,313.12 Lacs, net
Investment in Term Deposits of Rs. (-) 4,682.43 Lacs partly offset by and Interest Income on
Deposits/Capital Advances of Rs.5,393.20 Lacs and Grant received from Government of Rs.
3,384.33 Lacs.

The net cash flow from/used in Investing Activities was Rs.(-) 1,53,609.79 Lacs during the FY
2023-24. This mainly reflected expenditure on Property, Plant & Equipment, Other Intangible
Assets and expenditure on Construction Projects of Rs.(-) 1,82,766.69 Lacs partly offset by
Net Investment in Term Deposits of Rs.20,754.00 Lacs and Interest Income on Deposits /
Capital Advances of Rs.8,402.90 Lacs.

C. Net Cash from Financing Activities

The net Cash from Financing Activities is Rs. 3,05,531.40 Lacs during the F.Y. 2024-25which
comprises of Equity Share contribution amounting to Rs. 95,051.00 Lacs received from

Promoters, Subordinate Debt/Term Loan amounting Rs2,14,624.44 Lacs received from Govt.
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of India/Financial Institutions and payment of Interest and Finance Charges and repayment of
Lease Liability along with interest thereon for Rs. (-) 4,144.04 Lacs.

The net Cash from Financing Activities was Rs. 1,36,518.45 Lacs during the F.Y. 2023-24
which comprises of Equity Share contribution amounting to Rs. 76,242.00 Lacs received from
Promoters, subordinate Debt of amounting Rs 60,422.00 Lacs received from Govt. of India
and payment of Interest and Finance Charges and repayment of Lease Liability along with
interest thereon for Rs. (-) 145.55 Lacs.

BALANCE SHEET ITEMS

ASSETS

A. Property, plant and Equipment (PPE), Capital Work in Progress (CWIP), Right of Use
Assets (ROU), Investment Property, Intangible Assets, Intangible Assets under

development

PPE consisting of Land, Buildings, Construction Equipment, Plant and Machinery, Office
Equipment, Computers etc. after Depreciation were Rs. 19,688.13 Lacs and Rs. 14,678.92
Lacs as of March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024 respectively. Capital Work in Progress which
includes Hydraulic Works, building including Power House Buildings, Plant & Machinery and
S&l work at our power projects were Rs. 8,34,878.64 Lacs and Rs. 4,91,351.11 Lacs as of
March 31,2025 and March 31, 2024 respectively.

Right of Use Assets (ROU) including forest land under right of use and other leased assets
were Rs. 77,996.24 Lacs and Rs.78,815.39 Lacs as of March 31 2025 and March 31 2024
respectively. Intangible Assets comprising of computer software were Rs.55.16 Lacs and Rs.
79.40 Lacs as of March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024 respectively.

Intangible Assets under development comprising of computer software under development
were Rs. Nil due to provision created as on March 31, 2025 against Rs. 106.42 Lacs as at
March 31, 2024.

B. Loans (Current & Non- Current)

Loan including loan to employees Loans as of March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024 were Rs.
226.19 Lacs and Rs. 178.20 Lacs respectively.
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C. Other Financial Assets (Current & Non- Current)

The other financial assets as at March 31, 2025 stood at Rs. 52,491.00 Lacs against Rs.
26,222.25 Lacs as at March 31, 2024. The increase of 100.18% in FY 2024-25as compared
to the FY 2023-24 is mainly due to increase in claim recoverable from State Govt.
Department on account of SGST reimbursement and increase in bank deposits kept against

margin money for Bank guarantee.

A. Other non- current assets

Other non- current assets mainly comprise advances (Capital as well as Other than Capital)
Interest accrued on Capital advance, prepaid Expenses and Non-Current Tax Assets (Net).
Other non- current assets as on 31st March, 2025 and 31st March, 2024 were Rs. 46,887.51
Lacs and Rs. 51,302.52 Lacs respectively. The decrease of 9.42% in FY 2024-25as
compared to the figure in FY 2023-24 is mainly due to recovery/refund of capital advance
from/by contractor.

B. Cash and Bank Balances

Cash and Bank balances as of the Balances sheet date consists of cash surplus in our
current account and short term deposits. Cash and Cash equivalent as of March 31, 2025
and 2024 were Rs. 4,103.27 Lacs and Rs.28,582.97 Lacs respectively. The Cash and Cash
equivalent has been decreased due to utilization of funds for CAPEX of the Projects. Bank
balance other than Cash and Cash Equivalent as of March 2025 and March 2024 were Rs.
2,811.00 Lacs and Rs. 2,811.00 Lacs respectively.

C. Other Current Assets

Other Current Assets mainly comprise Advances to contractor and supplier, Interest accrued
on advance to contractor and prepaid expenses. Other Current Assets as on 31stMarch 2025
and 31st March 2024respectively were Rs. 2,123.26 Lacs and Rs.407.30 Lacs, i.e increase
of Rs. 1,715.96 Lacs is mainly due to increase in interest accrued on advance to

contractor/supplier.

D. Regulatory Deferral Account Debit Balances

In line with the Guidance note on “Accounting for Rate Regulated Activities "issued by the

Institute of Chartered Accountants of India as well keeping in view the provisions of Ind- As
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114-Regulatory Deferral Account balance in respect of Exchange differences on Foreign
Currency Monetary items as on 31st March 2025 and 31st March 2024 was Rs. 76.82 Lacs
and Rs. 52.31 Lacs respectively.

E. Return on Net worth

The net worth of the Company at the end of FY 2024-25 increased to Rs. 5,70,736.48 Lacs
from Rs. 4,76,933.60 Lacs in the previous FY 2023-24 registering an increase of 19.67%
mainly due to increase in equity share capital.

F. Long Term Borrowings

Long Term Borrowings mainly comprise of subordinate Debt received from Govt. of India for
PakalDul HE Project, Term Loan from REC and PFC for PakalDul and Kiru HE Project
amounting to of Rs. 2,45,953.96 Lacs as on 31st March 2025 and Rs. 60,987.31 Lacs as on
31st March 2024.

G. Other Financial Liabilities (Current & Non- Current)

Other Financial Liabilities include amount payable toward Lease liability, Liability against
capital works / Supplies, EMD/ Retention Money etc. The other financial liabilities as on 31st
March 2025 stood at Rs. 55,962.93 Lacs as against Rs. 31,507.32 Lacs as on 31st March
2024.

H. Provisions (Current & Non- Current)

Provision include provision for performance Related pay, Superannuation/pension fund,
provision towards employee benefits (actuarial valuation), provision for Committed Capital
Expenditure and Provision for Pay Anomaly etc. Total provision stood at Rs. 18,154.39 Lacs
as on 31st March 2025 as against Rs. 14,918.16 Lacs as on 31st March 2024.

I. Other Non- Current Liabilities
The other Non- Current Liabilities as on 31st March, 2024is Rs1,46,755.89 Lacs as against
Rs. 1,07,769.64 Lacs as on 31st March 2024 which consists of portion of Subordinate-Debt

from Government of India accounted as Grants as per Accounting Guidelines.
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J. Trade Payables
The Trade payable as on 31st March 2025 was Rs. 613.96 Lacs against Rs. 416.46 Lacs as

on 31st March 2024.

K. Other Current Liabilities

The other current liabilities as on 31st March 2025 was Rs. 3166.56 Lacs as against Rs.
2,057.06 Lacs as on 31st March 2024.

OFF- Balance Sheet Items

A. Contingent Liabilities

The following table sets forth the components of our contingent liabilities as on 31st March,
2025 and as on 31st March, 2024.

Rs. in Lacs

Particulars F.Y.2024-25| F.Y.2023-24
Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts in respect of :

Capital Works 1,04,776.21 98,697.35
Land Compensation case 0 0
Disputed Tax matters and Other items 355.62 322.22
Others 0 0
Total 1,05,131.82 99,019.57

Contingent liabilities increased by 6.17% fromRs.99,019.57 Lacs as of March 31,2024 to
Rs. 1,05,131.82 Lacs as of March 31,2025.

Employee Training & Development:

Employees are a company’s biggest asset, and investing in talent is crucial for sustainable
business growth and success. Training and Development programs provide the perfect
opportunity to expand the knowledge base within an organization, and most importantly,
great learning experiences make for a happier, more productive workforce. Comprehensive

employee training is vitally important to the success of a competitive workforce. No matter the
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industry, filling the gaps in our employees’ professional knowledge is essential to keeping

them productive and fulfilled.

Understanding the value of expanding our employees’ skills and knowledge for better
performance and motivation, CVPPL never lags behind to make an investment in the
continuous upgradation and learning for its employees. During the Financial Year 2024-25,
employees had been nominated to 40 different Training Programmes / Conferences /
Webinars / sessions, etc. including Technical / Non-Technical and Behavioural Programs
organised at internal as well as external forums. Skill upgradation Programs on PRIMAVERA
and AUTOCAD were organised through recognised CADD Centre to acquaint our employees
with the latest technologies and innovations in the respective software’s. Training Programs
on the topics, viz., River modelling and Inflow Forecasting System for Hydro Power Projects,
Insurance Policies, Procedures & Best Practices specific to Hydroelectric Projects,
Geophysical Techniques for Trenchless Technology Installation, Use and Management of
FIDIC Conditions of Contract, Public Procurement, Cyber Security, Environment Regulations,

Transformer Protection, etc. were also imparted through specialised Trainers / Agencies.

Statutory-oriented Programs on POSH Act,2013, Regulatory Compliances under Labour
Laws were organised in-house, besides nomination of employees were made to various
workshops organised on Labour Laws to update them on statutory compliances.
A rejuvenating Workshop on Health & Stress Management was also organised at the
Projects to refresh the mind of the employees and address their health concerns.
10th International Yoga Day on 21.06.2024, was also celebrated with great enthusiasm and

active participation of employees.

High appreciation and satisfactory feedback were received from employees regarding the

effectiveness of above listed programs.

Industrial Relations:

The IR situation at CVPPL Projects and offices was conducive except few major interruptions
of contract Labour through their union (Kissan Mazdoor Union). The matters pertaining to
unions of Contractual workers engaged by contractors have been addressed through
conciliation proceedings held in the office of RLC (Central), Jammu, mediations by local

administration and decision taken by Management and Board of Directors. During the year,
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contractual Workers union at many of times threatened the CVPPL management to proceed
on strike without making Contractors (their immediate employer) a party to the dispute and
created many hindrances on the works of Project sites.

During the year, number of Industrial protests witnessed at the sites of CVPPL Projects and
the same is being resolved / adjudicated through appropriate legal mechanism.

Employees Promotion:-

In reference to the resolution of CVPPL Board 85th meeting, the vacancy —based promotions
are on —hold in CVPPL in r/o all CVPPL Cadre employees.

Whereas, the Cluster based promotion of CVPPL Cadre employees, where vacancy is no
constraint has been initiated as per existing CVPPL Promotion Policy. However, the same is
to be submitted for appraisal of CVPPL Board in the next meeting followed by issuance of

promotion orders.

Reservation for SC/ST/OBC:-

Reservation in recruitment for SC/ST/OBC shall be taken care as per existing norms and

Government directives issued from time to time in CVPPL.

Welfare of Persons with Disabilities: -

There is no physically challenged employee in the CVPPL as on 31.03.2025.

By Order of the Board of Directors
CHENAB VALLEY POWER PROJECTS LIMITED

Sd/-
Place: Jammu Suresh Kumar, IAS-(Retd.)
Dated: 05.08.2025 CHAIRMAN

DIN-06440021
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Independent Auditors’ Report
To the Members of CHENAB VALLEY POWER PROJECTS LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Chenab Valley Power Projects Limited (“the
Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31*March 2025, the statement of Profit and Loss
{Including Other Comprehensive Income), the statement of Changes in Equity and the statement of Cash
Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of the Material
Accounting Policies and other explanatory notes for the year ended on that date {hereinafter referred to as

the “Financial Statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 {“the Act”) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards
prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules
2015, as amended, ("Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of
affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2025, and its loss, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year

ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing {ShAs)
specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described
in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India(ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on
the financial statements.

information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company's management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information The other
information comprises the information included in the Annual Report but does not include the financial
statements and our auditor's report thereon. The other information as stated above is expected to be
made available o us after the date of this auditors’ report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
identified above when it becomes available, and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements, or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

Branch Offices: [i) Patel Chowk,fathankot(Pb), {ii] Sujanpur,Pathanket(Pb), {iil) RailwayRoad,Pathankot (HP), FRN:019636N
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When we read the other information as stated above and if we conclude that there is a material
misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance and

describe necessary actions required as per applicable laws and regulations,

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not guaranteed that an audit
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial

statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

« |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may invoive
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures

mstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for

that are appropriate in the circu
m in place

expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls syste

and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
astimates and related disclosures made by management.

« Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basi
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exisis, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s

rt. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going

s of accounting and,

repo
concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure, and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a

manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in aggregate,
makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial
statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (f) planning
the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the resuits of our work; and {ii) to evaluate the effect of any

identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit. We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our

independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Branch Offfces: (it Patel Chowk,Pathankoi{Pb}, (il Sujanpur,Pathankot(Po), (i) RaiwayRoad Paihankot {HP), FRN:019636N
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We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1,

3.

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 {(“the Order”}, issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give in
the Annexure ”A”, a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the

extent applicable.

Based on the verification of books of account of the Company and according to information and
explanations given to us, we give below a report on the Directions issued by the Comptroller and
Auditor General of India in terms of sub-section (5) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013:

1 | Whether the company has system in | According to the information and

place to process all the accounting
transactions through IT system? If yes,
the implications of  processing
accounting transactions outside IT
systern on the integrity of the accounts
along with the financial implications, if
any, may be stated.

explanations given to us and based on our audit,
Company has its own IT system in place for
processing all the accounting transactions.

We have neither been informed nor have we come
across during the course of our audit any
accounting transactions having an impact on the
integrity of the accounts along with the financial
implications which have been processed putside
the 1T system.

Whether there is any restructuring of an
existing loan or cases of waiver/write-off
of debts/loans/Interest etc. made by a
lender to the Company due to the
company's inability to repay the loan? If
yes, the financial impact may be stated.
Whether such cases are properly
accounted for?

According  to the information and
explanation given to us and based on our audit,
there is no case of restructuring of an existing lean
or cases of waiver/write off debts/loans/interest
etc. made by lender to the Company.

Whether funds {(grants/subsidy etc.)
received/receivable for specific schemes
from Central/State Government or its
agencies were properly accounted
forfutilized as per its terms and
conditions? List the cases of deviation.

According  to the information and
explanation given to us and based on our audit, the
Company has accounted for/utilized the funds
received for specific schemes from Central/State
agencies as per the terms and conditions of the
schemes.

Further to our comments in the annexure referred to in the paragraph above, as required by Section
143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a} We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our

knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

Branch Offices: (i Patel Chowk, Pathankot (P, {ii} Sujanpur,Pathankot{Pb), (ii] RaiwayRoad.Pathankot {(HP}, FRN:019635N
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{b} In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far

as it appears from our examination of those books.

(including other comprehensive income}, the

{c) The Balance Sheet, the Statemment of Profit and Loss
h Flow Statement dealt with by this

statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cas
Report are in agreement with the books of account.

{d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financia! statements comply with the ind AS specified under Section

133 of the Act.

(e) In terms of Notification no. G.5.R. 463 (E) dated 05%June 2015 issued by the Ministry of Corporate
Affairs, provisions of Section 164(2) of the Companies Act 2013 regarding disqualifications of the
Directors are not applicable as it is a Government Company.

(fi With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
Annexure “B". Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating

effectiveness of internal financial controls.

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the best

of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

ations on its financial position in its

i, The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litig
}-Point No.

financial statements- Refer Note No.34 (Other explanatory Notes to Accounts
1(a){i} and Point No.2{a}.

osses against long-term contracts and

ii. The Company did not have any material foreseeable |
his respect is not applicable to the

therefore the requirement for making provision in t
Company.

fi. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and

Protection Fund by the Company.

iv. As per notification number G.5.R. 463 (E) dated 5th June 2015 issued by the Ministry of
Corporate Affairs, section 197 of the Act as regards managerial remuneration is not
applicable to the Company, since it is a Government Company.

v.{a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as

disciosed in the notes to the accoutits no funds {which are material either individually or
in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds
or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any
other person{s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall,
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company {“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as
disclosed in the notes to accounts, no funds (which are material either individually or in
the aggregate) have been received by the Company from any person(s) or entity{ies),
including foreign entities {“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded
in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in

Branch Offlces: {i) Patel Chowk, Pathankot(Pb), (i) Sujanpur,Pathankot(Pb), (&l RaitwayRoad, Pathankot (HP), FRN:0194636N
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other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in
the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause {v}{a} and (v} (b} of Rule 11(e} as provided above
contain any rmaterial misstatement.

vi. Based on our examination which included test checks, the company has used an accounting
software for maintaining [ts books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit
log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions
recorded in the software. Further, during the course of our audit we did not come across any
instance of the audit trail feature being tampered with.

Additionally, the audit trail has been preserved by the Company as per the statutory
requirements for record retention.

vii. The company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year and has not proposed a final
dividend for the year.

for VA K & Associates.
. Chartered Accountants.
FRN:019636N.

Date: 08.05.2025
Place: Jammu

UDIN:  25502417BMOGRN6476

Branch Offices: (i} Patel Chowk,Pathankot(Pby, (i} Suicnpur,Pathankot(Pb), (i} RoilwayRoad,Pathankot [HP), FRN:019636N
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CHENAB VALLEY POWER PROJECTS LIMITED

Annexure “A” to the Independent Auditors’ Report
(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our

report of even date}.

With reference to Annexure “A” referred to in the Independent Auditors’ Report to the members of the
Company on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025, we report the following in terms
of paragraph 3 of Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”):

B

{a)

(A} | According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, we report that the Company has
maintained proper records showing full particulars including quantitative details and
situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(B} | According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, we report that the Company has
maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

The Company has a program of physical verification to cover the items of Property, Plant and
Equipmentin a phased manner which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size
of the Company and the nature of its assets. Pursuant to the program, certainproperty,
plant, and equipmentof the company have been physically verified by the management
through an outside Agency once during the year. According to the information and
explanations given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed in such verification.

(c)

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of
the records of the Company, the title deeds of all the immovable properties (other than the
properties where the company is the lessee, and the lease agreements are duly executed in
favor of the lessee} disclosed in the financial statements are held in the name of the
Company except in the case of following immovable properties:

recorded in  revenue
records in the name of
GOVERNOR Governor(J&K)  through
Land/Pakul (&K) cvppPL  (Pakal  Dul)
Dul- ) FY 2015-16 — N
(177.8175 242.56 | through No To date considering special
Ha) ' CVPPPL provisions of Land laws of
{Pakul Dul} 1&K due to article 370 of
Constitution {(Now
abrogated in  August
2019)
Land/Kiru- GOVERNOR Leasehold and mutation
(J&K) FY 2017-18to | recorded in  revenue
(92.9575 134.64 No .
ha) through date records in the name of
CVPPPL Governor{J&K)  through

Branch Offices: (i) Patel Chowik,Pathankot{Pb], {ii] Sujanpur.Pathankot(Pb}, (ii] RailwayRoad Pathankot (HP}, FRN:019636N
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(Kiru} CVPPPL  (Pakal Dul}
considering special
provisions of Land laws of
1&K due to article 370 of

Constitution {Now
abrogated in  August
2019)

Mutation of the Land
recorded in  revenue
records in the name of

Govt. of J&K through
L: - . -
and/Kwar: 46.69 Govt. of UT No FY 2021-22 to CVPPPL (Kwar). Land is

(38.15 Ha} of J&K Date Freehold as per letter dt.
15.07.2023 issued by
Assistant Commissioner
Revenue Kishtwar.

(d)} | According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of
the records of the Company, and on overall examination of the financial statements of the
company, we report that the company has not revalued any of the Property, Plant &
Equipment (including Right to Use assets) or Intangible Assets or both during the year.

(e) | According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of
the records of the Company, and on overall examination of the financial statements of the
company, we report that no proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the
company for holding any Benami property under the “Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act,
1988 and Rules made there under. Accordingly reporting under clause 3 {i} (e) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

(if)

{a) | The Company has not commenced commercial production and as such there are no
inventories. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3 {ii)(a} of the Order is not applicable.

{(b) | According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of
the records of the Company, and on overall examination of the financial statements of the
company, we report that the Company has not been sanctioned any working capital in
excess of 5 crores in aggregate, at any point of time during the year, from banks or
financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets and hence reporting under
clause 3(ii){b) of the Order is not applicable.

(i)

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, and on overall examination of the financial statements of the company,
we report that the company has not made investments in, provided any guarantee or security, or
granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms,
Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties covered in the register maintained under section
1859 of the Act. Accordingly, clauses 3(iii}(a) to 3(iii){f) of the Order are not applicable.

(iv)

In our opinion and according to information and explanation given to us the Company has, in
respect of loans, investments, guarantees, and security, complied with the provisions of section
185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013.

v)

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records, the Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be
deposits. Accordingly, clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the maintenance of cost records has
not been specified by the Central Government under section (1) of section 148 of the Companies
Act, 2013 for the business activities carried out by the Company. Hence, reporting under clause {vi)
of the Order is not appiicable to the Company.

Branch Offices: (i Paiel Chowk,Painanket(Pb), (i) Sujanpur,Pathankot{Pb), (i} RaitwayRoad,Pathankot [HP), FRN:019636N
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(vii)

(a)

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of
the records of the Company, the undisputed statutory dues including Goods & Service Tax,
Provident fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-Tax, Duty of Customs, Cess, and other
statutory dues have been regularly deposited by the Company with the appropriate

authorities.
According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of
the records of the Company, there are no undisputed statutory dues including Goods &

Service Tax, Provident fund, Employees’ State insurance, Income-Tax, Duty of Customs, Cess,
and other statutory dues were in arrears as at March 31, 2025, for a period of more than six

months from the date they became payable.

(b)

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of
the records of the Company, the details of disputed dues of Goods & Service Tax, Provident
Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax or other statutory dues, if any, as at March 31,

2025, are as follows:

Name of the | Nature of | Period Forum at Gross Amount

Statute Dues to which case is Disputed Deposited
which it pending amount under protest

pertain (in X Crore} (in X Crore)

S

CGST/ 2018-19 | Appeal is 2.46 NIL

CGST & &K | SGST under process
SGST Act 2017 | CGST/ 2019-20 | for filing with 0.03 NIL
SGST Commissioner
CGST/ 2021-22 | (Appeals) GST 0.73 NIL

SGST

interest on above Disputed Amount 0.34 NiL

TOTAL 3.56 NIL

(viii)

According to the information
records of the Company, and on overall examination of the financial statements of the company,

we report that there were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have
been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments u

Tax Act, 1961.

and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the

nder the Income

(i)

(a)

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of
the records of the Company and on overall examination of the financial statements of the
company, we report that the company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other
borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender.

(b)

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our audit
procedures, we report that the company has not been declared a wiliful defaulter by any

bank or financial institution or other lender.

According to the information and explanations given to us and the basis of our examination
of the record of the company, term loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans

were obtained.

According to the information and explanations given to us, and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, funds raised on short term basis have, prima
facie, not been used during the year for long term purpose by the Company.

(e}

According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of
the financial statements of the Company, we report that the Company has no subsidiary
and/or associate or joint venture during the year ended March 31, 2025, Hence, reporting

Branch Offices: (] Patel Chowk,Pathankot(PD). {ij} Sujangpur,Pathankot(Pb). it} Rai
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under clause 3(ix)(e) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

{f) | According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us,
we report that the company has not raised any loans during the year on the pledge of
securities held in its subsidiaries, joint ventures, or associate companies (as defined under
the Act) and hence reporting on clause 3(ix}{f} of the Order is not applicable,

{a) | According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us,
we report that the company has not raised moneys by way of an initial public offer or further
public offer (including debt instruments) during the year and hence reporting on clause

3(x)(a} of the Order is not applicable.

(b} | According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential
allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the
year and hence reporting on clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

(xi)

{a) | As represented to us by the management and based on examination of the books and
records of the Company and according to the information and explanations given to us,
considering the principles of materiality outlined in the Standards on Auditing, we report
that no fraud by the Company or on the Company has been noticed or reported during the

course of the audit.

(b) | According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-section {12)
of Section 143 of the Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under
Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during

the year and upto the date of this report.

(c) | As represented to us by the management, there have been no whistleblower complaints
received by the company during the year and up to the date of this report.

(xif)

(a) | According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi
Company. Accordingly, reporting under clauses 3(xii}(b) and 3{xii){c) of the Order are not

applicable.

(xiii)

According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed by us,
and on an overall examination of the financial statements of the company, we report that the
Company is in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of Companies Act with respect to applicable
transactions with the related parties and the details of related party transactions have been
disclosed in the Financial Statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

{xiv)

{a) | In our opinion and based on our examination, the company has an internal audit system
commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

(b} | We have considered the internal audit reports for the year under audit, issued to the
Company during the year, in determining the nature, timing and extent of our audit

procedures.

(xv)

In our opinien and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected to its directors and
hence, provisions of Section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company.

{xvi)

(a) | In our opinion, the company in not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Hence, reporting under clause 3(xvi}(a) of the Order is not

applicable.

Branch Offices: [ij Patel Chowk, Pathanket (Pb), {i) sujanpur,Pathankoi(Ph), (i} Railwa
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(b) | According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed by
us, and on an overall examination of the financial statements of the company, we report that
the company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities
during the period. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi){b} of the Order is not applicable.

(c) | The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by
the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, clause 3{xvi){c} of the Order is not applicable.

(d) | According to the information and explanations provided to us during the course of audit,
there is no core investment company within the Group (as defined in the Core Investment
Companies (Reserve Bank} Directions, 2016 and accordingly reporting under clause 3{xvi)(d)
of the Order is not applicable.

(xvii)

According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed by us,
and on an overall examination of the financial statements of the company, we report that the
company has incurred cash losses in the financial year and the company has not incurred cash loss
in the immediately preceding financial year.

{xvili)

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly reporting
under clause 3{xvi){d) of the Order is not applicable.

(xix)

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios,
ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities,
other information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of
Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the
assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material
uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the Company is not capable of meeting its
liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one
year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future
viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of
the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due
within a period of one year from the balance sheet date will get discharged by the Company as and
when they fall due.

(xx)

As represented to us by the management,

{a) | There is no unspent amount for the F.Y. 2024-25 towards Corporate Social Responsibility
("CSR") on other than ongoing projects. Accordingly, reporting under Clause 3(XX) (a) of the
order is not applicable.

(b) | The amount remaining unspent under sub section (5) of section 135 of the Companies Act,
pursuant to any ongoing project, has been transferred to special account in compliance with
provision of sub section {6) of section 135 of the said Act.

{xxi)

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanation provided to us, reporting under
this clause is not applicable to the company.

Date:
Place:

for VA K & Associates,
ghartered Accquntants.

08.05.2025
Jammu

: &7/(CA. Vinay Jamwal}
Partner '

. MRN:502417

UDIN: 25502417BMOGRN6476

Branch Offices: (il Paiel Chowk.Pathankot({Pb), (i) Sujanpur,Pathanket(Pb), (i) RaiwayRoad,Pathankot (HP)], FRN:017635N

Page 183



! VAR & ADULIUITD,

(1 Chartered Accountants,
First Floor, Khullar Market, Seclor-3,

o Trikuta Nagar, Jammu-180020 (J&K)

~ Phones: 0191-3500119: 7419190386
{ Emuail:vakjmu@gmail.com
{ ANNEXURE “B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
- (Referred to in paragraph 3(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ of our report of
even date)

Report on Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements under Clause (i) of Sub
{ Section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to Standalone Financial Statements of
Chenab Valley Power Projects Limited (“the Company”) as at March 31, 2025, in conjunction with our
s audit of the Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

7 The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
{ based on the internal control with reference to Standalone Financial Statements criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of fraud and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
{ preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to

financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on
{ Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10} of the
Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance
Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial control with reference to financial
statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material

respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
E financial controls system with reference to Standalone Financial Statements and their operating
effectivenass. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to Standalone Financial Statements
included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the
¢ auditors’ judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Standalone
Financial Statements, whether due te fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
- audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to Standalone Financial

L Statements.

{

P

L

) Branch Offices: (i) Patel Chowk,Pathankot([Pb), {i] Sujanpur.Pathankot{Pb), (iii) RailwayRoad,Pathankot (#P), FRN:019636N
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Standalone Financial Statementis

A Company’s internal financial control with reference to Standalone Financial Statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of Standalone Financial Statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A Company’s internal financial control with reference to Standalone
Financial Statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records
that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of Standalone Financial Statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with
authorisations of management and directors of the Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company's
assets that could have a material effect on the Standalone Financial Statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Standalone Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controis with reference to Standalone Financial
Statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of
the internal financial controls with reference to standalone Financial Statements to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal fina neial control with reference to Standalone Financial Statements may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or

procedures may deteriorate.
Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company
has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls with reference to Standalone Financial
Statements and such internal financial controls with reference to Standalone financial statements were
operating effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on the internal control with reference to Standalone
Financial Statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued

by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

for V A K & Associates.
Chartered Accountants.

{CA. Vinay Jamwal
" Partner
o\ MRN:502417
UDIN: 25502417BMOGRNE476

Date:  08.05.2025
Place: Jammu

Branch Offlces: (i Pate! Chowk, Pathankot{Pb), {ii Sujanpur,Fathankoi(Pb), () RailwayRoad.Pathankot {HP), FRN:019636N
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CHENAB VALLEY POWER PROJECTS LIMITED

CVPP, Jammu
Chanab V'l
Pt stis BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2025
GCIN: U40105JK2011G0I1003324 {Z in Lakhs)
PARTICULARS Note No. As at 31st March, 2025 As at 31st March, 2024
ASSETS
{1} NON-CURRENT ASSETS . .
a) Property, Plant and Equipment 21 19,688.13 14.678.9§
b) Capital Work In Progress 2.2 8,34,878.64 4,91,351.11
¢) Right Of Use Assets 23 77,996,24 78,815.39
d) Investment Properly 2.4 - -
e) intangible Assets 25 55,16 79.40
f) Intangible Assets under development 2.6 - 106.42
g} Financlal Assets
i) Invesiments 3.1 - -
ii) Trade Receivables 3.2 - -
fii) Loans 33 103.21 88,70
iv) Others 3.4 4,821.16 18.44
h) Other Non Curmrent Assets 4 46,887.51 51,302.52
TOTAL NON CURRENT ASSETS 9,84,430.05 6,36,440.90
{2) CURRENT ASSETS
a) Inventories 5 - -
b) Flnancial Asseis
i) Invesiments [} - -
ity Trade Receivables 7 - -
iy Cash and Cash Equivalents 8 4,103.27 28,582.97
iv) Bank batances other than Cash and Gash Equivalents 9 2,811.00 2,811.00
v} Loans 10 122.98 89.50
vi} Others 11 47,669.84 26,203.81
¢) Curzent Tax Assels (Nel) i2 - -
d) Other Current Assets 13,1 2,123.26 407.30
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 56,830.35 58,094.58
{3) Assets Classiffed as held for Sale 13.2 8.95 1.76
{4} Regqulalory Deferral Account Debit Balancas 14.1 76.82 52.3t
TOTAL ASSETS 10,41,344.17 6,94,589,55
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
(1 EQUITY
{3} Equily Share Capital 15.1 5,63,001.13 4,45,034.13
(b) Other Equity 15,2 7.735.356 31,898.47
TOTAL EQUITY 5,70,736.48 4,76,833.60
{2} LIABILITIES
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
a) Elnanclal Liahilitles
i} Borrowings 6.1 2,45,953.96 60,987.31
if) Leasa Liabilities 16.2 6B.78 21.12
iity Other financial fabifities 16.3 3.62 10.32
b) Provisions i7 1,792.68 1,440,065
c) Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 18 - -
d) Qther non-cument Liabilities 18 1,46,755.89 1,07,769.64
TOTAL NON CURRENT LIABILITIES 3,94,574.93 1,70,228.44
{3} CURRENT LIABILITIES
a) Financkat Liablilties
i} Borrowings 201 - -
ii) Lease Liabililies 20.2 67.73 69,46
iti) Trade Payables 203
Total oulstanding dues of micro and small enlerprises 186.74 125.25
Total outstanding dues of Creditors olher than micro
and small antergrises 4z7.22 287.21
iv) Other financial fiabilities 204 55,822.80 31,406.42
) Other Current Liabilities 21 3,166,56 2,057.06
€) Provisions 22 16,361.71 13,478.11
@) Current Tax Liabilities {Nef) 23 - -
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 76,032.7¢ 47,427.51
{4}  Regulatory Deferral Account Credit Balances 14.2 - -
TOTAL LIABILITIES 4,70,607.69 2,17,655.95
TOTAL EQUITY & LIABILITIES 10,41,344.17 6,94,589.55
Accompanying notes to the Financial Statements 1-34

Signed as per separate report of even date

ForV A K & Assoclates.
Chartered Accountants

{ Rw, No. &15636N)m-

‘Partner
M.NO. 502417

for and on hehalf of the Board of ctors

(Rajendra Praﬁ {Ramesh Mu|

Director
DIN No.08645380

(Bdnjag/Kumar Gupta}
General Manager (Finance)

Managing Rirecto
DIN No. 10 7

{SudhiFAnapd}
Company Sgfretary
FCS7050
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Chenal Vailey

CHENAE VALLEY POWER PROJECTS LIMITED

CVPP, Jammu
STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2025

CIN: U40108JK2011G 01003321 {% in Lakhs)
Far the Year ended For the Year ended
PARTICULARS 31st March, 2025 315t March, 2024
Note No,
INCOME
i) Revenue from Operalicns 241 - -
li}  Other Income 242 1,089.13 3,575.40
TOTAL INCOME 1,089.13 3,675.40
EXPENSES
i) Purchase of Power - Trading 25.1 - -
i} Generalion Expenses 25.2 - -
iy  Employee Benefits Expensa 25 1,259,85 1,058.05
iv)  Finance Cosis 27 1.05 5.67
v)  Dspreciation and Amortization Expense 28 g82.17 78.83
vi)  Olher Expenses 29 748.96 461.75
TOTAL EXPENSES 2,092.03 1,604.30
PROFIT BEFORE EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS, REGULATORY DEFERRAL ACCOUNT
BALANCES AND TAX {1,002.90) 1,971.10
Exceptional items - .
PROFIT BEFORE REGULATORY DEFERRAL ACCOUNT BALANCES AND TAX {1,002.90) 1,971.10
Income Tax Expenses 30.1
I} Curent Tax 260.72 898.85
i) Deferred Tax hd s
Total Tax Expenses 269.72 898,85
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR BEFQRE NET MOVEMENTS IN REGULATORY DEFERRAL
ACCOUNT BALANCES {1,272.62) 1,072.25
Movement in Regulatory Deferral Account Balances (Net of Tax) 31 24.51 {4.086)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR (A} {1,248.11) 1,068.19
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (B} 30.2
(i} tems that will not be rectassified to profit or loss (Net of Tax)
(8} Remeasurement of (he post employment defined beneflt obligations _ R
Less:-Movement in Regulatory Deferral Account Balances (Net of Tax) _ _
Sub total (a) - .
{) Changes in the fair value of equity investmenis at FYTOCI - -
Sub total (b) - .
Total {fj=(a}+{b} R B
{H} ltems that will be reclassified to proflt or loss (Net of Tax}
{a) Changes In the fair value of debl invesiments at FvTOGI - -
(b} Cost of Hedge Reserve - -
Total (i . .
Other Comprehensive Incoma for the year {Net of Tax) (B)=(i+ii} - -
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR (A+R) {COMPRISING OF PROFIT 124811 1.068.19
AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR) (124319 1088
Eaming per share (Baslc and Diluted) 24 (1)
{Equity shares, face value of ¥ 10/ each) (
Excluding movements in Regutatory Deferral Account Balances (0.0251) 0.0262
Ineluding movements in Regulatory Deferral Accoun! Balances (0.0246) 0.0261
L]
Accompanyling notes to the Financlal Statements 1-34
Signed as per separate report of even date for and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For V¥ A K & Assoclates.,
Charterec Accounlants
{Fifn RegrgNo. 019636N5#1 — ~<. DIN No.0B645380
t 500
{5 Kulnar Gupta)
General Manager [Finance)
Place:
Date:
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Chanzh Valiay
Fowss Proiects Lid

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2025

e e e e e

NSAVal “cveP, Jammu

CiN: U40105JK2011G01003321 (% in Lakhs)
Particulars For the Year ended For the Year ended
31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024
Audited Audited
A. Cash Flow From Operating Activities
Profit before tax for the half year including movements in Regulatory
Deferral Account Balance : (978.39) 1567.04
Less: Movement in Regulatery Deferral Account Balances (Net of Tax) 24.51 {4.06)
Profit before Tax (1002.90y 1971.10
ADD :
Depreciation and Amortization 82.17 78.83
Finance Cost (Net of EAC) 1.05 5.67
Provisiens Others (Net of EAC) 106,42 -
Net Exchange rate variation (Loss) } 24,51 4.70
Sales adjustment on account of Exchange Rate Variation - -
Loss/(Profit) on sale of Assets/Claims written off 15.68 13.65
Loss on sale of Investment - -
Fair value Audjustments - 0.02
229,83 102.87
(773,07 2073.97 |
LESS :
Advance against Depreciation written back - -
Provisicns (Net of EAC) - -
Dividend Incoine - -
Inferest Income & Guarantee Fees
(including Late Payment Surcharge) 1097.49 3575.45
Net Exchange rate varation (Gain) - -
Fair value Audjustments 9.53 -
Amortisation of Government Grarts - -
1107.02 357545
Cash flow from Operating Activities before Operating Assets & :
Linbilities adjustments and Income Taxes - (1880.09) (1501.48)
Changes in Operating Assets and Liabilities:
(Increase}Decrease in Inventaries - -
{Inerease)Decrease in Trade Receivables - -
{Increase)/Decrease in Other Finaacial Assets, Loans and Advances 6251.88 (27.50)
Increase/(Decrease) in Other Financial Liabilities and Provisions 243553 41.41
Regulatory Deferral Account Balances (24.51) . 4.06
8662.90 17.97
Cash flow from operating activities before taxes 678281 (1483.51)
Less : Income Taxes Paid 575.89 907.65
Net Cash Flow From Operating Activifies (A) 6206,92 {2391.16)
B. Cash Flow From Investing Activities
Purchase of FProperty, Plant and Equipment, Investment Propetty, Other
Intangible Assets, CWIP and Movement in Regulatory Deferral Account (340313.12) (182766.69)
Balances
Receipt of Grant 3384.33 -
Proceeds from sale of Property, Plant and Equipment - .
Investment in Subsidiaries & Joint Venture (including Share Application ) _
Money pending aflotment)
Loan fo Subsidiaries ; -
Repayment of Loan by Subsidiaries - -
Interest on Lean to Subsidiaries/Joint Ventures - -
Net Investment in Term Deposits (4682.43) 20754.00
Proceeds fiom Sale of Investment - .
Dividend Income - -
Interest Income & Guarantee Fees
(inchuding Late Payment Surcharge) 5393.20 8402.50
Net Cash Flow From/(Used in) Investing Activities (B} (336218.02) {153609.79)
C. Cash Flow From Financing Activities :
Issue & Buyback of Equity Shares inclading Security Premium 95051.00 76242.00
Dividend Paid . .
Proceeds from Long Term Borrowings 21462444 60422,00
Praceeds from Short Term Borrowings (Net) - -
Repayment of Borrowings - -
Interest & Finance Charges (4067.87) {37.00)
Principat Repayment of Lease Liability (71.27) (101.19)
Interest paid or Lease Liability (4.90) {7.36)
Net Cash Flow From/(Used in) Financing Activities (C) 305531.40 136518.45
Net Increase/(Decrease) In Cash And Cash Equivalents
D. (A+B+C) - (24479.70) (19482.50)
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year 28582.97 4806547
Casli and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year# 4103.27 28,582.97

# Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the-year includes ¥ NIL crores (corresponding previous year ¥ NIL crores) held jn eanmarked

current accounts which are not available for usc by the Company.

~The above Statement of Cash Flows is prepared in zccordance with the "Indirect Method"

Flows.

~Figures for the previous periods have been re-grougedire-amranged/e-classified/re-stated wherever necessary.

prescribed in: Ind AS 7 - Stateraent of Cash
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EXPLANATORY _NOTES TO STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

1 Cash and Cash equivalents consists of Cash in hand, ¢heques/drafts in hands and Bank Balances inchiding Short Term Deposits with original maturity of less than three months. The

detail of Cash and Cash equivalents is as under;

(® in Lakhs)

As at 31st March, 2025 As at 31st March, 2024

Balances with Banks
With scheduled Banks:
- In Current Account 4,103.27 2,582.97
- In Deposits Accowunt - 26,000.00
(Deposits with original maturity of less than three months)

-In Current Account -Other Earmarked Balances with Banks - -

Cash on Hand - -
Cash and Cash equivalents 4,103.27 28,582.97

2 Interest and finance charges in Cash Flow from Financing Activities includes barrowing cost of € 4067.87 Lakhs (Previous year ¥ 37,00 {.akhs) capitalised during the year on account of

Expenditure attributable to construction (EAC),
3 Amount of undrawn loan as on 31.03.2025 : ¥ 8,83,334.56/ Lakhs (Previous Year T 87229.00/- Lakhs).

4 Company has incurred % 19.88 Lakls in cash on account of Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) expenditure during the year ended 31st March, 2025 {Previcus Year ¥ 14,70 Lakls).

5 Net Debt Recongijliation :

(% in Lakhs)
31-03-2028 31-03.2024
Borrowings (Current & Non-Current) 246075.70 60987.31
Lease Liability 136.51 $0.59
Total 246212,21 6107790
For the Year ended 31st March, 2025 For the Year ended 31st March, 2024
Particulars *Borrowings *Borrowings
(Current & | Lease Liability Total (Current & Lease Liability Total
Nor-Current) Non-Current)

- |Opening Net Debt as on 1st April 60987.31 90.59 61077,90 38,454.67 149.39 38604.06
Proceeds from Borrowings 214624.44 - | 214624.44 60,422.00 - 60422,00
Repayment of Berrowings/Lease Liability - (71.27) (71.27) - {10L.19) {101.19
Interest paid {4067.87) (4.90) (4072.77) (37.00} (7.36) {44.36)
Other Non-Cash Movements : - - -
-Increase in Lease Liability - 117.20 117.20 - 42.38 42,38
-Foreign exchange adjustments - - - - - -
-Interest and Finance Charges 4189.61 4.90 419451 37.00 7.36 44.36
-Fair value adjustments (29657.80) - | (29657.80) (37889.36) - {37889.36)
Closing Net Debt as on 31st March 2,46,075,70 136.51 | 2,46,212.21 60,987.31 90.59 61,077.90

*For Borrowings refer Note No.16.1, 20,1 and 20.4

6 Figures for the previous year have been re-grouped/re-amanged/re-classified/re-stated wherever necessary.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

ForV A K & Associates,
Chartered Accountants

(Rir Re@.N.O@B -_. = %

[2 (Rajendra Prasad Goyal)
v Director
{CA. Vinay DIN No.08645380
Part
M.No, 5
(Sang uiar (Sudlir Ahand
General Manager (Finance) Company Segr€tary
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CHENAB VALLEY POWER PROJECTS LIMITED

NOTE NO. 1: COMPANY INFORMATION AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(I) Reporting entity

Chenab Valley Power Projects Limited (the “Company”) is a Joint Venture of NHPC Limited (A Gol
Enterprise}, JKSPDC (A GoJK Enterprise) and a Company domiciled in India (CIN:
U40105JK2011G01003321). The address of the Company’s registered office is Chenab Valley Power
Projects Limited, Chenab Jal Shakti Bhawan, Opposite Saraswati Dham, RailHead Complex, Jammu,
UT of Jammu & Kashmir-180012. The Company is primarily involved in the generation and sale of
bulk power to various Power Utilities.

(II) Basis of preparation
(A)Statement of Compliance

These standalone financial statements are prepared on going concern basis following accrual
system of accounting and comply with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified
under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and subsequent
amendments thereto, the Companies Act, 2013 (to the extent notified and applicable),

applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 1956, and the provisions of the Electricity Act,
" 2003 to the extent applicable. '

These financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 08.05.2025,
(B)Basis of Measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on historical cost Basis, except for: -

» Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value.

+ Plan assets of defined employee benefit plans measured at fair value.

The methods used to measure fair values are discussed in Note 33.

Historical cost is the amount of cash or cash equivalents paid or the fair value of the
constderation given to acquire assets at the time of their acquisition or the amount of proceeds
received in exchange for the obligation, or at the amounts of cash or cash equivalents expected
to be paid to satisfy the liability in the normal course of business. Fair value is the price that
would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date.

(C) Application of new and revised standards

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs vide notification dated o September 2024 and 28
September 2024 notified the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Second Amendment
Rules, 2024 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Third Amendment Rules, 2024,
respectively, which amended/ notified certain accounting standards and are effective for
annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 April 2024:

a) Insurancecontracts - Ind AS 117; and
b) Lease Liability in Sale and Leaseback Amendments to Ind AS 116

The Company has evaluated the amendment and there is no impact on the Company’s
financial statements.
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(D) Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is the Company’s
functional currency. All financial information presented in INR has been rounded off to the
Nearest Lacs (up to two decimals) for the Company. However, at Unit level, figures are
presented in rupees (absolute number).

(E) Use of estimates and management judgments

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to
make judgments, estimates and assumptions that may impact the application of accounting
policies and the reported value of assets, liabilities, income, expenses and related disclosures
including contingent assets and contingent liabilities at the Balance Sheet date. The estimates
and management’s judgments are based on previous experience and other factors considered
reasonable and prudent in the eircumstances. Actual results may differ from these estimates,

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-going basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any

- future periods affected.

In order to enhance understanding of the financial statements, information about significant
areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical judgments in applying accounting policies that
may have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements are
included in the following notes:

Critical judgments and estimates
a) Leases

The Company evaluates if an arrangement qualifies to be a lease as per the requirements
of Ind AS 116-Leases. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.
Identification of a lease requires significant judgment. '

The Company also uses significant judgment in assessing the lease term (including
anticipated renewals) and the applicable discount rate.

b) Useful life of Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets

The estimated useful life of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets are based -
on a number of factors including the effects of obsolescence, demand, competition and _
other economic factors (such as the stability of the industry and known technological
advances) and the level of maintenance expenditures required to obtain the expected
future cash flows from the asset. '

¢) Recoverable amount of Property, Plant and Equipment, Capital Work in
- Progress and Intangible Assets '

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment, capital work in progress and
intangible assets are based on.estimates and assumptions, in particular the expected
market outlook and future cash flows associated with the power plants. Any changes in
these assumptions may have a material impact on the measurement of the recoverable
amount resulting in impairment.

d) Post-retirement benefit plans

Employee benefit obligations are measured on the basis of actuarial assumptions which
include mortality and withdrawal rates as well as assumptions in respect of future
developmerits in discount rates, the rate of salary increase, inflation rate and expected rate

~ of return on plan assets. The Company considers that the assumptions used to measure its
obligations are appropriate and documented. However, any changes in these assumptions
may have an impact on the resulting calculations.
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- e) Revenue

The Company shall record revenue from sale of power based on tariff approved by the
. CERC, as per the principles of Ind AS 115- Revenue from Contracts with Customers.
- However, in cases where tariff rates are yet to be approved, provisional rates are adopted
considering the applicable CERC Tariff Regulations. Further, where revision in tariff due
to revision in cost estimates are pending, tariff is computed based on the parameters and
methods prescribed under the CERC Tariff Regulations and an estimated amount of
revenue is recognised when an application is made to the CERC after obtaining necessary
approvals to the extent it is highly probable that there will be no downward adjustment to
the revenue recognised.

I‘..Rv«,,‘?

f) Provisions and contingencies

SNy

The assessments undertaken in recognising provisions and contingencies have been made
< in accordance with Ind AS 37, ‘Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets’.
The evaluation of the likelihood of the contingent events has been made on the basis of
best judgment by management regarding probable outflow of economic resources. These
estimates can change due to unforeseeable developments.

s

g) Recoverable Amount of Rate Regulated Assets

. The operating activities of the Company are subject to cost-of-service regulations whereby
“ tariff charged for electricity generated is based on allowable costs like interest costs,
depreciation, operation and maintenance including a stipulated retn. Guidance Note on

- Rate Regulated Activities issued by the ICAI (previous GAAP) and Ind AS 114- ‘Regulatory

™

¢ Deferral Accounts’ permits an entity to include in the rate base, as part.of the cost of self-
. constructed (tangible) PPE or internally generated intangible assets, amounts that would
¢ otherwise be recognised as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss in accordance
4 with Ind AS. The Company estimates that items of regulatory deferral accounts recognised
) in the financial statements are recoverable as per the current CERC Tariff Regulations
4 2019-24. However, changes in CERC tariff regulations beyond the current tariff perlod
¢ may affect the recoverability of such balances.

h) Impairment of Trade Receivables

‘“7' Considering the historical credit loss experience for trade receivables, the Company does
(. not envisage either impairment in the value of receivables from beneficiaries or loss due to
- time value of money owing to delay in realization of trade receivables, except to the extent
- already provided for. CERC Tariff Regulations provide for recovery of Late Payment
( Surcharge for delayed payments which compensates for loss due to time value of money,
) except to the extent already provided for.

(. )

i) Imsurance Claim Recoverable

- The recoverable amount of insurance claims in respect of damages to Property, Plant and
£ Equipment and Capital Work in Progress is based on estimates and assumptions as per
. terms and conditions of insurance policies and management estimate of amount
L recoverable from the Insurance Company based on past experience.

< j) Income taxes

- - Significant estimates are involved in determining the provision for income taxes, including

amount expected to be paid/recovered for uncertain tax positions.

K) Cost of Carbon Credits / Certified Emission Reductions (CERs)/ Verified
. Carbon Units (VCUs)

L The cost of Carbon Credits / Certified Emission Reductions (CERs)/ Verified Carbon
Units (VCUs) shall be measured as per Management estimate whenever applicable.

e
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1) Assets classified as held for sale

Management judgment is required to apply the accounting of non-current assets held for
sale under Ind AS 105 - ‘Non-current assets held for sale and discontinned operations’. In
assessing the applicability, management exercises judgment to evaluate availability of the
asset for immediate sale, management’s commitment for the sale and probability of sale
within one year to conclude if their carrying amount will be recovered principally through
a sale transaction rather than through continuing use.

m) Capital Spares designated as part of Property, Plant and Equipment:

Management evaluates whether an item of inventory qualifies as a capital spare forming
part of Property, Plant & Equipment on the basis of various factors, including cost of the
item, period over which benefits from the item is expected to accrue and allowability of
the item in Tariff. On the basis of such evaluation and in line with the provisions of the
CERC Tariff Regulations for the period 2024-29, items of inventory costing more than Rs
10 Lakh, benefits from which are expected to be received over more than one accounting
year are designated as Property, Plant & Equipment.

(I1I) MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES:

Summary of the material accounting policies for the preparation of financial statements as given
below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in the financial statements. These
accounting policies are formulated in a manner that results in financial statements containing
relevant and reliable information about the transactions, other events and conditions to which they
apply. These policies need not be applied when the effect of applying them is immaterial.

Up to March 31, 2015, Property, Plant and Equipment, Capital Work in Progress, Intangible Assets
and Investment Property were carried in the Balance Sheet in accordance with Indian GAAP. The
Company had elected to avail the exemption granted by IND AS 101, “First time adoption of IND AS”
to regard those amounts as the deemed cost at the date of transition to IND AS (i.e., as on April 1,
2015). Therefore, the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment, Capital Work in Progress,
intangible assets and Investment Property as per the previous GAAP as at April 1, 2015, were
maintained on transition to Ind AS.

1.0  Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE)

a) An item of PPE is recognized as an asset if it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the ftem can be measured
reliably.

b) PPE are initially measured at cost of acquisition/construction including decommissioning or
restoration cost wherever required. The cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable
to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating
in the manner intended by management. In cases where final settlement of bills with

- contractors is pending, but the asset is complete and available for operating in the manner
intended by the management, capitalisation is done on estimated basis subject to necessary
adjustments, including those arising out of settlement of arbitration/court cases.

¢) Subsequent costs is recognized in the carrying amount of the asset when it is probable that
future economic benefits deriving from the cost incurred will flow to the enterprise and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably.

d) Expenditure incurred on renovation and modernization of power station on completion of
the originally estimated useful life of the power station is added to the cost of the related
asset when it meets the recognition criteria. PPE acquired as replacement of the existing
-assets are capitalized and its corresponding replaced assets removed/ retired from active use
are derecognized. , ‘
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€) After initial recognition, Property, Plant and Equipment is carried at cost less accumulated

depreciation/amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

f) Deposits, payrﬁents made/ liabilities created provisionally towards compensation (including

interest on enhanced compensation till the date of award by the Court), rehabilitation &
resettlement and other expenses including expenditure on environment management plans
relatable to land in possession are treated as cost of land.

g) Assets over which the Compaﬁy has control, though created on land not belonging to the

Company, are included under Property, Plant and Equipment.

h) Standby equipment and servicing equipment which meet the recogmtlon criteria of Property,

3

Plant and Equipment are capitalized.

Spares parts (procured along with the Plant and Machinery or subsequently) which meet the
recognition criteria are capitalized. The carrying amount of those spare parts that are
replaced is derecognized when no future economic benefits are expected from their use or
upon disposal. Other spare parts are treated as “stores and spares” forming part of inventory,

Expenditure on major inspection and overhauls of generating unit is capitalized, when it
meets the asset recognition criteria. Any remaining carrying amount of the cost of the:
previous inspection and overhaul is derecognized.

k) The cost of replacing part of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognized in the

)

2.0
a)

b)

c)

carrying amount of the item if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied
within the part will flow to the Company and its cost can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognized regardless of whether the replaced part has been
depreciated separately. If it is not practicable to determine the carrying amount of the
replaced part, the Company uses the cost of the replacement as an indication of what the cost
of replaced part was at the time it was acquired or constructed. The costs of the day-to-day
servicing of property, plant and equipment are recognized in the statement of profit and loss
as and when incurred. -

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition/
disposal of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset) is included in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset
is derecognised. :

Capital work in Progress (CWIP)

Expenditure incurred on assets under construction (including a project) is carried at cost
under CWIP. Such costs comprise purchase price of assets including import duties and non-
refundable taxes (after deducting trade discounts and rebates), expenditure in relation to
survey and investigation activities of projects, cost of site preparation, initial delivery and
handling charges, installation and assembly costs, ete,

Costs including employee benefits, professional fees, expenditure on maintenance and up-
gradation of common public facilities, depreciation on assets used in construction of project
including Right-of-Use assets, interest during construction and other costs that are directly
attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable
of operating in the manner intended by management are accumulated urder “Expenditure
Attributable to Construction (EAC)” and subsequently allocated on systematic basis over
major immovable assets, other than land and infrastructure facilities on commissioning of
projects. Net pre-commissioning income/expenditure is adjusted dlrectly in the cost of
related assets.

Capital Expenditure incurred for creation of facilities, over which the Company does not
have control but the creation of which is essential principally for construction of the project

. is accumulated under “Expenditure Attributable to Construction” and carried under “Capital

Work in Progress” and subsequently allocated on a systematic basis over major immovable
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assets, other than land and infrastructure facilities on commissioning of projects, keeping in
view the “attributability” and the “Unit of Measure” concepts in Ind AS 16- “Property, Plant
and Equipment”. Expenditure of such nature incurred after completion of the project, is
charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

3.0 = Intangible Assets and Intangible Assets under Development

a) Expenditure on research is charged to expenditure as and when incurred. Expenditure on
development is capitalized only if the expenditure can be measured reliably, the product
or process is technically and commercially feasible, future economic benefits are probable
and the Company intends to & has sufficient resources to complete development and to
use or sell the asset.

b) Intangible assets that are acquired by the Company and which have finite useful lives, are
measured on initial recognition at cost. Cost includes any directly attributable expenses
necessary to make the assets ready for its intended use. After initial recognition,
intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses.

¢) Intangible assets under development represent expenditure incurred on intangible assets
which are in the development phase and are carried at cost less accumulated impairment
loss, if any.

d) Subsequent costs are recognized as an increase in the carrying amount of the asset when
it is probable that future economic benefits deriving from the cost incurred will flow to the
Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably..

e) An item of Intangible asset is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from derecognition
of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the Statement of Profit and

- Loss when the asset is derecognised.

4.0  Foreign Currency Transactions

a)} Transactions in foreign currency are initially recorded at the functional currency spot rate
at the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition. At each reporting date, monetary
itemns denominated in foreign currency are translated at the funchonal currency exchange
rates prevazhng on that date

b) Exchange differences arising from settlement/ translatlon of monetary items
denominated in foreign currency entered into on or after April 1, 2016 to the extent
recoverable from or payable to the beneficiaries in subsequent periods as per CERC Tariff
Regulations are recognized as ‘Regulatory Deferral Account Balances’ during construction
period and adjusted from the year in which the same become recoverable from or payable
to the beneficiaries.

¢) Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency
are translated using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Where the Company
has paid or received advance consideration in a foreign currency, the date of transaction
for the purpose of determining the exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the
related asset, expense or income (or part of it), is the date when the Company initially
recognizes the non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising from the payment or
receipt of advance consideration.

5.0 Regulatory Deferral Accounts

a) Where an item of expenditure incurred during the period of construction of a project is
- recognised as expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss i.e., not allowed ‘to be
capitalized as part of cost of relevant PPE in accordance with Ind AS, but is nevertheless
permitted by CERC to be recovered from the beneficiaries in future through tariff, the
right to recover the same is recognized as “Regulatory Deferral Account balances.”
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b} Expense/ income recogﬁised in the Statement of Profit and Loss to the extent recoverable
from or payable to the beneficiaries in subsequent periods as per CERC Tariff Regulations
are recognised as “Regulatory Deferral Account balances.”

¢) These Regulatory Deferral Account balances are adjusted from the year in which the same
become recoverable from or payable to the beneficiaries.

d) Regulatory Deferral Account balances are evaluated at each Balance Sheet date to ensure
that the underlying activities meet the recognition criteria and it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with such balances will flow to the entity. If these criteria are
not met, the Regulatory Deferral Account balances are derecognised.

e) Regulatory Deferral Account balances are tested for impairment at each Balance Sheet
date.

Fair value measurement

At initial recognition, transaction price is the best evidence of fair value. However, when the
Company determines that transaction price does not represent the fair value, it uses inter-
alia valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient
data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs
and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

All financial assets and financial liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the
financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy. This categorisation is
based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair vahie measurement as a whole:

» Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities. : 7

» Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is directly or indirectly observable.

« Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable.

For financial assets and financial liabilities that are récognised at fair value on a recurring
basis, the Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the
hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation at the end of each reporting period.

Financial assets other than investment in subsidiaries and joint ventures

A financial asset includes inter-alia any asset that is cash, equity instrument of another entity
or contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset or to exchange financial asset or
financial liability under conditions that are potentially favourable to the Company. A
financial asset is recognized when and only when the Company becomes party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets of the Company comprise Cash and Cash Equivalents, Bank Balances,
Investments in equity shares of companies, Trade Receivables, Loan to employees, security
deposit, claims recoverable etc,

Classification

The Company classifies its ﬁnancial assets in the following categories:

. At amortised cost,

. At fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCD, and
. At fair value through profit and loss

The classification depends on the following:

() The entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and

(h) The contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset.

™

—Page-19+




A

Py

TR N T B N W

o,

P

T

7

N

Y
,

I

T T

£

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses are either recorded in the Statement of
Profit and Loss or under Other Comprehensive Income. For investments in debt
instruments, this will depend on the business model in which the investment is held. For
investments in equity instruments, this will depend on whether the Company has made an
irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition to account for the equity investment at-
fair value through Other Comprehensive Income.

b) Imitial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not
recorded at fair value through profit or Loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at fair value
through profit or loss are expensed in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

The Company measures trade receivables at their transactlon prlce if the trade receivables
do not contain a significant financing component.

¢) Subsequent measurement
Debt instruments at amortised cost

A ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are
met:

i) The asset is held within a business model whose obJectlve is to hold assets for collecting
contractual cash flows, and

i) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are Solely
Payments of Principal and Interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is caleulated by taking into
account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of
the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in interest income in the Statement of Profit and
Loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Debt instrument at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI)
A “‘debt instrument’ is classified as at FVTOCI if both the following criteria are met:

i) The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows
and selling the financial assets, and

it} The asset’s contractual cash flows represent Solely Payments of Principal and Interest
(SPPI).

Debt instruments at fair value through Other Comprehensive Income are measured at each
reporting date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in Other Comprehensive
Income (OCI). However, the Company recognizes interest income, impairment losses,
reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the Statement of Profit and Loss. On
derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified
from the equity to profit and loss. Interest income from these financial assets is included in

s

r

other income using the EIR method.

{ Trade Receivables:
¢ Trade receivables containing a significant financing component are subsequently measured
B at amortised cost using the effective interest method. :
- d) Derecognition
C. A financial asset is derecognised only when:
C i) The Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset, or
.
C
-
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it) Retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but assumes
a contractual obligation to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients.

Where the Company has transferred an asset, the Company evaluates whether it has
transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset. In such
cases, the financial asset is derecognised. Where the Company has not transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is
not derecognised.

Where the Company has neither transferred a financial asset nor retains substantially all
risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is derecognised if the
Company has not retained control of the financial asset. Where the Company retains control
of the financial asset, the asset is continued to be recognised to the extent of continuing
involvement in the financial asset.

On derecognition, the difference between the carrying amount and the amount of
consideration received / receivable is recognized in the Staternent of Profit and Loss.

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model for
measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets:

1)  Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost.
il) Financial assets that are debt instruments and are measured as at FVTOCI

iii) Contract Assets and Trade Receivables under Tnd AS 115-Revenue from Contracts
 with Customers

iv) Lease Receivables under Ind AS 116-Leases.

The Company follows the ‘simplified approach’ permitted under Ind AS 109, “Financial
Instruments” for recognition of impairment loss allowance based on life time expected credit
loss from initial recognition on contract assets, lease receivables and trade receivables
resulting from transactions within the scope of Ind AS 116 and Ind AS 115.

For all other financial assets, expected credit losses are measured at an amount equal to the
12~-month ECL, unless there has been a significant increase in credit risk from initial
recognition, in which case those financial assets are measured at lifetime ECL. Any increase
or reversal of loss allowance computed using ECL model, is recognized as an impairment
gain or loss in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Inventories

Inventories mainly comprise stores and spare parts to be used for maintenance of Property,
Plant and Equipment and are valued at cost or net realizable value (NRV) whichever is lower.
The cost is determined using weighted average cost formula and NRV is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Carbon Credits / Certified Emission Reductions (CERs)/ Verified Carbon Units (VCUs) are
valued at lower of cost and net realizable value.

The amount of any write-down of inventories to net realisable value and all losses of
inventories is recognized as an expense in the period in which write-down or loss occurs.
Financial liabilities

The Company’s financial liabilities include loans and borrowings, trade and other payables. A

financial liability is recognized when and only when the Company becomes party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument.
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a) Classification, initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are recognised injtially at fair value less transaction costs that are directly
attributable and subsequently measured at amortised cost. Financial liabilities are classified
as subsequently measured at amortized cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of
transaction costs) and the fair value at initial recognition is recognised in the Statement of
Profit and Loss or in the carrying amount of an asset if another standard permits such
inclusion, .over the period of the borrowings using the effective rate of interest.

b) Subsequent measurement

After initial recognition, financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss or
in the carrying amowunt of an asset if another standard permits such inclusion, when the
Habilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition
and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as
finance cost in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

¢) Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expired. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are
substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of
the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respectwe
carrying amounts is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

d) Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the
Balance Sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts
and there is an intention to setile on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

e) Derivative finanecial instruments

Derivative financial instruments that are held by the Company to hedge the foreign currency
and interest rate risk exposures and are not designated as hedges are accounted for at fair
value through profit or loss Changes in fair value are recognised in the Statement of Profit
and Loss.

10.0 Government Grants

a) The benefits of a government loan at a below market rate of interest is treated as a

Government Grant. The loan is initially recognised and measured at fair value and the

. grant is measured as the difference between the initially recognized amount of the loan

.and the proceeds received. The loan is subsequently measured as per the accounting

policy applicable to financial liabilities and the grant is recognized initially as deferred

income and subsequently amortised in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a systematic
basis over the useful life of the asset.

b) Monetary grants from the government for creation of assets are initially recognised as
deferred income when there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and
the company will comply with the conditions associated with the grant. The deferred
income so recognised is subsequently amortised in the Statement of Profit and Loss over
the useful life of the related assets. :
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c) Government grant related to income is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a
systematic basis over the periods in which the entity recognises as expenses the related
costs for which the grants are intended to compensate.

11.0 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

a) Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or comstructive
obligation as a result of a past event and it is probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Such provisions are determined
based on management estimate of the amount required to settle the obligation at the
Balance Sheet date. When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a
provision are expected to be recovered from a third party, the receivable is recognised as
an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and the amount of the
receivable can be measured reliably. The expense relating to a provision net of any
reimbursement is presented in the Statement of Profit and Loss or in the carrying amount
of an asset if another standard permits such inclusion.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by
discounting the expected future cash flows using a current pre-tax rate that reflects the
risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due
to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

b) Contingent liabilities are possible obligations that arise from past events and whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
future events not wholly within the control of the Company. Where it is not probable that
an outflow of economic benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated
reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote. Contingent liabilities are disclosed on the basis of
judgment of management/independent experts. These are reviewed at each Balance Sheet

* date and are adjusted to reflect the current management estimate.

c) Contingent assefs are possible assets that arise from past events and whose existence will
be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrernce of one or more uncertain future
events not wholly within the control of the Company. Contingent assets are disclosed in
the financial statements when inflow of economic benefits is probable on the basis of
judgment of management. These are assessed continually to ensure that developments are
appropriately reflected in the financial statements.

12.0 Revenue Recognition and Other Income

Company’s revenues arise from sale of energy and other income. Revenue from other income
comprises interest from banks, employees, contractors ete., surcharge received from
beneficiaries for delayed payments, sale of scrap, other miscellaneous income, ete.

a) Revenue from sale of power

i) Revenue is measured based on the consideration that is specified in a contract with a
customer or is expected to be received in exchange for the products or services and
excludes amounts collected on behalf of third parties. The Company recognises
revemie from contracts for sale of power over time as the customers simultaneously
receive and consume the benefits provided by the Company:

ii) Revenue from sale of power (except minimum lease receipts in respect of power
stations considered as Finance Lease/Operating Lease) is accounted for as per tariff
notified by the Central Electricity Regulatory Commission (CERC) under the CERC
(Terms & Conditions of Tariff) Regulations as modified by the orders of Appellate
Tribunal for Electricity to the extent applicable.In the case of Power Stations where
provisional/ final tariff is yet to be notified or where incentives/disincentives are
chargeable/payable as per CERC (Terms & Conditions of Tariff) Regulations, revenue
is recognised to the extent it is highly probable that a significant reversal in the

£ ™
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amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur. Rebates given to
beneficiaries as early payments incentives are deducted from the amount of revenue.

iii) Customers are billed on a periodic and regular basis. As at each reporting date,
revenue from sale of power includes an accrual for sales delivered to customers but
not yet billed (unbilled revenue)..

iv) Recovery/ refund towards foreign currency variation in respect of foreign currency
loans and recovery towards Income Tax are recoghnised on year to year basis based on
. regulatory norms.

v) Adjustments arising out of finalisation of Regional Energy Account (REA), though
not material, are effected in the year of respective finalisation.

b) Otherincome

i) For all debt instruments measured either at amortised cost or at fair value through
other comprehensive income, interest income is recorded using the effective interest
rate (EIR). When calculating the effective interest rate, the Company estimates the
expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial
instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call and similar options) but does
not consider the expected credit losses.

ii) Interest/Surcharge recoverable from customers including those arising out of
contracts for trading of power and liquidated damages /interest on advances to
contractors is recognised when it is highly probable that a significant reversal in the
amount of revenue recognised will not occur in the future.

¢) Revenue from sale of carbon credits/ CERs/VERs

Revenue shall be recognized on transfer/ sale of Carbon Credits/ Certified Emission
Reductions (CERs)/ Verified Carbon Units (VCUs) to the extent it is highly probable
that a significant reversal in the amount of revenue recognized will not occur in the
future. A

13.0 Employee Benefits
i) Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are
expensed or included in the carrying amount of an asset if another standard permits such
inclusion as the related service is provided.

A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid under short-term performance
related cash bonus if the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay
this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee and the obligation can be
estimated reliably.

ii) Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays
fixed contributions into Provident Fund Scheme and a separate trust for Social Security
Scheme and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts.
Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plans are recognised as an employee
benefit expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss or included in the carrying amount of
an asset if another standard permits such inclusion in the periods during which services
are rendered by employees. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent
that a cash refund or a reduetion from future payments is available. Contributions to a
defined contribution plan that is due more than 12 months after the end of the period in
which the employees render the service are discounted to their present value.

Employee Provident Fund Scheme and Social Security Scheme are accounted for as
defined contribution plans. :
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iii) Defined benefit plans

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined
contribution plan. The Company’s Gratuity Scheme, Retired Employees Health Scheme
(REHS), Allowance on Retirement/Death and Memento on Superannuation to employees
are in the nature of defined benefit plans.

The liability or asset recognised in the Balance Sheet in respect of Gratuity and Retired
Employees Health Scheme is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the
end of the reporting period less the fair value of plan assets.

The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by the actuary using the Projected
Unit Credit Method.

The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the
estimated future cash outflows by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting

period on government bonds that have terms approximating to the terms of the related
obligation,

The net interest cost is caleulated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the
defined benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets. This cost is included in
employee benefit expense in the statement of profit and loss or included in the carrying
amount of an asset if another standard permits such inclusion.

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in
actuarial assumptions are recognised directly in Other Comprehensive Income in the
period in which they oceur and are included in retained earnings in the Statement of
Changes in Equity.

iv) Other long-term employee benefits

Benefits under the Company’s leave encashment scheme constitute other long term
employee benefits.

The Company’s net obligation in respect of long-term employee benefits is the amount of
future benefits that employees have earned in return for their service in the current and
prior periods. The benefit is discounted to determine its present value, and the fair value
of any related assets is deducted. The discount rate is based on the prevailing market
vields of Indian government securities as at the reporting date that have maturity dates
approximating the terms of the Company’s obligations. The caleulation is performed using
the Projected Unit Credit Method. Contributions to the scheme and actuarial gains or
losses are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss or included in the carrying
amount of an asset if another standard permits such inclusion in the period in which they
arise.

v) Termination benefits

The expenses incurred on terminal benefits in the form of ex-gratia payments and notice
pay on voluntary retirement schemes are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss in
the year of incurrence of such expenses. '

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs consist of (a) interest expense calculated using the effective interest method
as described in Ind AS 109 — ‘Financial Instruments’ (b) finance charges in respect of finance
leases recognized in accordance with Ind AS 116— ‘Leases’ and(c) exchange differences
arising from foreign currency borrowings to the extent that they are regarded as an
adjustment to interest costs and guarantee fee on loan paid to third parties.

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production

. of qualifying assets are capitalised as part of the cost of such asset until such time the assets

are substantially ready for their intended use. Qualifying assets are assets which necessarily
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take substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale. All other borrowing
costs are expensed in the period in which they oceur,

When the Company borrows funds specifically for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying
asset, the borrowing costs incurred are capitalised. When the Company borrows funds
generally and uses them for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the capitalisation of
the borrowing costs is computed based on the weighted average cost of all borrowings that
are outstanding during the period and used for the acquisition, construction/exploration or
erection of the qualifying asset. However, borrowing costs applicable to borrowings made
specifically for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset are excluded from this calculation,
until substantially all the activities necessary to prepare that asset for its intended use or sale
are complete.

Income earned on temporary investment of the borrowings pending their expenditure on the
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

Capitalisation of borrowing cost ceases when substantially all the activities necessary to
prepare the qualifying assets for their intended use are complete,

Other borrowing costs are recognized as an expense in the year in which they are incurred.

Depreciation and amortization

a) Depréciation on additions to /deductions from Property, Plant & Equipment (PPE)
during the year is charged on pro-rata basis from / up to the date on which the asset is
available for use / disposal.

b) (i) Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment of Operating Units of the Company
capitalized ill five years before the end of the useful life of the Power Station is charged
to the Statement of Profit & Loss on straight-line method following the rates and
methodology notified by CERC for the fixation of tariff except for assets specified in
Policy No. 15.0{d).

(ii) Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment capitalized during the last five years
of the useful life of a Power Station is charged on straight-line method for the
remaining operational life/ period of extended life as per CERC Tariff
Regulations/Orders, from the date on which such asset becomes available for use.

(iii) Where the life and / or efficiency of a Power Station is increased due to renovation
and modernization, the expenditure thereon along with its unamortized depreciable

amount is charged prospectively on straight-line method over the revised / remaining
useful life. :

¢) i) Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment {except old and used) of other than

Operating Units of the Company is charged to the extent of 90% of the cost of the asset
following the rates notified by CERC for the fixation of tariff except for assets specified in
Policy No. 15.0(d).

ii) Depreciation on old and used items of PPE of other than Operating Units is charged
on straight-line method to the extent of 90% of the cost of the asset over estimated useful
life determined on the basis of technical assessment.

d) 1) Depreciation in respect of following items of PPE is provided on straight line method
based on the useful life and residual value (5%) given in the Schedule II of the Companies -
Act, 2013: .

- Construction Plant and Machinery
- Computer and Peripherals

1i) Based on technical assessment, depreciation on Mobile Phones is provided on straight
line basis over a period of three years with residual value of Re 1.
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iii)Based on technical assessment, depreciation on Roof Top Solar Power System /
Equipment is provided on straight line basis over a period of twenty five years with
residual value of 10%.

iv) Based on technical assessment, depreciation on furniture& other equipment provided
at residential office of employees is charged on straight line basis over a period of five
years with residual value of 10%

e) Temporary erections are depreciated fully (100%) in the yeaf of acquisition
/capitalization by retaining Re. 1/- as WDV,

f) All assets valuing Rs. 5006/— or less but more than Rs, 750/- are fully
depreciated/amortised during the year in which the asset becomes available for use with
WDV of Re. 1/- for tangible assets and NIL for Intangible Assets.

g) Low value items, which are in the nature of assets (excluding immovable assets) and
valuing up to Rs. 750/- are not capitalized and charged off to expenditure in the year of
use. .

h} Leasehold Land of operating units is amortized over the period of lease or over the life of
the Power Plant (40 years in case of Hydro Projects and 25 years in case of Solar & Wind
Projects) whichever is lower, following the rates and methodology notified vide CERC
tariff regulations. - '

i) Leasehold Land and buildings of units other than operating units, is amortized over the
period of lease or over the life of the Power Plant (40 years in case of Hydro Projects and
25 years in case of Solar & Wind Projects), whichever is lower.

j) PPE created on leasehold land are depreciated to the extent of 90% of original cost over
the balance available lease period of respective land from the date such asset is available
for use or at the applicable depreciation rates & methodology notified by CERC tariff
regulations for such assets, whichever is higher.

k) Land-Right of Use in case of Hydro Project is amortized over a period of 40 years from
the date of commercial operation of the project following the rates and methodology
notified vide CERC tariff regulations.

-1} Cost of software recognized as ‘Intangible Assets’ is amortized on straight line method

over a period of legal right to use or three years, whichever is earlier, starting from the
date when the asset becomes available for use. Other intangible assets are amortized on
straight line method over the period of legal right to use or life of the related plant,
whichever is less. The period and method of amortization of intangible assets with finite
useful life is reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, wherever
required.

m) Where the cost of depreciable assets has undergone a change during the year due to
increase/decrease in long term liabilities on account of exchange fluctuation, price
adjustment, setflement of arbitration/court cases, change in duties or similar factors, the
unamortized balance of such assets is depreciated prospectively over the residual life of
such assets at the rate of depreciation and methodology notified by CERC tariff

- regulations.

n) Spare parts procured along with the Plant and Machinery or subsequently which are
capitalized and added in the carrying amount of such item are depreciated over the
residual useful life of the related plant and machinery at the rates and methodology
notified by CERC. '

0) Useful life, method of depreciation and residual value of assets where depreciation is
charged as per management assessment are reviewed at the end of each financial year'
and adjusted prospectively over the balance useful life of the asset, wherever required.

Page 205



A N e T e S

AN

™

P

Y Ty Ty

My

ey

NI T

N

P

A

P
T

N T

s aNaRaRaNaNala

16.0 Impairment of non-financial assets other than inventories

17.0

a) The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an

b)

.c)

d}

asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an
asset is required, the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair value
less costs of disposal and its value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an
individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets of the Company. When the carrying amount of an
asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is
written down to its recoverable amount. The resulting impairment loss is recognised in
the Statement of Profit and Loss.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset; In determining fair value less costs of
disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no such transactions can-
be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are
corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded companies
or other available fair value indicators. Fair value less costs of disposal is determined only

in case carrying amount of an asset or cash-generating unit (CGU) exceeds the value in
use.

In case of expenditure on survey & investigation of projects, if it is decided to abandon
such a project, expenditure incurred thereon is charged to the Statement of Profit and
Loss in the year in which such decision is taken.

In case a project under survey and Investigation remains in abeyance by the order of
appropriate authority/ by injunction of court order, any expenditure incurred on such
projects from the date of order/ injunction of court is provided in the books from the date
of such order till the period project is kept in abeyance by such order/ injunction.
Provision so made is however reversed on the revocation of aforesaid order/ injunction.

Impairment losses recognised in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any
indications that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is
reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s calrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of
depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.

Income Taxes

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the Statement
of Profit and Loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity or
other comprehensive income, in which case the tax is also recognised directly in equity or in
other comprehensive income.

a)

Current tax

. Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year on the basis of

the tax laws applicable at the reporting date and any adjustments to tax payable in
previous years. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the Statement of Profit
and Loss because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in
other years (temporary differences) and it further excludes items that are never taxable
or deductible (permanent differences).
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b) Deferred tax

i)

if)

ii1)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities in the Company’s financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit and are accounted for using the Balance
Sheet method. Deferred tax Habilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, and deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, unused tax losses and unused tax credits to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary
differences, unused tax losses and unused tax credits can be utilised. Such assets and
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of an asset or liability in a transaction
that at the time of the transaction affects neither the taxable profit or loss nor the
accounting profit or loss. :

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply
in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on-tax rates (and
tax Jaws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the Balance Sheet date. The
measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that
would flow in the manner in which the Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover

- or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

iv)

v)

vi)

vif)

Deferred tax is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss except to the extent that it
relates to items recognised directly in other comprehensive income or equity, in which -
case it is recognised in Other Comprehensive Income or Equity.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable
right to offset current tax assets against current tax liabilities, and when the deferred
income tax assets and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either the taxable entity or different taxable entities where there is an
intention to settle the balances on a net basis.

Deferred tax recovery adjustment account is credited/ debited to the extent the deferred
tax for the current period forms part of current tax in the subsequent periods and affects
the computation of return on equity (ROE), a component of tariff.

When there is uncertainty regarding income tax treatments, the Company assesses
whether a tax authority is likely to accept an uncertain tax treatment. If it concludes that
the tax authority is unlikely to accept an uncertain tax treatment, the effect of the
uncertainty on taxable income, tax bases and unused tax losses and unused tax credits is
recognised. The effect of the uncertainty is recognised using the method that, in each
case, best reflects the outcome of the uncertainty: the most likely outcome or the
expected value. For each case, the Company evaluates whether to consider each
uncertain tax treatment separately, or in conjunction with another or several other
uncertain tax treatments, based on the approach that best prefixes the resolution of
uncertainty.

Compensation from third parties

Impairments or losses of items, related claims for payments of compensation from third
parties including insurance companies and any subsequent purchase or construction of
assets/inventory are separate economic events and are accounted for separately.

Compensation from third parties including from insurance companies for items of property,
plant and equipment or for other items that were impaired, lost or given up is included in the
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Statement of Profit and Loss when the compensation becomes receivable. Insurance clainis
for loss of profit are accounted for based on certainty of realisation.

Segment Reporting

a) In accordance with Ind AS 108 — Operating Segment, the operating segments used to
present segment information are identified on the basis of internal reports used by the
Company’s Management to allocate resources to the segments and assess their
performance. The Board of Directors is collectively the Company’s “Chief Operating
Decision Maker” or “CODM” within the meaning of Ind AS 108.

b) Electricity generation is the principal business activity of the Company.

Leases

The Company assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease at the inception of a contract.
A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a-
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Company assesses
whether the contract involves the use of an identified asset, whether the Company has the
right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset throughout the
period of lease and whether the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset. If.the
supplier has a substantive substitution right, then the asset is not identified. Where the
decision about how and for what purpose the asset is used is predetermined, the Company
has the right to direct the use of the asset if it has the right to operate the asset, or the
Company designed the asset in a way that predetermines how and for what purpose it will be
used.

At inception or on reassessment of a contract that contains a lease component, the Comnpany
allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease component on the basis of their
relative stand-alone prices. However, for the leases of land and buildings in which it is a
lessee, the Company has elected not to separate non-lease components and account for the
lease and non-lease components as a single lease component.

i. Company as a lessee

The Company recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement
date. The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount
of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement
date, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove
the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less
any lease incentives received.

Land taken for use from State Government (without transfer of title) and expenses on relief
and rehabilitation as also on creation of alternate facilities for land evacuees or in lieu of
existing facilities coming under submergence and where construction of such alternate
facilities is a specific pre-condition for the acquisition of the land for the purpose of the
project, are accounted for as Right of Use Assets. :

Right-of-use assets are depreciated/amortized from the commencement date to the end of
the useful life of the underlying asset, if the lease transfers ownership of the underlying asset
by the end of lease term or if the cost of right-of-use assets reflects that the purchase option
will be exercised. Otherwise, Right-of-use assets are depreciated/ amortized from the
commencement date on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and useful life
of the underlying asset. The estimated useful lives of right-of-use assets are determined on
the same basis as those of property, plant and equipment.

Right-of-use assets are evaluated for recoverability whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. For the purpose
of impairment testing, the recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the fair value less costs of
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disposal and the value-in-use) is determined on an individual asset.basis unless the asset
does not generate cash flows that are largely independent of those from other assets. In such
cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the Cash Generating Unit (CGU) to which
the asset belongs.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the future lease payments
discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily
determined, the incremental borrowing rate. Future lease payments comprise of the fixed
payments, including in-substance fixed payments, variable lease payments that depend on an
index or a rate, amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee and the
exercise price under a purchase option that the Company is reasonably certain to exercise or
the penalty for early termination of a lease unless the Company is reasonably certain not to
terminate early.

The lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. It is
remeasured when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in an
index or rate, if there is a change in the estimate of the amount expected to be payable under
a residual value guarantee, or if the Company changes its assessment of whether it will
exercise a purchase, extension or termination option or when a lease contract is modified,
and the lease modification is not accounted for as a separate lease, in which case the lease
liability is remeasured based on the lease term of the modified lease by discounting the
revised lease payments using a revised discount rate at the effective date of the modification.

When the lease liability is remeasured, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying
amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in the Statement of Profit and Loss if the
carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

Right-of-use assets are presented as a separate line item on the face of the Balance Sheet,

The Company has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease labilities in respect
of short-term leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases where the

" underlying asset is of low-value. The lease payments associated with these leases are

recognized as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

ii. Company as a lessor

When the Company acts as a lessor, it determines at lease inception whether each lease is a
finance lease or an operating lease. A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an underlying asset. A lease
is classified as an operating lease if it does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of an underlying asset. :

‘Where the Company determines a long term Power Purchase Agreement (PPA) to be or to
contain a lease and where the off taker has the principal risk and rewards of ownership of the
power plant through its contractual arrangements with the Company, the arrangement is
considered a finance lease. For embedded leases in the nature of a Finance Lease, the
investment in the power station is recognised as a Lease Receivable. The minimum lease
receipts are identified by segregating the embedded lease receipts from the contract amounts
(including Advance Against Depreciation (AAD) recognised in accordance with CERC Tariff
regulations 2004-09 up to 31st March 2009 and considered as deferred income). Each lease
receipt is allocated between the receivable and finance lease income (forming part of revenue
from operations) so as to achieve a constant rate of return on the Lease Receivable
outstanding. '

Subsequent to initial recognition, the Company regularly reviews the estimated
unguaranteed residual value and applies the impairment requirements of Ind AS 109-
Financial Instruments for recognising an allowance for expected credit losses on the lease
receivables.

Page 209



I P

My

Y Ty ™

iy

-

LY

Faah

i

£

£

21.0

22,0

23.0

Finance lease income is. caleulated with reference to the gross carrying amount of the lease
receivables, except for credit-impaired financial assets for which interest income is calculated
with reference to their amortised cost (i.e. after a deduction of the loss allowance).

If an arrangement contains lease and non-lease components, the Company applies Ind AS
115- Revenue from Contracts with Customers to allocate the consideration in the contract.

In the case of Operating Leases or embedded operating leases, the lease income from the
operating lease is recognised in revenue over the lease term to refiect the pattern of use
benefit derived from the leased asset. The respective leased assets are included in the Balance
Sheet based on their nature and depreciated over its economic life.

Business combinations

(i) Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition accounting method as at
the date of the acquisition, which is the date at which control is transferred to the Company.
The consideration transferred in the acquisition and the identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed are recognized at fair values on their acquisition date. Goodwill is initially
measured at cost, being the excess of the consideration transferred over the net identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed. Where the fair value of net identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed exceed the consideration transferred, after reassessing the
fair values of the net assets and contingent liabilities, the excess is recognized as capital
reserve. Acquisition related costs are expensed as incurred. :

(ii) Business combinations involving entities that are controlled by the Company are
accounted for using the pooling of interests method wherein the assets and liabilities of the
combining entities are reflected at their carrying amounts and no adjustments are made to
reflect fair values, or recognise any new assets or Kabilities. The only adjustments that are
made are to harmonise accounting policies.

The financial information in the financial statements in respect of prior periods is restated as
if the business combination had occurred from the beginning of the preceding period in the
financial statements, irrespective of the actual date of the combination. However, where the
business combination had occurred after that date, the prior period information is restated

. only from that date.

The balance of the retained earnings appearing in the financial statements of the transferor is
aggregated with the corresponding balance appearing in the financial statements of the
transferee. The identity of the reserves is preserved and the reserves of the transferor become
the reserves of the transferee. The difference, if any, between the amounts recorded as share
capital issued plus any additional consideration in the form of cash or other assets and the
amount of share capital of the transferor is transferred to capital reserve and is presented
separately from other capital reserves.

Material prior period errors

Material prior period errors are corrected retrospectively by restating the comparative
amounts for the prior periods presented in which the error occurred. If the error occurred
before the earliest period presented, the opening balances of assets, liabilities and equity for
the earliest period presented, are restated unless it is impracticable, in which case, the
comparative information is adjusted to apply the new accounting policy prospectively from
the earliest date practicable.

Earnings per share

a) Basic earnings per equity share is computed by dividing the net profit or loss attributable
to equity shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the financial year.

b) Diluted earnings per equity share is computed by dividing the net profit or loss
attributable to equity shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of
equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per equity share and also the
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weighted average number of equity shares that could have been issued upon conversion
of all dilutive potential equity shares.

c) Basic and diluted earnings per equity share are also presented using the earnings
amounts excluding the movements in regulatory deferral account balances.

24.0 Statement of Cash Flows
a) Cash and Cash Equivalents: .

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents
includes cash on hand, deposits held at call with financial institutions, other short-term,
highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and bank overdrafts. However, for Balance Sheet presentation, Bank
overdrafts are shown within “Borrowings” under Current Liabilities.

b) Statement of cash flows is prepared in accordance with the indirect method prescnbed in
Ind AS 7- ‘Statement of Cash Flows’.

25.0 Current versus non-current classiﬁcation

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the Balance Sheet based on current/non-
current classification.

a) An assetis current when it is:

* Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in the normal operating cycle

» Held primarily for the purpose of trading

= Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

= Cash or cash equwalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a
liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.
b) Aliability is current when:

» It is expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle

» It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

» It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

+ There is no unconditional right to defer settlement of the Hability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period.

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.
¢) Deferred tax assets /liabilities are classified as non-current assets / liabilities.

26.0 Non -Current Assets Classified as Held for Sale

The Company classifies non-current assets and disposal groups as held for sale if their
carrying amounts will be recovered principally through a sale rather than through continuing
use and a sale is considered highly probable. Indicators in this regard inchide whether
management is committed to the sale, whether such sale is expected to be completed within
one year from the date of classification as held for sale and whether the actions required to
complete the plan of sale indicates that it is unlikely that significant changes to the plan will
be made or that the plan will be withdrawn. Non-Current Assets held for sale and disposal
groups are measured at the lower of their carrying amount and their fair value. Cost of
disposal is deducted from the recognized value, if significant, Property, plant and equipment
and intangible assets once classified as held for sale are not depreciated or amortized.
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27.0 Events Occurring After Balance Sheet Date:

Impact of events occurring after Balance Sheet date that provide additional information
materially affecting the determination of the amounts relating to conditions existing at the
Balance Sheet date are adjusted to the respective assets and liabilities.

The Company does not adjust the amounts recognized in its Financial Statements to reflect
the impact of events or conditions that arises after the reporting year.

Significant events arising after the Balance Sheet date are disclosed in the Financial
Statements.

28.0 Miscellaneous

a) Each material class of similar items is presented separately in the financial statements.
Items of a dissimilar nature or function are presented separately unless they are
immaterial.

b) Liabilities for Goods in transit/Capital works executed but not certified are not provided
for, pending transfer of ownership, inspection and acceptance by the Company.

Signed as an annexure to Balance Sheet

for V A K & Associates. for and on behalf of the Board of
Directors
Chartered Accountants
(FR.% 019636N) | SN
I} R - i (Rajendra Prasad Goyal) (Ramesh Mukhiya)
' N Director Managing|Bfect
DIN No.08645380 DIN No. 104,1«5’{0?m

Partner \\“’/Q
MRN: 502417  Sse==r W
{Sanjay Kirmar Gupta) (SudBir Apdnd)

General Manager (Finance)

Place : Jammu

Date :M
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a3 Auuun Auus wapl AS at 318t March, 2025
0f-Apr-2024
i) Roads and Bridges 7635.84 2052.49 {1.33) 94.76 $592.24
ii Buildings 83180.26 38274.72 (0.80) 222.62 11921156
Tii) Bullding-Under Lease - .
iv) Railway sidings B N
¥) myy‘g;“?:eg:rﬁg:":fe' S‘I"t’:;i;ﬁ';'“d”“‘” systam, 199431.49 242573,21 @73.21) 44183148
vi} Generating Piant and Machinery 7123443 36029.81 (9.96) 107254.38
lvin Plant and Machinery - Sub stafion 31.35 {1088} 2047
vili} Plant and Machinery - Transmission lines 1075.68 2053.27 10,88 2139.83
ix} Plant and Machinery - Others N -
X} Consiruclion Eguipment - .
0 Water Supply SystemvDrainage and Sewerage 37.50 24.47 16.41 45.56
Xii) Compulers - ] .
it} Communication Equipment - -
Xiv) Office Equipments - 52.06 - 52,06
xv) Assels awailing inslallaticn . 8.51 8.51
xvi) JCWIP - Assels Under 5 KM Scheme Of the GOI - B
Xvil) Survey, investigation, consultancy and supervision charges 405823 107.56 4163.79
xviiy | Expenditure on compensalory Afferestalion - N
Xix) Expenditure atiributable to construclion {Refer Note-33) 124687.11 2477722 (6.80) 149457.53
Less: Capilal Work in Progress Provided (Refer Note 2,2.4) - -
Sub total {a) 431349.89 343553.42 {92.19) 333.79 B34BY7.42
Construction Stores 1.22 - 1.22
Less : Provisions for construction slores - - -
Sub total {b} 1.22 - - - 1.22
TOTAL 491351.11 343953 (92} 333.7% B834878.64
Previous year 287673.82 195286.41 {18.11) 1601.00 42135114
221 {a) CWIP aging schedule as on 31st March 2025
Amount in CWIP for a period of
Lwie Less than 1 Year, 1-2 Years 2-3 Years|  More than 3 Years Total
Projects in Prograss . . 3,43,527.53 200.715.23 1,04,268.54 1,86.363.34 8,34.878.64
Projects temperarily Suspanded _
Total 3.43.627.53 2,00,715.23 1,04,268.94 1,86,363.34 8,34,878.54
(B} CWIE Completion Schedule as on 3154 March 2025 far delayed projects
CWIP To be Completed In Total
Less than {1 Year, 1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than 3 Years
Pakal Dui HER - - - §,42,843.74 5,42,843.74
Kiru HEP - - 224293.81 - - 2,24.293.81
Total - 2,24,293.81 - 5,42,843.74 7,67,137.56
222 {a) CWiP aging schedule as on 31st March 2624
. Amount in CWIP for a period of
cwp Less than 1 Year 1.2 Years 2-3 Years More than 2 Years Total
Proiects In Progress 1.93,677.30 1,10131.74 58,418.22 4.26,123.85 4,91,351.11
| Projects temporarily Suspended : - |
Total 1,93,677.30 1,10,431.74 58,418.22 1.26.123.85 4,.91,35%.11
(b) CWiP Completian Schedule as on 31st March 2024 for delayed projects .
To be Completed in
cwie Less than 1 Year 1-2 Years 23 Years More than 3 Years Total
Pakal Dul HEP - - 3,27.565.77 - 3,27 565,77
Kiru HEP - 1,29,093.64 - - 1.29,093.64
Total 1.29,083.64 3,27.585.17 - 4,56,650.41

2.2.3 Expenditure atlibutable to Construction (EAC) includes T 5944.13 Lakhs (Previous year T 3153.80 Lakhs} toward!

s borrowing cost capitalised during the year.

2.2.4 Underground Works amounting {o ¥ 28717.48 Lakhs (Pravious yea.r 123223.49 Lakhs) crealed on "Land -Right fo Use" classified under Right of Use As;;els. are included under respective heads of

Capital Work in Progress [CWIP),

2.25 Refer Nole no. 34(8} of Financial Statemants for information of nan-current assets pladged with banks as security for related borrowings.

2.28 Refer Note no. 34(17) of Financlal Slatements for information regarding Impaliment of Assets.

2.2.7 Amount shown under adjustment calumn Includes amount of claim w.r.t 9% SGST {o be reimbursed by the Slate Taxes Department, Government of J&X 1o the Cormpany in terms of scheme
“Reimbursement of State Goods and Servicas Taxes on Uliization of Goods and Service in the Powar Projects in the Union Terilozy of Jammu and Kashmir {RSGTPP)" for development and
construction of Pakat Dul, K and Kwar HEP nelified by Finance Deparimant, Govemment of Jammu & Kashmir vide Notification 50, 281 di. 7.08.2021 and interhead adjustmenis efc.

SalNale
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{T in Lakhs)

PARTICULARS

As at 31st March, 2025

As at 31st March, 2024

Total

NOTENO. 3.2 NON-CURRENT - FINANCIAL ASSETS - TRADE RECEIVABLES

(T in Lakhs)

PARTICULARS

As at 31st March, 2025

As at 31st March, 2024

Trade Receivables - Considered Good- Unsecured (Refer Note 3.2.1, 3.2.2
and 3.2.3)

Total

3.2.1 Refer Annexure-t to Note No-2.2 for Ageing schedule of Trade Recsivables,

3.2,2 Debt due by directors or other officers of the company or any of them either
severally or jointly with any other persen or debts due by firms or private
companies respectively in which any director of the Company is a pariner or a
director or a member.

3.2.3 Debt due by subsidiaries/ Joint Ventures and others related pastigs of the
comipany . .

Nil

Nif

3.2,4 Refer Note 34(12) of the Financial Statements with regard to confirmation of balances,

Nil

il
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NUIE ND. 3.3 NUN-UURRENT - FINANCIAL ASSETS - LOANS {¥ in Lakhs)
PARTICULARS As at 31st March, 2025 As at 31st March, 2024
At Amortised Cost
A Loan to Related Party - Credit Impaired- Unsecured
Less: Loss Allowances for doubtful loan to Related Party {Refer Note 3.3.4) - -
: . Sub-tofal - -
B Loans to Employees (including acerued interest) (Refer Note 3.3.2 and
3.3.3)
- Considered good- Secured 8.66 8.32
- Considered good- Unsecured 94.55 80.38
- Credit Impaired- Unsecured - -
Less : Loss Allowances for doubtful Employees loans (Refer Note 3.3.4) - -
Sub-total 103.21 88.70
[ Contractor f supplier
- Considered good- Secured - -
- Censidered good- Unsecured - -
- Against bank guarantee - -
~ Others - -
- Credit Impaired- Unsecured - -
Less | Loss Allowances for doubtful advances to Contractdr/ Supplier (Refer . R
Note 3.3.5) :
Sub-total - -
D State Government in settlement of dues from customer
- Considered good- Secured
- Considered good- Unsecured - -
- Credit Impaired- Unsecured
Less : Loss Allowances for doubtful Logn to State Government (Refer Note
3.3.6)
Sub-total - -
E Loan including Interest to Government (Refer Note 3.3.7)
- Considered good- Unsecured ’ N - -
’ : ) Sub-total - -
TOTAL 103.21 88.70
3.3.1]Loans and advances in the nature of loan that are repayable on demand.,
Loans and advances in the nature of foan that are without specifying any terms
or period of repayment.
3.3,2{Due from directors or other officers of the company. (Refer Note 34(8) of
. Financial Staiements).
3.3.3|Lass Allowances for doubtful loan to Related Party
Opening Balance B
Addltion during the year .
Used during the year
Reversed during the year
Closing balance - -
3.3.4 Logs Allowances for doubtfu! Employess loans

3.3.5

Addition during the year

Closing balance

Loss Allowances for doubtful advances to Contractor! Supplier
Addition during the year

GClosing balance

338

Loss Allowances for doubtful Loan to State Government
Addition during the year

Closing balance

337

Loan to Government granted for Business Purpose includes ;

- Principal
- Interest

3.3.8 Loans are non-derivative financial assets which generate a fixed or variable interest income for the company. The Carrying value may be

3.3.8

affected by the changes in the credit risk of the counterparties.

Advance due by firms or privale companties in which any Direclor of the
Company is a Director ar member .

Nil

3.3.10 Refer Note 34(12) of the Financial Statements with regard to confirmation of balances.

Nil

o
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NOTE NO,

3.4 NON-CURRENT - FINANCIAL ASSETS - OTHERS

(T in Lakhs)

PARTICULARS

As at 31st March, 2025

As af 31st March, 2024

aEaleNe

mm o oW

F X~ -Im

Security Deposits

- Considered good- Unsecured

- Credit Impaired- Unsecured

Less : Loss Allowances for Doubtful Deposits (Refer Note 3.4.1)
) Sub-fotal

Bank Deposits with more than 12 Months Maturity (Refer Note 3.4.2)

Lease Rent receivable

Amount Recoverable on account of Bonds Fully Serviced by Govermment of

India

Interest receivable on lease

Interest accrued on:

- Bank Deposits with more than 12 Months Maturity

Derivative Mark to Market Asset

Derivative Asset Under Hedged Confract

Recsivable on account of Late payment Surcharge

Receivable on account of Guarantee Fee

Amount Recoverable

Share Application Money Pending Allotment
- Subsidiary Moint Venture
Less:-Loss allowances for Share application money pending allotment

138.72

18.44

13B.72

4,682.43

Sub-total

TOTAL

18.44

3.4.1

3.4.2 'Bank Deposits of more than 12 months maturity includes FDR of Rs. 46,82,43,000/- which has been laken to provide 100% margin mongy

Loss Allowances for Doubtful Deposits
Opening Balance

Acdition during the year

Used during the yvear

Revarsed during the year

Closing balance

for Bank Guarantee issued by the Company for oblaining electricity connection.

3.4.3 Refer Nole 34(9) of the Financlal Statements with regard 1o assets mortgagedfypothecatad as security.

3.4.4

Loss Allowances for.Share Application Money Pending Allotment

Opening Balance
Addition during the year
Used during the year
Reversed during the year

Closing balance

3.4.5 Refer Note 34{12) of the Financial Statements with regard to confirmation of balances,

e e N e N S e T e N e S
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(¥ in Lakhs)

PARTICULARS

As at 31st March, 2025

As at 31st March, 2024

A. CAPITAL ADVANCES
- Considered good- Secured
- Considered good- Unsecured
— Against bark guarantee
- Others
Less : Expenditure bocked pending utilisation certificate
- Censidered doubtful - Unsecured
Less : Allowances for doubtful advances (Refer Note 4.1)
Sub-total

B. ADVANCES OTHER THAN CAPITAL ADVANCES
i) DEPOSITS
- Considered good- Unsecured .
Less : Expenditure bocked against demand raissd by Gavernment
Departments. ~
- Considered doubtful - Unsecured
Less : Allowances for Doubtful Deposits (Refer Note 4.2)

1,142.70

16,611.66
28,617.31

3,664.15

25,522.09
19,925.52

46,371.67

49,512.66

Sub-total

C Interest acerued
Others
- Considered Good
D. Others
B Advance against arbitration awards towardslcapitaf works (Unsecured)

Released to Contractors - Against Bank Guaraniee
Released to Contractors - Qthers

Deposited with Court

Less: Expenditure booked pending Settlement of Cases

132.22

1,754.32

Sub-total

ii) Prepaid Expenditure

iii} Non Current Tax Assets (Net)
Advance Income Tax including Tax Deducied at Source
Less: Provision for Current Tax
Non Current Tax (Refer Note 23)

iv) Deferred Foreign Currency Fiuctuation Assets/ Expenditure

Deferred Foreign Currency Fluctuation Assels
Deferred Expenditure on Foreign Currency Fluctuation

Sub-total

v) Deferred Cost on Employees Advances

31.89

24.51

TOTAL

46,887.51

51,302,52

4.1 Allowances for doubtful Advances
Opening Balance
Addition during the year
Used during the year
Reversed during the vear

Closing balance

4.2 Allowances for doubtful Deposits
Opening Balance
Addition during the year
Used during the year
Reversed during the year

Closing balance

4.3 Due from Directors or other officers of the company.
4.4 Advances due by Firms or Private Companies in which any director of the .
Company is a director or member.

Nil
Nil

4.5 Refer Note 34{12) of the Financial Statements with regard to confirmation of balances.

Nil
Nit
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NUIENU. S INVENTORIES

(% in Lakhs)

PARTICULARS

As at 31st March, 2025

As at 31st March, 2024

(Valued at lower of Cost or Net Realisable Valug)

Stares and spares

Stores and spares-Stores in transit/ pending inspection

Loose fools

Material at site

Material issued to contractors/ fabricators

Carbon Credifs / Cerlified Emission Reductions (CERSs) / Verified Carbon Units
{VCUs) (Refer Note 34{20) for Quantitative details of Carbon Credit
certificates)

Total

Less: Allowances for Obsolescence and Diminution in Value (Refer Note 5.1)

TOTAL

5.1 Allowances for Obsolescence and Diminution in Value
Opening Balance
Addition during the year (Refer Note 5.1.1)
Used during the year
Reversed during the year (Refer Note 5,1.2)

Ciosing balance

5.1,1 Inventories written down {o net realisable value (NRV) and recognised as an
expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss during the year,

5.1.2 Allowances for obsolence and diminution in value of inventery booked in
earlier years and reversed during the year. ’

NOTE NO. 6 CURRENT - FINANCIAL ASSETS - INVESTMENTS

(% in Lakhs)

PARTICULARS

As at 31st March, 2025

As at 31st March, 2024

ﬁ f-\ T

Quoted Debt nstruments - At Fair Value through Other Comprehensive
income {OCI)
Government Securities

TOTAL

6.1.1 Refer Note 3.1.2 for earmarked security against Bonds maturing during the Financial Year 2024-25.
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UL ] WURRER | - FINANUIAL ADSEDS - FKADE RECEIVABLES

(¥ in Lakhs)

PARTICULARS As at 31st March, 2025

As at 31st March, 2024

- Trade Receivables- Considered Good- Unsecured (Refer Note
7.3,7.4,7.5,7.7 and 7.8)

- Trade Receivables-Unbilled- Considered Good- Unsecured {Refer Note
7.27.3, 75, 7.6and7.7)

- Trade Receivables -Credit impaired (Refer Note 7.3 and 7.5)

Less: Loss allowances for Trade Receivables (Refer Note 7.1)

TOTAL

7.1 Loss allowances for Trade Receivables

Opening Balance
Addition during the year
Used during the year
Reversed during the year

Closing balance

7.2 During the reporting year, the company has not recognised any impairment loss in respect of unbifled debtors.

7.3 Debt due by directors or other officers of the company or any of them either
severally or jointly with any other person or debts dus by firms or private
companias respactively in which any divector of the Company is a partneror a
direclor or a member.

7.4 Debt due by subsidiaries/ Joint Ventures and others refated pariies of the
company.

7.5 Refer Annexure-! to Note No-7 for Ageing schedule of Trade Recsivables.

7.6 Represents receivable on account of ;
Grossing up of Return on Equity
Water cess
Unbilled sale for the month of March
Saving duz to refinancing & Bond Issue Expenses
Tax adjusiment including Deferred Tax Materialized
Energy Shortfall
Additional Impact of Goods and Services Tax
Fereign Exchange Rate Variation
O &M and Securily Expenses-Incresae as per new Tariff Regulation 2018-24

Depreciation on account of change in project liie

Wage Revision

Unbilled Deblor- Power Trading Business

tmpact of Truing up 2014-19 and Petition filed for 2019-24.
Others

Total

7.7 Due to the short-term nature of the current Trade Receivables, the carrying amount of 2 Nil (Previous Year Nil} is equivalent fo their

transaction price.
7.8 Trade Recsivables amounting to T Nit {Previous

darecognised in view of ferms of the bill discounting agreement as per which the Company guarantees to compensate the banks for credit

losses that may occur in case of default by the re

Year ¥ Nil ) liquidated by way of discounting of bills from various banks have not been

spective beneficiaries, Refer Note 20.1.1 with regard to fability recognised in respect of

discounted Lills,

7.9 Refer Note 34(12) of the Financial Statements with regard to confirmation of balanices.

o
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NS NV 0 LURRENT - FINANGIAL ASSETS - CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

(% in Lakhs}

PARTICULARS

As at 31st March, 2025

As at 31stMarch, 2024

A Balances with banks
With scheduled banks
i - In Current Account
if} - In deposits account
(Deposits with original maturity of three months or less}

iii) - in Current Account -Other Earmarked Balances with Banks
{Refer Note 8.2)

With other banks
- In current account
Bank of Bhutan
B Cheques, drafts on hand
c Cash on hand {Refer Note 8.1)

4,103.27

2,582.97

26,000,00

TOTAL

4,103.27

28,582,97

8.1 Includes stamps on hand

8.2 Includes balances which are nat freely available for the business of the
Company :-

(i) held for works being executed by Company on behalf of other agencies.

Total

NOTE 2 : CURRENT - FINANCIAL ASSETS - BANK BALANCES OTHER THAN CASH AN

D CASH EQUIVALENTS

{Z In Lakhs)

PARTICULARS

As at 31st March, 2025

As at 31st March, 2024

A Bank Deposits for original matwity more than 3 months upio 12 months (Refer
Note 9,1}

B | Earmarked Balances with Banks
- Deposit -Unpaid Dividend (Refer Note 9.2 and 9.3)
- Deposit -Unpaid Principall Interest
- Other (Refer Note 9.4)

2,811.00

2,611.00

TOTAL

2,811.00

8.1 Includes balances which are not freely available for the business of the Company :

{1} held for works being executed by Ccmpany_ en behalf of ather agencies.

T
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NUIE NO. 10 GURRENT - FINANCIAL ASSETS - LOANS (T in Lakhs)
PARTICULARS As at 31st March, 2025 As at 31st March, 2024
A Loans {including interest thereon) to Related Parties - Unsecured {Refer,

Note 34(8),10.1)
Loan Receivable - (Considered Good)

Loan Receivable-Credit Impaired

Less : Loss Allowances for doubtful lsan to Related Party {Refer Note
10.3)

Sub-tofal

B Loans fo Employees {including accrued interest) (Refer Note 10.1 and
10.2)
- Considered good- Secured
- Considered good- Unsecured
- Credit Impaired- Unsecured

Less ! Loss Allowances for doubtful Employees Ioan‘s (Refer Note 10.4)

1.38
121,60

1.66
87.94

Sub-total

122.98

88.50

c Loan to State Government in setflement of dues from customer

- Unsecured (considered good)

Sub-total

D Advances to Subsidiaries / JV's

TOTAL

122.98

89.50

10.4 Loans and advances in the nature of loan that are repayable on demand.

Loans and advances in the nature of loan that are without specifying any terms
or period of repayment.

10.2 Due from directors or other officers of the company.

10.3|Loss Allowances for doubtful loan to Related Party
Opening Balance

Addition during the year

Used during the year

Reversed during the year

Closing balance

10.4 Loss Allowances for doubtful Employees loans
Cpening Balance
Addition during the year
Used during the year
Reversed during the year

Closing balance

10.5 Advance due by firms or private companies in which any Director of the
Company is a Director or member .

16.6 Loans are non-derivative financial assets which generate a fixed or variable interest income fo

affected by changes in the credit risk of the counterparties.

Nil

10.7 Refer Note 34(12) of the Financial Statements with regard to confirmation of balances.

r the company. The Carrying value may be

Nil
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NOTE NQ. 11 CURRENT - FINANCIAL ASSETS - OTHERS

(% in Lakhs)

PARTICULARS

As at 31st March, 2025

As at 3tst March, 2024

)

= I&Hm m

oOoz=E2r X

Security Deposits
- Considered good- Unsecured
- Credit impaired~ Unsecured

Less : Loss Allowances for Doubtiul Deposits (Refer Note 11.1)

Sub-total

Amount recoverahle from
- Insurance Company
- Empioyee Benefits Trust
- Others [Refer Note 11.2}

Sub-total
Less: Loss Allowances for Doubiful Recoverables (Refer Note 11.3)

Sub-total
Receivable from Subsidiaries / joint Ventures
Receivable on account of Late Payment Surcharge
Less: Loss allowances for Receivable on account of tate Payment Surcharge
(Refer Note 11.4)

Sub-total
Lease Rent receivable (Finance Lease) {Refer Note 34{15))

Interest Income accrued on Bank Deposits {Refer Note 11.5)

interesi receivable on Finance lease

Interest recoverable from beneficiary

Interest Accrued on Investment (Bonds)

Amount Recoverable on account of Bonds Fully Serviced by Government of
India

-Principal

- Interest accrued

Interest accrued on Loan to State Government in setllement of dues from
customers

Derivative Mark To Market Asset

Derivative Asset Under Hedge Contract

Receivable on account of Guarantes Fee

Claim recoverable from: parent company - NHPC LTD.

119.28

119.28

47,664,60

26.032.77

47,664,650

26,032.77

47,664.60

26,035.77

TOTAL

47,669.84

26,203.81

111

11.3

11.5

Loss Allowances for Doubtful Deposits

Opening Balance
Addition during the year
Used during the year
Reversed dusing the year

Closing balance

Amount recoverable - It includes amount of claim to be reimbursed by
State Taxes Department, Gavernment of J&X to the Company in terms of
scheme “Reimbursement of State Goods and Services Taxes on
ttilization of Goods and Service in the Power Projects in the Union
Territory of Jammu and Kashmir (RSGTPP)” for development and
construction of PakalDul HEP, Kiru HEP &Kwar HEP notified by Finance
Department, Government of Jammu & Kashmir vide Notification SO. 281
dt. 17.08.2021 to the extent Suppliers’ invoices are reflected in GSTR 2A
of the Company including cash pald by it on Reverse Charge Mechanism
(RCM) basis, Wherever the amount of claim to be reimbursed by State
Taxes Department, Government of J&K was booked as cost of
PPEICWIP in earlier years, the same has also heen included in the
recoverable amount after Corresponding adjustment to PPE/CWIP.
Further, an amount of Rs. 61.92 Crores of SGST Reimbursement has
been received till 31.03.2025 and the amount shown in the note 11 above
is after adjustment of amount received from State Government.

47,458.01

25,861.70

L.oss Allowances for Doubtful Recoverables
Opening Balance

Addition during the year

Used during the year

Reversed dusing the year

Closing balance

Loss Aflowances for Receivables on account of late payment surcharge

Opening Balance
Addition during the year
Used during the year
Reversed during the year

Closing halance

Includes Interest accrued on balances of held for works being executed by
Company on behalf of other agencies and are not freely available for the
business of the Company.

Nil

11.6 Refer Note 34(9) of the Financial Statemants with regard to assets morigaged/ hypothecated as securily.
11.7 Refer Note 34(12} of the Financial Statements with regard to confirmation of balances.

Nil
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NOTE NO. 12 GURRENT TAX ASSETS (NET)

(T in Lakhs)

PARTICULARS

As at 31st March, 2025

As at 31st March, 2024

Current Tax Assets
A Advénce income Tax including Tax Deducted at Source
B Less: Provision for Current Tax

Net Current Tax Assets (A-B)

Current Tax

Total

NOTE NO. 13.1 OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

(% in Lakhs)

PARTICULARS

As at 31ist March, 2025

As at 31st March, 2024

A, Advances other than Capital Advances
a) Déposits
- Considered good- Unsecured
Less
Departements
- Considered doubtful- Unsecured
- Less ! Allowances for Doubtful Deposits (Refer Note 13.1.1)

Sub-total

b} Advance to contractors and suppliers (Refer Note 13.1.8)
- Considered good- Secured
- Considered good- Unsecured
— Against bank guarantes
-~ Others
Less : Expenditure booked pending utilisation certificate
- Considered doubtful- Unsecured
Less : Allowances for doubiful advances (Refer Note 13.1.2)

Sub-fotal

¢} Other advances - Employees
- Considered good- Unsecured (Refer Note 13.1.7)
Sub-total
d) Interest accrued
Others
- Considered Good
- Considered Doubtful
Less: Allowances for Doubtful Inferest  (Refer Note 13.1.3}

Expenditure booked against demand raised by Gavernment

16.38

0.39

1.3

0.38

1.93

1,880.94

187.74

Sub-total

1,880.94

187.74

B. Others
a) Expenditure awaiting adjustment
Less: Allowances for project expenses awaiting write off sanction {Refer
Note 13.1.4)

Sub-total

b} Losses/Assets awaifing write off sanction/pending investigation
Less: Allowances for losses/Assels pending investigation/awaiting write off /
sanction {Refer Note 13.1.5)

Sub-total

¢} Work In Pragress
Canstruction work in progress(on behalf of ciient)
Consultancy work in progress{on behalf of client)
d} Prepaid Expenditure .
e) Deferred Cost on Employees Advances
) Deferred Foreign Currency Fluctuation
Deferred Foreign Currency Fluctuation Assets
Deferred Expenditure on Foreign Currency Fluctuation
g) Goods and Services Tax Input Receivable
Less: Allowances for Goods and Services Tax Input Receivable (Refer Note
13.1.8)

72.46
8.12

1.43

Sub-total

1.43

h) Others {Mainly on account of Material Issued to Contractors)

TOTAL

2,123.26

407.30

13.1.1 Allowances for Doubtful Deposits

Opening Balance
Addition during the year
Used during the year
Reversed during the vear

Closing balance

13.1.2 Allowances for doubtful advances (Confractors and Suppliers)
Opening Balance
Addition during the year
Used during the year
Reversed during the year

Closing balance
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13.1.3 Allowances for Doubtful Accrued Interest
Opening Balance
Addition during the year
Used during the year
Reversed during the year

Closing balance

Opening Balance
Addition during the year
Used during the year
Reversed during the year

13.1.4 Allowances for project expenses awaiting write off sanction

Closing balance

sanction

Opening Balance
Addition during tha year
Used during the year
Reversad during the year

13.1.5 Allowances for losses pending investigation/ awaiting write off /

Closing balance

QOpening Balance
Addition during the year
Usad during the year
Reversed during the vear

13.1.6 Allowances for Goods and Services Tax input Receivable

Closing halance

Finarcial Statements).

13.1.7  Due from directors or other officers of the company. (Refer Note 34(8) of

13.1.8  Advance due by Firms or Private Companies in which any Dnrector of the

Company is a Director or member. Nit Nit
13.1.9  Refer Note 34(12) of the Financial Statements with regard to confirmation of balances.
NOTE NO. 13.2 ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE (¥ in Lakhs)
PARTICULARS As at 31st March, 2025 As at 31st March, 2024
Property, Plant and Equipment (Refer Note 13.2.1) 6.95 1.78
TOTAL 6.95 1.76
13.21 Properly, Plant and Equipment includes Plant and equipment and Other assets (Office equipment, vehicles,furniture and fixtures,etc.)

identified for disposal due 1o replacementf obsolescence of assets in the normal course of operations.
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NOTE NO. 14.4 REGULATORY DEFERRAL ACCOUNT DEBIT BALANGCES

(% in Lakhs)

NOTE NO. 142 REGULATORY DEFERRAL ACCOUNT CREDIT BALANCES

PARTICULARS As at 31st March, 2025 As at 31st March, 2024
A Wage Revision as per 3rd Pay Revision Committee
Cpening Balance -
Adjusiment during the year (through Statement of Profit and Loss) (Refer .
Note 31)
Adjustment during the year {through Other Comprehensive tncome) (Refer _
Note 30.2) ’
Reversed during the year
Closing balance - -
B Differential Depreciation due to Moderation of Tariff
Opening Balance -
Addition during the year (Refer Note 31) -
Adjustment during tha year
Reversed during the vear
Closing balance - .
C Exchange Differences on Monetary ltems
Opening Balance 52,31 56.37
Addition during the year {Refer Nofe 31) 24.51 (4.08)
Adjustment during the year
Reversed during the year
Closing balance 76.82 §52.31
D Interest Payment on Court/Arbitration Cases '
Opening Balance -
Addition during the year (Refer Nofe 31)
Adjustment during the year
Reversed during the year
Closing balance - -
E Adjustment against Deferred Tax Recoverable for tariff period upto 2009 !
Opening Balance .
Addition during the year (Refer Note 31)
Used during the year
Reversed during the year
Ciosing balance - "
F Adjustment against Deferred Tax Liabilities for tariff period 2014-2019
and onwards '
Opening Balance -
Addition during the year (Refer Note 31)
Used during the year
Reversed during the year
Closing balance - -
Closing Balance (A+B+C+D+E+F) 76,82 52.31
Less: Deferred Tax on Regulatory Deferral Account Balances - -
Add: Deferred Tax recoverable from Beneficiaries - -
Regulatory Deferral Account Balances net of Deferred Tax. 76.82 52,31
1411 Refer Note 34 (17) and 34 {(19) of Financial Statements for futher disclosures regarding Impairment
’ and Regulatory Deferral Account {Debit) Balances respectively. :
(¥ in Lakhs)

PARTICULARS

As at 31st March, 2025

As at 31st March, 2024

MAT Credit to be passed on fo beneficiaries
Opening Balance
Addition during the year {Refer Note 31)
Used during the year (Refer Note 31)
Reversed during the year (Refer Note 31)

Closing balance

14.2.1
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NOTE:15.1 EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL {Z in Lakhs}
PARTICULARS As at 31st March, 2025 As at 31st March, 2024
Nos Amount Nos Amount
( Authorized Share Capital (Par value per share Rs. 80000.00 800000.00 52000.00( * 520000.00
. 10) .
Equity shares issued, subscribed and fully paid (Par 56300.11 563001.10 44503.41 445034.10
( value per share Rs. 10)
(-- 15.1.1 Reconciliation of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year:-
- Opening Balance 4450341 445034.10 36923,91 369239.1¢
( ) Add: No, of shares/Share Capital issued/ 11796.70 117967.00 7579.50 75795.00
- subscribed during the year ]
Less:-Buyback of shares during the year 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
( Closing Balance 56300.11 563001.10 44503.41 445034.10
( 15.1.2 The Company has issued cnly ane kind of equity shares with voting rights propertionate to the share holding of the shareholders, These
voting rights are exercisable at meeting of shareholders. The holders of the equity shares are also entitled o recsive dividend as declared
) from time to time. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares wifl be entitled {o receive remaining assets of the
( Campany, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distributicn wilf be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the
sharehalders. .
( 15.1.3 Shares in the company held by edch shareholder holding more than 5 percent specifying the number of shares held ; -
= Shareholders As at 31st March, 2025 As at 31st March, 2024
L Number in (%) Number In {%)
1) NHPC Limited 33301.01 59.15% 24041.11 54.02%
(" i) JKSPDOC Limited 22899,10 40.85% 20462.30 45.98%
b Total 56300,11 100.00% . 44503.41 100.00%
(~ 15.1.4 - Shareholding of Promoters as at 31st March 2025 -
S.No [Promoter Name No. of Shares % of Total Shares (% Change during
s the year ’
(: NHPC Limited 33301.01 58.15% 5.13%
' JKEPDC Limited 23995.10 40.85% 5.13%
-
.
15.1.5 Shareholding of Promoters as at 31st March 2024 :-
C S.No [Promoter Name - No. of Shares % of Total Shares |[% Change during
-~ the year
[\
NHPC Limited 24041.11 54.02% 1.28%
C .
( JKSPDC Limited 20462.30 45,98% -1.28%
-
M
{/'
.
(L
L
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NOTE NO. 15,2 OTHER EQUITY

{% in Lakhs)

PARTICULARS

As at 3tst March,
2025

As at 31st March,
2024

{i} Capital Reserve
_Opening Balance

Closing Balance

{ii) Share Application Money Pending Allotment
As per last Balance Sheet
Add: Received During The Year
Less: Shares lssued durdng the Year

22,916.00
95,051.08
1,17,867.00

22,469,00
76.242.00
75,795.00

As at Balance Sheet date

22,916.00

(i) Capital Redemption Reserve
Opening Batance

Closing Balance

(iv) Bond Redemption Reserve
Opening Balance
Less: Transfer to SurplusiRetsined Earnings

Closing Balange

(v) General Reserve
Opening Balance

Closing Balance

(vi) Surplus/ Retained Earnings
Opening Balance
Add: Profit dusing the year
Add: Other Comprehensive Income during the year
Add: Transfer from Bond Redemption Reserve
Less: Dividend (Final and Inferim)

8,083.47
-1,248.11

7.815.28
1,068.19

Closing Balance

7,735.36

8,983.47

(vii} Fair value through Other Cémprehensive Income (FVTOCIH)-Debt Instruments

Cpening Balance
Add: Change it Fair value of FYTOC! {Net of Tax)

Closing Balance

Opening Balance
Add: Change in Fair value of FYTOCI (Net of Tax)

" {viii) Fair value through Other Comprehensive [ncome {FVTOCH-Equity Instruments

Closing Balance

{ix) Fair value through Other Comprehensive income (FVTOCI)-Cost of Hedge Reserve

Opening Bafance
Add: Change in Fair value of FYTOC! (Net of Tax)

Closing Balance

TOTAL

7,735.36

31,899.47

15.2.1 Nature and Purpose of Reserves

(i} General Reserve : The General Reserve Is used from time to i

as the same is created by fransfer from one com
Companies Act, 2013

(i) Surplus/ Retained Earnings : Surplus/ Refained earnin
of the company -and includes remeasurement gain/ losse:

me 1o transfer prefits from retained earnings for appropriation purposes,
panent of equity to ancther.The same will be utiised as per the provisions of the

gs generally represent the undistributed profit! amount of accumulated earnings
s on defined benefit obligations,
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NOTE NO. 16,1 NON CURRENT - FINANCIAL LIABILITIES - BORROWINGS

(% in Lakhs)

PARTICULARS

As at 31st March, 2025

As at 31st March, 2024

At Amortised Cost
A - Secured Loans
-Bonds
-Terrn Loan
- from Banks
- from Other (Financial Instilutions)
B -Unsecured Loans
-Bonds
«Term Loan
- from Bank
- from Government of india (Suberdinate Debts)
{Refer Note 16,1.2)
- from Other (in Foreign Currency)
c Loan from Parent Company
- Term Loan -Unsecured

1.67,756.44

88,197.52

60,987.31

TOTAL

2,46,953.96

60,987.31

16.1.1  Debt Covenants : Refer Note 33(3) with regard to cagpital Management,

This includes current maturity amounting to ¥ Nil (Previous Year 3 Nil). -
16.1.3

1612 1.Term Loan-From Goverament of Ingia {(Subordinate Debts) is net of fair valuation since these loans carry interest rate which is lower than
the prevailing market rate, Tofal Subordinate Debig outstanding as on 31.3.2025 is ¥ 2796,39,00,000/- (Previous Year ¥ 1627,71,00,000/-),

16.1.3.A fPartlculars of redemptions , repayments and securities

Al el alaY

{A). TERM LOANS - From Banks (Secuirad)
1 {i) REC {for Kiru HEP)

{Loan for Kirw HEP, sanciioned @ 8.60% p.a. interest rale {Internal
Benchmark Rate/card rafe with fixed rebate of 255 bps) with annual reset,
currently at 8.35% per anaum. The principle shall be repaid in 72 quastery
instalments commencing from the end of first quarer after one year,
moratesium peried from COD. The interest shall be paid on monthly basis on
outstanding loan amount. The loan shall be secured by way of creation of
charge on movable and immevable assets of Kiru HEP on pari-passu basis.
(refer note 34(8)).

2 (i) PFC [for Kiru HER)

(Loan for Kiru HEP, sancioned @ 8,60% p.a. interest rate {tniernal
Benchmark Ratefcard rate with fixed rebate of 255 bps) with annual reset,
currently a1 8.35% per annum, The principle shall be repaid in 72 quaresy
instalments commencing from the end of first quarter after one year
meratorivm period from COD. The interest shall be pald on menthly basis on
cutstanding loan amount}. The loan shall be secured by way of creafion of
charge on movable and immovable assets of Kire HEP on pari-passu basis.
(refer note 34(8)).

3 [iif) REC {For Pakal Dul HEP)

(sanctioned @ 9.20% p.a. { Internal Benchmark Ratelcard rate with fixed
rebate of 170 bps) with annual reset, The principle shall be repaid in 59
quarterly instalments commencing from the end of first quarter after 63 months
moratorium peried from COD).The interest shall be paid on monthly basis on
outstanding loan amount. The loan shall be secured by way of creafion of
charge on movable and immevable assets of Pakal Dul HEP on pari-passu
basis. (refer note 34(8}}

83,157.00

36,344.44

58,255.00

Total TERM LOANS - Banks {Secured)

1,57,756.44

Less Current Maturities of Principal
Less Current Maturities of interest acerued but not due

121,74

Total TERM LOANS - Banks (Secured) (A)

1.57,634.70

(B). Term Loan-From Other parties- Government {Unsecured}

Total Term Loan -Government (Unsecured)

(Subordinate Debt from Gevernment of India for Pakal Dul HEP {Repayment
to be starled from 8th year of completion of project and continue till 19th year
l.e. from September 2034 along with inferest @ 1% p.a fo be charged after
cempletion of the project).

Less Current Maturities of Principal
Less Current Maturities of interest accrued but not due

88,197.52

60,887.31

Totat Term Loan - Government (Unsecured) (B}

88,197.52

60,887.31

Grand Total (A+B)

2,45,832.22

60,987.31

6.1.3. N .
16138 Paticulars of security

16.1.4  Maturity Analysis of Borrowings

The table below summarises the maturily profile of the company's borrowings
and lease fiability based on contractual payments (Undiscounted Cash Flows}

Particulars

As at 31st March, 2025

As at 31st March, 2024

More {han 1 Year & Less than 3 Years
More thar 3 Year & Less than 5 Years

More than 5 Years

74,742.24

45,821.60
2,56,631.61

1,62,771.00

TOTAL

3,77,395,45

1,62,771.00

{
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NOTE NO. 16.2 NON CURRENT - FINANCIAL LIABILITIES - LEASE LIABILITIES

(¥ in Lakhs)

PARTICULARS As at 31st March, 2025 As at 31st March, 2024
Lease Liabilities {Refer Note 34(16)(A)) 58.78 2912
TOTAL 68.78 21.42

16.2.1 Maturity Analysis of Lease Liability
The table beloew summarises the maturity profile of the company's borrowings
and lease fiability based on contractual payments {Undiscounted Cash Flows}
Particulars As at_ 31ist March, 2025 As at 3tst March, 2024
More than 1 Year & Less than 3 Years 70.18 5.08
More than 3 Year & Less than 5 Years
More than 5 Years
TOTAL 70.18 8,08
16.2.2 Movement in Lease Liability As at 31st March, 2025 As at 31st March, 2024
Opening Balance 90.58 149.39
Addition in lease liabilities 117.20 42.38
Finance Cost accrued during the year 4.80 7.36
. Less: Payment of lzase liabilities 76,17 108,55
Closing Balance 138.51 90.58
Current mafurities of lease cbligations (Refer Note 20.2) 67.73 £9.46
Long term maturities of lease cobligations 68.78 21.12
NOTE NO. 16.3 NON CURRENT - FINANCIAL LIABILTIES - OTHERS (Z in Lakhs)

PARTICULARS

As at 31st March, 2025

As at 31st March, 2024

Payable towards Bonds Fully Serviced by Goavernment of India
- Principal

Refention Money

Liability against capital worksfsupplias

Payable for Late Payment Surcharge
Payable for Financial Guarantee

Derivative Mark To Market Liability
Derivative Liability-Hedged Coniract
Currency Opticn Premium Payable

TOTAL

16.3.1

Maturity Analysis of Note No-16.3

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the deposits/retention
money based on contractual payments (Undiscounted Cash Flows) ©

Particulars

As at 31st March, 2025

As at 31st March, 2024

More than ¥ Year & Less than 3 Years
More than 3 Year & Less than 5 Years

More than 5 Years

4.28

11.81

TOTAL

4.28

11.81
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NOTE NQ. 17 PROVISIONS - NON CURRENT

{Zin Lakhs)

" PARTICULARS

As at 31st March, 2025

As at 31st March, 2024

A. PROVISION FOR EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

o Provision for Long term Bengfits {Provided for on the basis of actuarial

valuation)

Opening Balance

Additions during the year
Amount used during the year
Armount reversed during the year

1,440.05
352.63

1,192.11
247,64

Closing Balance

1,792.68

1,440.05

B. OTHERS
i) Provision For Committed Capltal Expenditure
Opening Balance
Additions during the year
Amount used during the year
Amount reversed during the year
Unwinding of discount

Closing Balance

if) Provision For Livelihood Assistance
Opening Balance
Additions during the year
Amoeunt used during the year
Amcunt reversed during the year
Unwinding of discount

Closing Balance

ifi) Provision-Others
Opening Balance
Additions during the year
Amount used during the year
Amount reversed during the year

Closing Balance

TOTAL

1,792.68

1,440.05

17.1 Information about nature and puipose of Provisions is given in Note 34 (18} of Firancial Statements.

NOTENG. 18  NON CURR.ENT - DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (NET)

(% in Lakhs)

PARTICULARS

As at 31st March, 2025

As at 31st March, 2024

Deferred Tax Liability

a) Property, Plant and Equipments, Right of Use, Investment Property and
Intangible Assets,

b) Financial Assets at FVTOCI

c) Other ltems

Deferred Tax Liability

Less:-Set off of Deferred Tax Assets pursuant fo set off provisjiens
a) Provision for employee benefit scheme, doubtiul debts, inventory and others

b) Other ltams
c) MAT credit entitlement

Deferred Tax Assets

Deferred Tax Liahility (Net)
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NOTE NO

.19 OTHER NON CURRENT LIABILITIES

(% in Lakhs)

PARTICULARS

As at 31st March, 2025

As at 31st March, 2024

Income recsived in advance-Advance Against Depreclation
Deferred Foreign Currency Fluctuation Liabilities

Deferred Income from Foreign Currency Fluctuation Account {Refer Note
19.2)

Grants in aid from Government (Refer Note 19.1) 1,46,755,89 1,07,769.64
TOTAL 1,46,755.89 1,07,769.64
19.1 GRANTS IN AID FROM GOVERNMENT
Opening Bafance (Current and Non Current) 1,07,765.64 66,726.48
Add: Received during the year 38,986.25 41,043.16
Less: Transferred to Statement of Profit and Loss {Refer Note 24,2)
Closing Balance {Current and Non Current) (Refer Note 19.1.1) 1,46,755.89 1,07,769.64
Grants in Aid from Government-(Current)- (Refer Note No-21) - -
Grants in Aid from Government-{Ncn-Current) 1,46,755.89 1,07,769.64
19.1.1 Grant includes:- .
(i){ Fair value gain on Subordinate Debt received from Government of India for
Pakal Dul HEP accounted as Grant in Aid 1:43,871.56 1.07,769.64
{ii)] Grant in Aid received from MOP in relation to budgetary support for Enabling 4.3
Infrastructure facility of Kiru HEP. 3,384, -
Total 1,48,755.89 1,07,769.64
NOTE NG. 20.1 BORROWINGS - CURRENT (% in Lakhs)
PARTICULARS As at 31st March, 2025 As at 31st March, 2024
A Loan Repayzble on Demand
From 8anks-Secured - -
B Other Loans
From Bank-Secured - -
[ Current maturities of long term debt
- Bonds-Secured - -
- Term Loan -Banks-Secured - -
- Term Loan -Financial Institutions-Secured - -
- Term Loan -Barks-Unsecured - -
- Bonds-Unsecurad - .
- Unsecured-From Goverament (Subordinate Debis) - -
- Other-Unsecured (in Foreign Currency) - -
Sub Tofal (C) - -
D Loan from Parent Company
- Term Lean -Unsecured - -
TOTAL - -
NOTE NO. 20.2 CURRENT - FINANCIAL LIABILITIES - LEASE LIABILTIES (T in Lakhs)
PARTICULARS As at 3Mst March, 2025 As at 31st March, 2024
Lease Liabilities (Refer Note 34(15)) 67.73 £89.46
TOTAL 67.73 69.46
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NOTE NO. 20.3 TRADE PAYABLE - CURRENT

(F in Lakhs)
PARTICULARS As at 31st March, 2025 As at 31st March, 2024

Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises (Refer Note 20,3.1) 186.74 129.25

Total outstanding dues of Creditors other than micro and small enterprises
(Refer Note 20.3.3) 421.22 287.21
TOTAL 613,96 416.46

20.3.1 Disclosure regarding Micro, $mall and Medium Enterprise :-

Outstanding Liabiities towards Micro, Small and Madium Enterprise 186.74 129,25

Disclosure of amount payable to Micro and Small Enterprises is based on the information available with the Company regarding the status
of suppliers as defined under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2008 (the Act). Additional discloswre as required

under Section 22 of the Act is given under Note No.34(15) of Financial Statements.

20.3.2 Refer Annexure-| to Note No-20.3 for Ageing schedule of Trade Payables.

20.3.3 Total autstanding dues of Crediters other than micro enterprises and smal) -

enterprises includes Rs. Nil (Pevious Year Rs. Nil) due to Parent Company.,
20.3.4 Refer Note 34(12) of the Financial Statements with regard to confirmation of bafances.
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Annexure-| to Note No-20.3 - Ageing of Trade Payables (% in Lakhs)
As at 31st March 2025
Trade Payble due and outstanding for following period from due
Pariculars date of payment
Unbilled Less than 1 More than 3
hbitle year 1-2 years 2-3 years Years Totai
(i} MSME ' 186.74 ) 186.74
{ii) Others 381.39 14.4 26.42 1.50 3.51 427.22
(iii) Disputed dues-MSME 0
(iv} Disputed dues-Others b
Total 568.13 14.4 26.42 1.50 3.51 613.95
As at 31st March 2024
Trade Payhle due and outstanding for following period from due
. date of payment
Particut
euiars Unbilled Not D Less than 1 More than 3
notle otLue year 1-2 years 2-3 years Years ~ Total

{i) MSME 77.89 0.08 51.28 129.25
(i) Others 114.57 0 164.05 5.83 2,76 287.21
(ifi) Disputed dues-MSME 0
(iv) Disputed dues-Others 0
Totai 192.46
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215.33 5.83 2.76 0 416.46
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NOTE NO. 20.4 CURRENT - OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

{Z in Lakhs)

PARTICULARS

As at 31st March, 2025

As at 31st March, 2024

Bond application money

Liability against capital works/supplies other than Micro and Small Enterprises
(Refer Note 20.4.5)

Deposits .

Liability against capital worksfsupplies-Micro and Small Enterprises {Refer
Note 20.4.1)

Liability against Corporate Social Respansibility

Interest acerued but not due on borrowings (Refer Note 20.4.3)

Interest accrued and due on bomowings (Refer Note 20.4,4)
Payable towards Bonds Fuliy Serviced by Government of India
- Principal

- Interest

Earnest Money Deposit/ Retention Money

Due to Subsidiaries/Parent

Liability for share application money -to the extent refundable
Unpaid dividend (Refer Note 20.4.2)

Unpaid Principalf Interest {Refer Note 20.4.2)

Payable for Late Payment Surcharge

Payable for Financial Guaranies

Derivative Mark To Market Liability

Derivative Liability-Hedged Contract

Currency Option Premium Payatle

Payable fo Employees

Payabfe to Ex-Employees

Payable o Others

45,355.40
4.48
28.51
121.74

8,334.32
1,943.34

28,93

6.10

24,970.54
17.54
23.78

5,424,05
934,36

31.23

4.4

TOTAL

55,822.80

31,406.42

20.4.1 Disclosure regarding Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise :-
‘ Cutstanding Liabifities towards Micre, Smali and Medium Enterprise
Outsianding Interest towards Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise

There is no amount due for payment to Investor Education and Protection Fund.

4.46

20.4.3 Interest accrued but not due on borrowings includes interest amounting to Rs, Nil payable to Parent Company.

20.4.4 Interest accrued and due on borrowings includes interest amounting to Rs. Nil payable {o Parent Company.

20.4.6 Refer Note 34(12) of the Financial Statements with regard to confirmation of balances.

17.54

Disclosure of amount payable to Micro and Small Enterprises is based on the information available with the Company regarding the status
of suppliers as defined under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2005 (the Act). Additional disclosure as required
under Section 22 of The Act is given under Note No.34(15) of Financial Statements.

20.4.2 "Unpaid Dividend" and "Unpaid Principall Iaterest" includes the amounts which have not been cfaimed by the investorsiholders of the squity
shares/bonds. During the year, unpaid dividend of ¥ Nil { Previous Year % Nil) has been paid to the Investor Education and Protection Fund,

20.4.5 Liability against capital works/supplies other than Micro and Small Enterprises includes Rs §10.02/- Lakh Payable to Parent Company.

NOTE NO. 21 OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

(% in Lakhs)

PARTICULARS

As at 31st March, 2025

As at 31st March, 2024

Income received in advance (Advance against depreciation)
Deferred income from Foreign Currency Fluctuation Account
Deferred Foreign Currency Fluctuation Liabilities

Unspent amount of depositfagency basis works

Water Usage Charges Payables

Statutory dues payables

Contract Liabilities-Deposit Works

Contract Liabilities-Project Management/ Consultancy Work
Provision toward amount recaverable in respect of Project Management/
Consultancy Wark

Advance from Customers and Others

Grants in aid-from Government (Refer Note No-18.1)

3,166.56

2,057.06

TOTAL

3,166.56

2,057.06

21.1 Refer Note 34(12) of the Financial Statements with regard to confismation of batarces,
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NOTENO. 22 PROVISIONS - CURRENT

(T in Lakhs)

PARTICULARS

As at 31st March, 2025

As at 315t March, 2024

RO B EEG BES B

B.

A, FROVISION FOR EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

i) Provision for Long term Benefits {Provided for an the basis of actuarial
valuation)
Cpening Balance
Additions during the year
Amount used during the year
Amount reversed during the year

38.49
45.93
38.49

3243
38.49
'32.43

Closing Balance

45,93

38,49

ii) Provision for Wage Revisign

Opening Balance

Additions during the year
Amount used during the year
Amount reversed during the year

Closing Balance

Less: Advance paid
Closing Balance Net of Advance

ifij Provisicn for Performance Related Pay/|pcentive

Qpening Balance

Additions during the year
Amaunt used during the year
Amount reversed during the year

692.64
618.80
707,15

B71.21
670.57
849.01

0.3

Closing Balance

604.29

692,64

Less:-Advance Paid

143.48

2,16

Closing Balance Net of Advance

460,81

590.48

iv) Provision for Superannuation / Pension Fund

Opening Balance

Additions during the year
Amaount used during the year
Amount reversed during the year

Closing Balance

v) Provisicn For Wage Revisien - 3rd Pay Revision Committee
Opening Balanze
Additions during the year
Amount used during the year
Amount reversed during the year

Closing Balance

vi) Provision For Employee Remuneration-Pay Anomaly

Opening Balance

Addittons during the year
Amount used during the year
Amount reversed during the year

1,415.94

Closing Balance

1,4198.94

OTHERS
1} Provision For Tariff Adjustment
Opening Balance
Additions during the year
Amuount used during the year
Amount reversed during the year

Closing Balance

i#) Provision For Commitied Capital Expenditure

Opening Balance

Additions during the year
Amount used during the year
Amount reversed during the year

Unwinding of discount

12,749.14

10,165.73
3.083.41
500,00

Closing Balance

12,749.14

12,748.14

ili) Provision for Restaration expenses of Insured Assets

Opening Balance

Additiens during the year
Amount used during the year
Amound reversed during the year

Closing Balance

iv) Provision For Livetihood Assistance
Opening Balance :
Addilicns during the year
Amount used during the year
Amount reversed during the year
Unwinding of discount

Closing Balance

V) Provision In respect of arbifration award! court cases

Opening Bafance

Additions during the year
Amount used during the year
Amaount reversed during the year

Closing Balance

vi) Provision - Others
Opening Balance
Additions during the year
Amount used during the year
Amount reversed during the year

1,685.89

Clesing Balance

1,685.89

TOTAL

16,361.71

13,478.11

22.1 Information about nature and purpose of Provisions is given in Note 34 (18) of Financial Statements.

N N A N A T
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NOTE NO. 23 CURRENT TAX LIABILITIES (NET)

(% In Lakhs)

M

PARTICULARS As at 31st March, 2025 As at 31st March, 2024

Opening Balance 899,60 1,345.35
Additions during the year 269.72 899.60
Amount adjusted during the year 8998.60 1,345.35
Amount used during the year

Amount reversed during the year

Closing Balance (A) ) 268.72 898.60
Less: Current Advance Tax including Tax Deducied at Source (B) 586.92 910.63
Net Current Tax Liabilities (A-B) (317.20) {11.03)
(Disclosed under Note No-4 above) 317.20 11.03

TOTAL

o o
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NOTE NQ. 241 REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

(% in Lakhs)

PARTICULARS

For the Year ended
31st March, 2025

For the Year ended
31st March, 2024

oo

'Operating Revenue

Sales
Sale of Power
Revenue recognised out of advance against depreciation
Performance based Incentive
Sub-total {i)
Less:
Sales adjustment on account of Foreign Exchange Rate Variation
Tariff Adjustments
Regulated Power Adjustment
Income from generation of electricity — precommissioning
(Transferred to Expenditure Atirbutable to Construction) (Refer Note 32)
Rebate to customers

Sub-total {ii)

Sub - Total (&) = (i)

Income from Finance Lease {Refer Note 34(15))
Income from Operating Lease (Refer Note 34(15))

Revenue From Contracts, Project Management and Consultancy Works

Contract Income
Revenue from Project management/ Consultancy works

Sub - Total (D)

Revenue from Power Trading
Sale of Power

Less:-Rebate to customers

Trading Margin (Refer Note 24.1.4)

Sub - Total (E)

Sub-Total-I (A+B+C+D+E)

OTHER OPERATING REVENUE

Income From Sale of Self Generated VERs/REC
Income on account of generation based incentive (GBI)
Interest from Beneficiary States -Revision of Tariff

Sub-Total-li

TOTAL (l+1)
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MOTE NO. 24.2 OTHER INCOME

(% in Lakhs)

PARTICULARS

For the Year ended
31st March, 2025

For the Year ended
31st March, 2024

A)

B)

€)

Interest Income
- Invesiments carried at FVTQCI- Non Taxable

- Investments carried at FVTOCI- Taxable

- Interest - Government Securities (8.5% tax free bonds issued by
the State Governmenis)

- Loan to Government of Arunachal Pradesh

- Deposit Account

- Employee's Loans and Advances (Net of Rebale)

- Advance o coniractors

- Unwindling of Fair Value Loss on Financial Assets
- Others

Dividend Income

- Dividend from subsidiaries (Refer Note 34.8)

- Dividend - Others

Other Non Operating Incame (Net of Expenses directly attributable to
stich income)

Late payment surcharge

Realization of Loss Due To Business Interruption

Profit on sale of invesiments

Profit on sale of Assets (Nef)

Income from Insurance Claim .

Liabilities/ Impairment Allowances/ Pravisions not required written back {Refer
Note 24.2.1)

Material Issued to contractor

(i) Sale on account of material issued to contractors

{ii) Less: Cost of material issued to contractors on recoverable basis

(i) Net: Adjustment on account of material issued to confractor

Amortization of Gran{ in Aid (Refer Note 19.1)

Exchange rate variation (Net)

Mark to Market Gain on Derivative

Income on account of Guarantee Fee

Others

Sub-total

Add/(Less): C.O. Income Aliocation
Addi{Less): Regional Office Income Allocation

1,071.68
26.01

4,320.09

204.29
5,622.07

3,574.38
1.22
3,740.26

303.89
7,619.75

Sub-total
Less: Transferred to Expenditure Attributable o Construction
Less: Transferred to Advance/ Depcsit from Client/Confractess and against
Deposit Works
Less: Transfer of other income to grant

5,622.07
4,532.94

7,619.75
4,044,35

Total

1,089.13

3,575.40

24.2.1 Detail of Liabilities/impairment Allowances/Provisions not requtired

m) Provision for Long Term Benefits (Provided for on the basis of aclurial valuation)

written back
a) Allewances for Bad & Doublful Employees Loans
b} Allowances for Bad & Doubtful Advances fo Gontractor/ Supplier
&) Allowances for Bad & Doubiful Loan fo State Governmen?
d) Allowances for Bad & Doubtful Capital Advances
) Allowances for Obsolescence & Diminution in Value of Inventories
) Allowancesfor frade receivables
g) Allowances for Bad & Doubtfid Deposits
h} Allowances for ipan which have significant increase in cregit risk
i) Allowances for doubtful recoverables -
J} Allowances for Doubtful Accrued Interest
k) Allowances for project expenses awaiting write off sanction

|} Allowances for losses pending investigation/awaiting write off / sanction

n) Provision for PRP { Incentive /Productivity Linked Incentive
0y Provision for tariffl adjustment

p} Provision for Committed Capital Expanditure

) Provision for Livelihood Assistance

r) Provision for Restoration expanses of Insured Assets

) Provision for 3rd PRC

t} Others

TOTAL
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NOTE NO. 26.1 Purchase of Power - Trading

PARTICULARS

For the Year ended
31st March, 2025

(T in Lakhs)

For the Year ended
31st March, 2024

Purchase of Power
Less : Rebate from Supplier

Total - -
NOTE NO. 25.2 GENERATION EXPENSES (% in Lakhs)
For the Year ended For the Year ended
PARTICUL,
ARS 31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024
Woater Usage Charges - -
Congumption of stores - -
Sub-totai . ;
Less: Teansferred to Expenditure Attributable to Construction - -
Total B -
NOTE NO. 26 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE in Lakhs)
PARTICULARS For the Year ended For the Year ended
31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024
Salaries and Wages . © 9,389.48 8,125.82
Contribution to provident and other funds (Refer Note 26.2 and 26.3) 1,188.38 1,008.44
Staff welfare expenses 935.98 813.81
Leave Salary & Pension Contribution - -
. Sub-fotal 11,514.84 9,948.07 |
Addi(Less): C.0. Expenses Allocation - -
Add/(Less). Regional Office Expenses Allocation - -
Sub-total 11,514.84 9,948.07
Less: Transferred to Expendituse Attributable to Gonstruction 10,254,99 8,890.02
Less: Recoverable from Deposit Works - -
Total 1,259,85 1,058.05
26.1 Disclosure about leases towards residential accomodation for employees are given in Note 34 (15} of Financial Statements.
26.2{Contribufion to provident and other funds include contributions: For the Year ended For the Year ended
31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024
i) towards Employees Pravident Fund 516,94 506.72
. d D d o . .
i) fowards Employees efined Contribution Superannuaticn/New Pension 319,62 266.53
Scheme
28.3 Salary and wages includes expenditure on short term leases as per IND AS- - -
118 " Leases",
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NOTE NO. 27 FINANCE COSTS (Zin Lakhs)
For the Year ended For the Year ended
PA
RTCULARS 31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024 *
A Interest on Financial Liabilities at Amortized Cost
Bonds To. .
Term foan 4,012.51 -
Foreign loan - -
Government of India loan - -
Short Term Loan 138.90 -
Cash credit facilties /WCDL - -
Other inferest charges - -
Lease Liabilities 4.80 7.36
Unwinding of discount-Government of India Loan 5,944.13 3,153.80
Sub-total 10,100.44 3,161.16
B Other Borrowing Cost
Call spread/ Coupcn Swap/Hedging Pemium - “
Bond issue/ service expenses - -
Commitment fee - -
Guarantee fee on foreign loan - -
Other finance charges 38,20 37.00
Unwinding of interest-Provision & Financial Liablities 2.38 0.98
Sub-total 40.58 37.98
c Applicable net (gain)f loss on Fereign currency transactions and
transiation
Exchange differences regarded as adjustment to interest cost - -
Less: Transferred to Deferred Foreign Currency Fluctuation Assets - -
Sub-total - -
D Others
Interest on Arbitration/ Court Cases - -
Interest to beneficiary - -
Sub-total - -
D Interest on Income Tax - 410
Total (A+B+ C+D) 10,141.02 3,203.24
Add/{Less}). C.Q. Expenses Allocation - -
Add/{Less): Regional Office Expenses Allocation - - -
TOTAL 10,141.02 3,203.24
tess: Transferred to Expenditure Attributable to Construction 10,%39.97 3,187.57
Less: Recoverable from Deposit Works - -
Total 1.05 5.67
NOTE NO. 28 DEPRECIATION AND AMORYIZATION EXPENSES (T in Lakhs)
For the Year ended For the Year ended
PARTICULARS
ART AR 31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024
Depreciation -Properly, Plant and Equipment 852.96 739.49
Depreciation-Right of use Assels 982,67 1,041.27
Amortization -Intangible Assets 36.27 2481
Depreciation adjustment on account of Foreign Exchange Rate Variation _ .
(Refer Note 19 and 5(D)(iii)
Add/(Less). C.Q. Expanses Allocation - -
Addf(Less): Regicnal Office Expenses Allocation - -
Add/(Less): Depreciation allocated fo/from cther units - -
Sub-total 1,871.90 1,805.37
Less: Transferred to Expendiiure Attributable to Construction 1,789.73 1,726.54
Less: Recoverable from Deposit Works - -
Total B2.17 78.83
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NOTE NO. 23 OTHER EXPENSES

(% in Lakhs)

PARTICULARS

Direct Expenditure on Contract, Project Management and Consuitancy
Works

REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE
~ Building
- Machinery
« Others
Rent (Refer Note 29.3)
Hire Charges
Rates and taxes
Insurance
Security expenses
Electricity Charges
Traveliing and Conveyance
Expenses on vehicles
Telephone, telex and Postage
Advertisement and pubticity
Entertainment and hospitalily expenses
Printing and stationery

Legal Expenses

Consultancy charges - Indigenous

Consultancy charges - Foreign

Audit expenses (Refer Note 29,2)

Expenses on compensatory affarestation/ catchment area treatment/
environmental expenses/development expenses

Expenses on work of downstream protection works

Expenditure on land not belonging to company

Loss on Assets (Net)

Loss on Sale of Investmeant

Losses out of insurance claims

Donation

Corporate social responsibility {Refer Note 34{13))

Community Development Expenses

Directors' Sitling Fees

Compensation on Arbitration/ Court Cases

Expendifure on Self Generated VER'S/REC

Exchange rate variation (Net)

Training Expenses

Petition Fee /Registration Fee /Other Fee — To CERC/RLDC/RPCEX/PXIL

Operational/Running Expenses of Kendriya Vidyalay
Operational/Running Expenses of Other Schools
OperationalfRunning Expenses of Guest House/Transit Hostel
Operating Expenses of DG Set-Other than Residential

Fair Value Loss on Financial Asseis

Sale of Debt instrument-Reclassiiication adjustrnent from QCI
Change in Fair Value of Derivatives

Other general expanses

Sub-total
Addf(t.ess). C.0. Expenses Allocation
Addl(Less): Regional Office Expenses Allocation

Sub-fotal
Less: Transferred to Expenditure Attributable to Construction
Less: Recoverable from Deposit Works
Less: Transfer to General Reserve for Expenses on Buyback

Sub-total (i)

PROVISIONS/ IMPAIRMENT ALLOWANGE

Loss allowance for frade receivables

l.oss Affowance for Expected Credit Loss -Trade Recelvables
Allowance for Bad and doubtful advances / deposits

Allewance for Bad and doubtful claims

Allowance for Bad and Doubtful Loan

Allowance for Doubtful interest

Aliowance for stores and spares/ Construction stores

Allowance for Shoriage in store & spares provided

Allowance against diminution in the value of investment

Allowance on Intangible Assets

Allowance for Project expenses

Allowance for losses pending investigation awafting write off sanction
Allowance for Diminution in value of Inventory of Self Generated VER's Provided
for

Allowance for catchment area freatment plan

Others

Sub-total

Addl(Less). C.Q. Expenses Allocation
Addi{Less). Regicnal Office Expenses Allocation

Sub-total

Less: Transferred fo Expenditure Attributable to Construction
Less: Recoverable from Deposit Works

Sub-total {ii)

Total (i+ii)

For the Year ended For the Year ended
31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024
1,420.99 1,084.83
- 0.02
182.57 147.27
742,37 334.54
305.02 250.21
165.38 86,14
8.56 7.7
27543 308.20
110.53 103.73
211.69 188.11
64,09 88.01
265.92 211.62
26.25 22.48
12,28 7.03
48.58 60.26
16.04 12.85
2,880.44 2,980.34
8.26 5.80
2B2.24 4,603.49
30712 1,687.55
15.68 13.64
- 0.39
48.38 34.57
24,50 4.70
37.93 11.22
10.56 0.96
7.18 172
323.47 207.72
7,802.38 12,455.22 |
7,802.38 12,455.22
7,125.45 11,960,862
34.39 32.85
642.54 461,75
106.42 -
106.42 -
106.42 .
106.42 -
748.96 461.75

alalie
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29.1 Disclosure about leases are given in Note 34 (15) of Financial Statements.

{3 in Lakhs)

29.2
Detail of audit expenses are as under: -

For the Year ended
31st March, 2025

For the Year ended
J1st March, 2024

i) Statutory auditors

As Auditor

- - Audit Fees

: - Tex Audit Fees

In other Capacity

- Taxation Matters

- Limited Review

- Company Law Mallers

- Management Services

- Other Matters/services

- Reimbursement of expenses
i} Cost Auditors

- Audii Fees

- Reimbursement of expenses
it} Goods and Service Tax (GST) Auditors
{ - Audit Fees

- Reimbursement of expenses
~ Total Audit Expenses

e

i

«"‘"”‘\:

™

29.3 Rentincludes the following expenditure as per IND AS-116 " Leases”,

( i Expenditure on short-ierm leases other than lease term of one month or less
_ {ii) Expenditure on long term lease of low-value assets

f (iit) Variable lease payments not included in the measurement of lease liabilities
-

L NOTE NO. 30.1 INCOME TAX EXPENSES

4.72 4.72
3.54 -

- 1.18

8.26 5.90

660.63 267.33

B1.74 67.21

(T in Lakhs)

For the Year ended For the Year ended
{‘ PARTICULARS 31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024
- Current Tax
. Current Tax on Profits for the year {Refer Note 30.1.1) 269.72 899.60
(ﬁ, Adjustment Relating To Earlier years - (0.75)
Total Current Tax expenses 269.72 898.85
£ Deferred Tax
Decrease Kincrease) in Deferred Tax Assets
i - Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences - -
- Relating to change in tax rate .
- Adjustments in respect of deferred tax of earlier years -
L. - Adjustments on account of MAT credit entitlement - -
- Increase! (decrease) in Deferred Tax Liabilities
{; - Relating to crigination and reversal of temporary differences - .
- Relating to change in tax rate -
£ - Adjustments in respect of deferred tax of earlier years -
h= Total Deferred Tax Expenses (benefits) - -
I Net Deferred Tax - -
- Total 269,72 898.85

30.1.1 The current Tax is from Other Income i.e. Income from interest on FDRs

~

,:-“"'\_
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(% in Lakhs)

PARTICULARS

For the Year ended

For the Year ended

PARTICULARS

31st March, 2025

31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024
(i) ttems that will not be reciassified to profit or loss
_ (a) Remeasurement of the posi employment defined benefit obligaticns
Less: Income Tax on remeasurement of the post employment defined benefit
obligations - -
Remeasurement of the post employment defined benefit obligations (net . R
of Tax) -
Less:-Movement in Regulatory Deferral Account Bafances in respect of tax on
defined benefit obligations - -
-iMavement in Regulatory Deferral Account Balances-Remeasurement of post
employment defined benefit obligations h -
Less: Impact of Tax on Regulatory Deferral Accounts - -
‘Sub total {a) - -
(b) Changes in the fair value of equity investments at FVTOCI - -
Less: income Tax on above item - -
Sub total (b) - -
Total {i)={a}+(b) R -
(ii) items that wili be reclassified to profit or ioss
{a) Changes in the fair vafue of debt investments at FVTOC) - -
Less: Income Tax on above item - -
Sub total (a) - -
{b) Cost of Hedge Reserve - -
Less: Income Tax on above item - -
Sub total (b) - -
Total {il)=(a)+{b) - -
Total =(i+ii} - -
NOTE NO. 31 Movement in Regulatory Deferral Account Balances (Xin Lakhs)
For the Yearended For the Year ended -

31st March, 2024

(i) Wage Revision as per 3rd Pay Revision Committee
(ii) Depreciation due to mederation of Tariff
(iif) Exchange Differences on Monetary items
{iv} Interest Payment cn Court/Arbitration Cases
{v} Adjustment against Deferred Tax Recoverable for tariff period upto 2009
{vi) Adjustment against Deferred Tax Liabilities for tariff period 2014-2019 and
onwards
(vil} Regulatory Liability on account of recognition of MAT Credit

TOTAL (i)+{)+(iii)+(iv)*+ (v)+(vi)(vif}

Impact of Tax on Regulatory Deferral Accounts

Less; Deferred Tax on Regulatory Deferral Account Balances
Add: Deferred Tax recoverable from Beneficiaries

Total

31.1 Refer Note 14,1 and 14.2 of Financial Statements.
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NOTE NO. 32 EXPENDITURE ATTRIBUTABLE TO CONSTRUGCTION {EAC) FORMING PART OF CAPITAL WORK IN PROGRESS FOR THE YEAR

(T in Lakhs)

For the Year ended For the Year ended
PARTICULARS 31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024
GENERATION EXPENSE
Water Usage Charges - N
Consumption of stores - -
Sub-fotal - -
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE
Salaries and Wages 6,190.73 5,669.98
Contribution to pravident and other funds 783.1¢ 697.29
Staff welfare expenses 579.53 480.78
Leave Salary and Pension Contribution - -
- Sub-total 7,553.42 6,748.03
EINANCE COST
Inferest on ; {Refer Note 2.2,3)
Bonds - -
Foreign loan - -
Term loan 4,151.41 -
Lease Liabifities ' 2.58 3.20
4,153.99 3,20
Cash credit facilities AWCDL - -
Exchange differences regarded as adjustment to interest cost - -
Le5% on Hedging Transactions - -
Bond isstie! service expensss - -
Commitment fes - -
Guarantee fee on loan - -
Cther finance charges 38.03 37.00
Transfer of expenses to EAC- interest on loans from Central Government-
adjustment or account of effective interest 594413 8,153.80
Transfer of expenses 1o EAC-Interest on seturity depositf retenticn money- 1.85 053
adjusiment on account of effective interest T ’
Transfer of expenses to EAC-committed capital expenses-adjustment for time B .
valug
Sub-tetal 10,138.00 3,194.53
DEPRECIATION AND AMQRTISATION EXPENSES 1,623.28 1.573.85
Sub-total 1,623.28 1,573,86
OTHER EXPENSES
Repairs And Maintenance : '
-Building 989.03 697,75
-Machinery - 0.02
-Others 136.52 118.28
Rent and Hire Charges 998.34 573.39
Rates and taxes 26843 6.39
Insurance 21 1.96
Sacurity expenses 189.51 208,56
Electricity Charges “EB.B7 51,55
Teavelling and Conveyance 83.61 89.96
Expenses on vehicles 38.68 50.32
Telephone, tetex and Postage 183.21 135.40
Advertisement and publicity 0.54 12.26
Enterainmeat and hospitatily expenses - -
Printing and stationery 28.20 37.71
Legal and Consuitancy charges:
~ Indigenous 2,869,02 2,980.39
- Foreign - -
Expenses on compensalory afforestation/ calchment area treatment/
environmental experses! development expenses 2B2.24 4.803.49
Expenses on works of downstrearn protection works {Refer Note 29.4) - -
Expenditure on land not belonging to company 30712 1,687.56
Assels/ Claims wrilten off : - 0.02
Land Acquisition and Rehabilitation Expenditure - -
Losses on sale of assels 331 6.33
Cther general expenses 214,84 130.22
Exchange rate variation (Debit) - -
Sub-total 5,371.56 11,392.56
PROVISIONS . . -
Sub-fotal - -
CORPORATE OFFICE/REGIONAL OFFICE EXPENSES
Other Income {36.98) {3.62)
Other Expenses 753.89 588.06
Employee Benefits Expense 2,701.57 2,141,609
Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses 166.45 15268
Finance Cost . .97 3.04
Provisions - -
Sub-total 3,586.92 2,862.15
LESS: RECEIPTS AND RECOVERIES .
Income from generation of eleclricity — precommissioning - -
Interest on loans and advances 4,320.29 3,740.41
Profit on sale of assels u -
Exchange rate variation (Credit) - -
Provisien/Liabllity not required written back - -
Misceflaneous receipts 175.44 30011
Transfer of fair value gain to EAC- security deposit 0.25 0.21
Transfer of Income to EAC - MTM Gain on Derivatives - -
Transfer of fzir value gain fo £AC - on provisions for committed capital
expenditure - -
Sub-total 4,495.98 4,040.73
TOTAL {A+B+C+D+E+F+G-H) (Refer Note 2.2) 24,777.20 21,730.40
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Note No. — 34: Other Explanatory Notes to Accounts

1. Disclosures relating to Contingent Liabilities:
Contingent Liabilities to the extent not provided for -

a) Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts in respect of:

(i} Capital works

Contractors have lodged claims aggregating to % 1,08,245.50 Lakhs (Previous year X 98,697.35
Lakhs) against the Company on account of rate and quantity deviation, cost relating to extension of
time, idling charges due to stoppage of work/delays in handing over the site etc. These claims are
being contested by the company as being not admissible in terms of provisions of the respective
contracts or are lying at arbitration tribunal/other forums/under examination with the Company.
These include X 264.42 Lakhs (Previous year ¥ 264.42 Lakhs) towards arbitration awards including
updated interest thereon, against the Company, which have been challenged/decided to be
challenged in the Court of Law.

Management has assessed fhe above claims and recognized a provision of X 2,537.33 Lakhs
(Previous year X Nil) based on probability of outflow of resources embodying economic benefits and
estimated X 1,04,776.21 Lakhs {Previous year ¥ 98,697.35 Lakhs) as the amount of contingent
liability i.e. amounts for which Company may be held contingently liable. In respect of such
estimated contingent claims either the outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is not
probable or a reliable estimate of the amount required for settling the obligation cannot be made.
In respect of the rest of the claims/obligations, posyb:hty of any outflow in settlement is considered
as remote.
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(i) Land Compensation cases

In respect of land acquired for the projects, some of the erstwhile land owners have filed claims for
higher compensation amounting to % Nil (Previous year X Nil) Before various authorities/courts.
Pending settlement, the Company has assessed and provided an amount of % Nil {Previous year X
Nil) based on probability of outflow of resources embodying economic benefits and estimated % Nil
{Previous year X Nil} as the amount of contingent liability as outflow of resources is considered as
not probable,

(iii} Disputed Tax Demands

'Disputed GST demand on payment made to CAMPA fund raised by Dy. Commissioner GST, Jammu is
X 355.62 Lakhs (Previous year X 322.22 Lakhs). Pending settlement, the Company has assessed and
provided an amount of X Nil (Previous year % Nil) based on probability of outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits and X 355.62 Lakhs {Previous year X 322.22 Lakhs) are being
disclosed as contingent liability as outflow of resources is considered not probable. In respect of the
rest of the claims/obligations, possibility of any outflow in settlement is considered as remote.
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(iv) Others

Claims on account of other miscellaneous matters amount to ¥ Nil {Previous year % Nil). These
claims are pendmg before various forums. Pending settiement, the Company has assessed and
provided an amount of X Nil (Previous year % Nil)based on probability of outflow of resources -
embodying economic benefits and estimated X Nil (Previous year X Nil) as the amount of contingent
liability as outflow of resources is considered as not probable. In respect of the rest of the
claims/obligations, possibility of any outflow in settlement is considered as remote.
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The above is summarized as below:

{(Xin Lakhs)
Sl. | Particular | Claimsason | up to date | Contingent Contingent | Addition/ | Decrease
No. s 31.03.2025 Provision liability as liability as | {deduction) | of
againstthe | on on from contingent
claims 31.03.2025 | 31.03.2024 | contingent | liability
liability from
during the | Opening
year Balance as
on
01.04.2024
(i} (ii) {ifi) (iv) {v) {vi) {vii)=(v}-{vi) {viii)
Capital 1,08,245.50 2,537.33 1,04,776.21 98,697.35 6,078.86 6,953.92
= Works ’
Land - - - - - -
Compen-
2. .
sation
cases
Disputed 355,62 - 355.62 322.22 33.39 -
3. | tax
matters
4. | Others - - - - - -
Total 1,08,601.12 2,537.33 1,05,131.82 99,019.57 6,112.25 6,953.92
{b) The above do not include contingent liabilities on account of pending cases in respect of service
matters and others where the amount cannot be quantified.
(¢} It is not practicable to ascertain and disclose the uncertainties relating to outflow in respect of
contingent liabilities.
{d) There is possibility of reimbursement to the company of X Nil (Previous year X Nil)towards above

Contingent Liabilities.

(e') (i) An amount of X Nil (Previous year % Nil) stands paid towards above Contingent Liabilities in

(f)

respect of Capital Works, pursuant to Niti Aayog directions issued vide OM No. 14070/14/2016-
PPPAU dated 5th September 2016, in cases where Arbitral Tribunals have passed orders in favour
of contractors and such awards/orders have been further challenged/being challenged by the
Company in a Court of Law. The amount so paid has been shown under Other Non-Current Assets
{Also refer Note No. 5).

An amount of X 80.07 Lakhs (Previous year X 79.39 Lakhs) stands paid /deposited with
courts/paid as per Court Order towards above contingent liabilities to contest the cases and has
been shown under Other Current Assets. (Also refer Note no. 13)

The Management does not expect that the above claims/obligations (including under litigation),
when ultimately concluded and determined, will have a material and adverse effect on the
company’s results of operations or financial condition.
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2. Contingent Assets; Contingent assets in respect of the Company are on account of the following:

a} Counter Claims lodged by the company on other entities:

The company has lodged counter claims aggregating to X 1,315.59 Lakhs (Previous year ¥ 351.81
Lakhs) against claims of other entities. These ciaims have been lodged on the basis of contractual
provisions and are being contested at arbitration tribunai/other forums/under examination with the
counterparty. 1t includes counter claims of¥ Nil(Previous year X Nil) towards arbitration awards
including updated interest thereor.

Based on Management assessment, a favourable outcome is probable in respect of the claims
aggregating X 963.78 Lakhs (Previous year  Nil) and for rest of the claims, the possibility of any
inflow is remote. Accordingly, these claims have not been recognised.

b) Other Cases

Claims on account of other miscellaneous matters estimated by Management to be X Nil (Previous
year X Nil) has not been recognised.

3." Commitments (to the extent not provided for):

4,

5.

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account are as under:

(X in Lakhs}
Sl . As at 31.03,2025 As at 31.03.2024
Particulars
No. .
(i) iy " {iii) (iv)
1. Property Plant and Equipment {mcludmg 7,32,260.89 9,64,064.41
- | Capital Work in Progress)
2. Intangible Assets - 141.43
Total 7.32,260.89 9,64,205.89
Other Commitments (if any) : Nil
The effect of foreign exchange rate variation (FERV) during the year are as under:
(X in Lakhs)
Sl. | Particulars For the Year For the Year
No. ‘ ended ended
- 31.03.2025 31.03.2024
{i) | Amount charged to Statement of Profit and Loss as - -
FERV
(ii} | Amount charged to Statement of Profit and Loss as . "
Borrowing Cost*
(iii) | Amount adjusted in the carrying amount of PPE - -
(iv) | Amount recognised in Regulatory Deferral Account 24.51 (4.06)
" | Balances

*There is however no impact on profitability of the Company, as the impact of change in foreign
exchange rates is recoverable from beneficiaries in terms of prevailing CERC (Terms and Conditions
of Tariff) Regulations 2019-24. The exchange‘rate variation included under borrowing cost for the
year is transferred to deferred foreign currency fluctuation assets (recoverable from beneficiaries)
as per Significant Accounting Policy of the Company. '

6. Operating Segment:

a) Electricity generation is the principal business activity of the Com pany.

b} The Company has a single geographical segment as all its Power Stétions are located within the
Country,
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7. Disclosures under Ind AS-24 “Related Party Disclosures”;
(A) List of Related parties:

(i) Parent Company:

Principle place of
‘Name of Company operation
NHPC Limited India
JKSPDC India

(i) Key Managerial Personnel:

Sl. Name Position Held
No.
1 Shri Suresh Kumar,IAS (Retd) | Chairman -Nominee of JKSPDC (w.e.f. 22.11.2019)
2 Shri H.Rajesh Prasad , |AS Director -Nominee of JKSPDC (w.e.f. 20.10,2022)
3 | Shri Santosh D. Vaidya, IAS | Director -Nominee of JKSPDC{w.e.f. 31.08.2023)
4 ShriR.P. Goyal Director -Nominee of NHPC (w.e.f. 01.10.2020)
5 | ShriVijay Kumar Sinha Director -Nominee of NHPC (w.e.f. 01.01.2024 to
31.07.2024)
6 Shri Ram Swaroop Director -Nominee of NHPC (w.ef. 13.08.2024 to
04.09.2024)
7 Shri Sanjay Kumar Singh Director -Nominee of NHPC {w.e.f. 04.09.2024)
8 | Shri Ramesh Mukhiya Managing Director-Nominee of NHPC (w.e.f.
05.12.2023)
9 | Smt. Madhusmita Pany Director-Nominee of NHPC (w.e.f. 21.12.2022)
16 | Shri Sudhir Anand Company Secretary, CVPPL

(iii) Post-Employment Benefit Plans of CVPPL:

. Principal place of
Name of Related Parties operation
CVPPPL Employees Social Security Scheme Trust India
NHPC Ltd. Employees Provident Fund India
NHPC Employees Social Security Scheme Trust India
NHPC Ltd. Employees Defined Contribution Superannuatio India
Scheme Trust :
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(iv) Other entities with joint-control or significant influence over the Company:

The Company is a Joint Venture of NHPC Limited (A Govt. of India Enterprise} & JKSPDC (A Govt. of
J&K Enterprise) controlled by Central Government and J&K Government respectively., The
Company has applied the exemption available for government related entities and has made
limited disclosures in the Financial Statements in accordance with Ind AS 24. Accordingly, details
of material/significant transaction carried out with the Central Govt and J&K Govt. only have been
disclosed. Transactions with these related parties are carried out in the ordinary course of
business at normal commercial terms. '

St Name of the Government Nature of Relationship with NHPC

No.
1 Government of India Shareholder having control over Parent
Company{NHPC)
2 NHPC Holding Company
3 JKSPDC : Sharehoider having significant influence
_ over the Company
4 Government of Jammu & Kashmir Shareholder having control over Parent
: Company{JKSPDC)

(B) Transactions and Balances with related parties are as follows:
(i) Transactions and Balances with NHPC:- _
(% in Lakhs)

Transactions with Parent For the year ended For the year ended
31.03.2025 31.03.2024
(i) ' (ii} (i) -

Services received by the Company from ' '

= NHPC 3,082.68 - 2,888.26
Interest Paid on Loan taken from

= NHPC ‘ 138.90 -
Dividend paid by the company to

= NHPC
Equity contributions (including share
application money) received by the company
from:

=  NHPC 70,821.00 44,981.00 |-

Reimbursement of Cost of employee on
deputation/Posted by

= NHPC

Loans & Advances given by the Company to:

=  NHPC - -
Loahs & Advances received by the Company
from:

= NHPC# ' 20,000.00 ’ -

Refund of Loans & Advances by the Company

s

b
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= NHPC

20,000.00

Sl NNt e

# The loan was taken @ 8.45% from NHPC.

(X'in Lakhs)

Balances with Parent

As at 31.03.2025

As at31.03.2024

()

(ii)

(i)

Receivable (unsecured} from

= NHPC

Payable (unsecured) to

= NHPC 2,553.36 1,478.79
Investment in Equity by
®»  NHPC 3,33,010.13 2,62,189.13

Loans & Advances Receivable from:

= NHPC

Loans & Advances Payable to:

= NHPC

(if) Transactions and Balances with JKSPDC:-

(% in Lakhs)

Transactions with JKSPDC

For the year ended
31.03.2025

For the year ended
31.03.2024

(i)

(ii)

{iii)

Services Provided by the Company

Services Received by the Company

Equity contributions (including share application
money) received by the company

24,230.00

31,261.00

. Loan given by the company

Loan received by the company

interest on Loan Paid by the company

Interest on Loan received from the company

Grant received during the year

Balances with JKSPDC

As at 31.03.2025

As at 31.03.2024

(i)

(i)

(i)

Receivable (unsecured)

Payable {unsecured)
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[nvestment in Equity

2,29,991.00

2,05,761.00

Loans & Advancgs Receivable

Loans & Advances Payable

(ifi) Transactions and Balances with Key Management Personnel:

Personnel (KMP)

. {% in Lakhs)
Particulars Transactions for the year ended 31.03.2025 and Balances as at 31.03.2025
Key Compensation to Key Management Personnel | Other transactions & Balances
management

Personnel {(KMP)

Name Short Term | Post- Other ermination | Interest Sitting | Outsta
Employee | Employ- | Long Benefits received on | Fee nding
Benefits ment Term outstanding Loans
Benefits | Benefits loans receiva
ble

1. Chairman

Suresh Kumar 2441

PAN-

AJUPKZ7760L

2. Managing Director

Ramesh 88.66

Mukhiya

PAN:-

AFUPM3498K

3. Company Secretary

Sudhir Anand 29.17

PAN-
AFIPA4A88SE

(X in Lakhs)

Particulars Transactions for the year ended 31.03.2024 and Balances as at 31.03.2024
Key Compensation to Key Management Personnel | Other transactions & Balances
management

Name Short Term | Post- Other  [Termination | Interest Sitting | Outsta
Employee | Employ- | Long Benefits received on | Fee nding
Benefits ment Term outstanding Loans
Benefits | Benefits loans receiva
ble
1. Chairman. '
Suresh Kumar 23.26
PAN-
AJUPK7760L
Raca 260
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2. Managing Director

O
' Ramesh 22.15 - - -
- Mukhiya
- PAN:-
c AFUPM3498K ] ]
' Hasan Nadeem 42,22 - - -
€ PAN:-
¢ ABGPH4911G ] )
C 3. Company Secretary
( Sudhir Anand . 27.59 - - -
= PAN-
b AFIPA4889E
C
4 (iv) Transactions& Balances with Post -Employment Benefit Plans
- (T in Lakhs}
Post -Employment Benefit Contribution by the company (Net of Balances with Post -
( Plans Refund from Post -Employment Benefit Employment Benefit Plans
) Plans)
¢
i For the year For the year As-at As at
(. ended 31.03.2025 | ended 31.03.2024 | 31.03.2025 31.03,2024
.
s CVPPPL Employees Social 14.22 8.68 - -
Security Scheme Trust
{
) NHPC Ltd. Employees 318.65 -
C Provident Fund 321.68 -
= NHPC Employees Social 8.52 -
Security Scheme Trust 8.35 -
4 NHPC Ltd. Employees 212.17 .
Defined Contribution 326.55 )
C | :
. (v) Significant Transactions with Government that has control over the Parent Company ( i.e
. Central Government)
¢ {Zin Lakhs)
) Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
. 31.03.2025 31.03.2024
g (i) (i) (iii)
% Services Received by the Company
( Services Provided by the Company
{v Sale of goods ( Electricity) by the Company *
. Dividend Paid during the year
€ Subordinate Debts received by the company 56,868.00 60,422.00
g Interest on Subordinate debts ‘paid by company
¢ (including interest accrued) _
, Grant Received During the year 3,384.33 -
C Page-2#0
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(vi} Outstanding balances and guarantees with Central Government:

(% in Lakhs)

Particulars

As at 31.03.2025

As at 31.03.2024

{(vii)T (i)

7

(if)

(iii)

Bal'gnces with Central Government (that has control over
thenCompany)

S*  Loan Payable to Government (Subordinate debts)

=

2,18,639.00

1,62,771.00

"= Payables (unsecu red)

" Receivables (Unsecured)

(vii)Significant Transactions with Government that has control over the Parent Company (i.e

J&K Government)

(% in Lakhs)
Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
31.03.2025 31.03.2024
(i) (i) (iii)
Services Received by the Company 133.40 5,820.93
Services Provided by the Company
Sale of goods ( Electricity) by the Company
Dividend Paid during the year
Subordinate Debts received by the company
Interest on Subordinate debts paid by company
{(including interest accrued)
Grant Received During the year
{viii) Outstanding balances and guarantees with J&K Government:
(Kin Lakhs)
Particulars As at As at 31.03.2024
31.03.2025
s A | i (il
_ Balances with Central Government {that has control over
thenCompany)
;- Loan Payable to Government {Subordinate debts)
¢® Payables (unsecured)
it. Receivables {Unsecured) 47,458.01 25,861.70

C) Other notes to related party transactions:

{i) Terms and conditions of transactions with the related parties:

(a) Transactions with the state governments and entities controlled by the Government
of India are carried out at market.terms on arms- length basis {except subordinate
debts received from Central Government at concessional rate) through a transparent
price discovery process against open tenders, except in a few cases of procurement of

Panao '),71.
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(c)

spares/services from Original Equipment Manufacturers (OEMs) for proprietary items
on single tender basis due to urgency, compatibility or other reasons. Such singla
tender procurements are also done through a process of negotiation with prices
benchmarked against available price data of same/similar items.

Consultancy services received by the Company from Parent Company are generally on
nomination basis at the terms, conditions and principles applicable for consultancy
services provided to other parties. :

Outstanding balances of Parent company as at 31.03.2025 are unsecured and
settlement occurs through banking transactions. These balances other than loans are
interest free. No impairment of receivables relating to amounts owed by related
parties has been recognised. Assessment of impairment is undertaken each financial
year through examining the financial position of the related party and the market in
which the related party operates.

8. Particulars of Security: The carrying amount of assets mortgaged/ hypothecated as security for
borrowings are as under.
(X in Lakhs)
Sl Particulars ‘ As on 31.03.2025 As on 31.03.2024
No | Specific Common Assets | Specific Assets | Common
Assets mortgaged/ mortgaged/ Assets
mortgaged/ | hypothecated hypothecated | mortgaged
hypothecate | against - | against /
d against . Borrowings # Borrowings hypotheca
Borrowings ted against
Borrowing
S
1 Property, Plant & 9,818.84 | - -
Equipment - -
9 Capital work in 7,67,137.55 -
progress - . ‘
3 Financial Assets-Others - ' - T
Total - 7,76,956.39 -
# The actual value of security pledged against common pool of assets is ¥ 7,76,956.39 Lakhs as on
31.03.2025 (Previous Year Nil}.

9. Disclosures Under Ind AS-19 “ Employee Benefits”:

(A) Defined Contribution Plans-

(i)

(i)

Social Security Scheme: The Company has a Social Security Scheme in lieu of the
erstwhile scheme of compassionate appointment. The Company also makes a matching
contribution per month per employee and such contribution was in_operation ie.
05.06.2018. The scheme has been created to take care of and helping bereaved families
in the event of death or permanent total disability of its employee. The expenses
recognised during the year towards social security scheme are % 14.22 Lakhs {Previous
year X 8.68 Lakhs). '

Provident Fund: The Company pays fixed contribution to Provident Fund at
predetermined rates to Employees Provident Fund Organization. The contribution to the
fund for the year is recognised as expense and is charged to the Statement of Profit and
Loss/ Expenditure Attributable to Construction. The obligation of the Company is to make
fixed contribution. :

T N e S




(B) Defined Benefit Plans- Company has following defined post-employment benefit obligations:

(a) Description of Plans:

(i}  Gratuity: The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan. The ceiling limit of gratuity
is fixed as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, whereby every employee who has
rendered continuous service of five years or more is entitled to get gratuity at 15 days
salary (15/26 X last drawn basic salary plus dearness allowance) for each completed
year of service subject to a maximum of  0.20 Crores on superannuation, resignation,
termination, disablement or on death. The fiability for the same is recognised on the

SRR RS B B R

- basis of actuarial valuation.

¢ (i} Retired Employees Health Scheme (REHS): The Company has a Retired Employee
. Health Scheme, under which retired employee and/or spouse of retiree and eligible
= dependent children of deceased/retired employees are provided medical facilities in

. the empanelled hospitals under Group Medical Claim Policy. They can also avail
C treatment as Out-Patient subject to a ceiling fixed by the Compa ny. The liability for the
C. . same is recognised on the basis of actuarial valuation,

! (iii) Allowances on Retirement/Death: Actual cost of shifting from place of duty at which
€ employee is posted at the time of retirement to any other place where he / she may like
C to settle after retirement is paid as per the rules of the Company. In case of death,
~ family of deceased employee can also avail this facility. The liability for the same is
L recognised on the basis of actuarial valuation. :

C (b} Disclosure of Balance Sheet amounts and sensitivity analysis of Plans:
C '
C (i) Gratuity: The amount recognised in the Balance Sheet as at 31.03.2025 and 31.03.2024 along with
o the movements in the net defined benefit obligation during the years 2024-25 and 2023-24 are as
- foilows:
C (% in Lakhs)
4 Particulars . Present Value Fair value of Net Amount
- of Obligation Plan Assets Obligation/
L
(Asset)
o : _ {i) (i) - iii=(i)-(ii)
- I 2024-25
C Opening Balance as at (1.04.2024 436.44 - 486.44
C Current Service Cost ’ 80.22 - 80.22
Interest Expenses/ {Income) 35.27 - " 35.27
Benefits Paid . . -12.67 - -12.67
¢ Total Amount recognised in . ‘
Statement of Profit and Loss/
Q_ Expenditure During Construction 102.81 - 102.81
¢ ' " | Remeasurements
Return on Plan Asset, excluding amount
C included in interest expenses/ {Income) i i
. (Gain)/loss from change in

_ demographic assumptions - - -
C {Gain)/loss from change in financial
¢ assumptions - - -

. Experience {gains)/Losses ‘ - - -
C Total Amount recognised in Other
¢ Comprehensive Income
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Contributions:-

-Employers

-Plan participants

Benefit payments

Closing Balance as at 31.03.2025

589,26

589.26

{Tin Lakhs)

Particulars

| Present Value

of Obligation

Fair value of
Plan Assets

Net Amount
Obligation/
{Asset)

(i)

(if)

iti=(i)-{ii)

2023-24

Opening Balance as at 01.04.2023

405.04

405.04

Current Service Cost

53.96

53.96

interest Expenses/ {Income)

29.93

29.93

Benefits Paid

-2.49

-2.49

Total Amount recognised in
Statement of Profit and Loss/
Expenditure During Construction

81.41

81.41

Remeasurements

Return on Plan Asset, excluding amount
included in interest expenses/ (Income)

(Gain}/loss from change in
demographic assumptions

(Gain)/loss from change in financial
assumptions

Experience (gains)/Losses

Total Amount recognised in Other
Comprehensive (ncome

Contributions:-

-Employers

-Plan participants

Benefit payments

Closing Balance as at 31.03.2024

486.44

486.44

The net liability disclosed above related to unfunded plans are as follows:

Total amount recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss/ Expenditure attributable to
Constructions and total amount recognised under Other Comprehensive Income disclosed above
are based on the actuarial valuation report. This includes an amount of % Nii {previous year % Nil)
accounted as receivable/(payable) from/to Parent in respect of employees of employees of NHPC
posted in CVPPL.

{Xin Lakhs)
Particulars 31st March 2025 | 31st March 2024
Present Value of unfunded obligations 589.26 ' 486.44
Fair value of Plan Assets '
Deficit/(Surplus) of unfunded plans 589.26 486.44
Unfunded Plans '
Deficit/(Surplus) before asset ceiling 589.26 486.44
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Sensitivity Analysis — The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligations to changes in the weighted
principal assumptions is: :

Particulars | Change in Impact on Defined Benefit Obligation
assumptions " Increase in Decrease in
assumptions assumptions
31ist 3ist 31st 31st 31st 31st
March March March | March March March
2025 | 2024 2025 2024 2025 2024
Discount Decrease Increase
Rate 0.50% 0.50% by 7.47% 7.67% by 8.28% 8.52%
Salary Increase Decrease :
growth rate 0.50% 0.50% by 3.14% 4.51% by 3.82% 4.82%

{iii  Retired Employees Health Scheme (REHS): The amount recognised in the Balance Sheet as at
31.03.2025 and 31.03.2024 along with the movements in the net defined benefit obligation during

the years 2024-25 and 2023-24 are as follows:

{Zin Lakhs)
Particulars Present Value of | Fairvalue of | Net Amount
Obligation Plan Assets Obiigation/
{Asset)
(i) (i) ifi = (i) - {ii)
. 2024-25

Opening Balance as at 01.04.2024 321.08 - 321.08
Current Service Cost 77.89 - 77.89
Interest Expenses/ (lncome) 23.28 - 23.28
Total Amount recognised in Statement of 101,17 - 101.17
Profit and Loss/ Expenditure During

Construction :

Remeasurements

Return on Plan Asset, excluding amount ]

included in interest expenses/(income)

(Gain)/loss from change in demographic ) )

assumptions

(Gain)/loss from change in financial _ R }
assumptions

Experience (gains)/Losses - - -
Total Amount recognised in Other

Comprehensive Income
Contributions:-
-Employers - - -
-Plan participants - - -
Benefit payments - - -
Closing Balance as at 31.03.2025 42224 - 422.24
D7
ZTo
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{% in Lakhs)

Particulars

Present Value of
Obligation

Fair value of
Plan Assets

Net Amount
Obligation/
(Asset)

(i)

- (i)

i = (1) - (i)

2023-24

Opening Balance as at 01.04.2023

243.43

243.43

Current Service Cost

59.66

59.66

Interest Expenses/ (Income)

17.95

17.99

Total Amount recognised in Statement of
Profit and Loss/ Expenditure During
Construction

77.65

77.65

Re-measurements

Return on Plan Asset, excluding amount
included in interest expenses/(Income)

(Gain)/loss from change in demographic
assumptions :

(Gain)/loss from change in financial
assumptions

Experience {gains)/Losses

Total Amount recognised in Other
Comprehensive Income

Contributions:-

-Employers

-Plan participants

Benefit payments

Closing Balance as at 31.03.2024

321.08

321.08

Total amount recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss/ Expenditure attributable to
Construction and total amount recognised under Other Comprehensive Income disclosed above

are based on the actuarial valuation report. This includes an amount of T Nil (

previous year X Nil)

accounted as receivable/(payable) from/to Parent in respect of employees of NHPC posted in

CVPPL,

. The net liability disclosed above related to unfunded plans are as follows:

(X in Lakhs)
Particulars 31st March 2025 31st March 2024
Present Value of unfunded obligations 42224 321.08
Fair vaiue of Plan Assets | l
Deficit/(Surpius) of unfunded plans 422.24 321.08
Unfunded Plans
Deficit/(Surplus) before asset ceiling 422.24 321.08
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Sensitivity Analysis — The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligations te changes in the weighted
principal assumptions is:

Particulars | Change in

Impact on Defined Benefit Obligation

assumptions

Increase in Decrease in
assumptions assumptions
31st 31st 31st 31st 31st 31st
March March March March March March
2025 2024 2025 2024 2025 2024

Discount

Decreas
0.50% 0.50% |eby

8.71% 9.20%

Increase

by 9.01% 9.83%

Allowances on Retirement/Death: The amount recognised in the Balance Sheet as at 31.03.2025

and 31.03.2024 along with the movements in the net defined benefit obli

2024-25 and 2023-24 are as follows:

gation during the years

(X in Lakhs)

Particulars

Present Value of
Obligation

Fair value of
Plan Assets

Net Amount
Obligation/
{Asset)

(i)

(ii)

ii=(i)-(if)

2024-25

Opening Balance as at 01.04.2024

2.94

2.94

Current Service Cost-

0.62

0.62

Interest Expenses/ (Income)

0.21

0.21

Total Amount recognised in Statement
of Profit and Loss/ Expenditure During
Construction

0.83

0.83

Remeasurements

Return on Plan Asset, excluding amount
included in interest expenses/(Income)

{Gain}/loss from change in demographic
assumptions

{Gain)/loss from change in financial
assumptions

Experience (gains)/Losses

Total Amount recognised in Other
Comprehensive Income

Contributions:-

-Employers

-Plan participants

Benefit payments

Closing Balance as at 31.03.2025

3.77

3.77
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(X in Lakhs)

Particulars

Present Value of
Obligation

Fair value of
Plan Assets

Net Amount
Obligation/
(Asset)

U

(i7)

ifi=(i)-(ii)

2023-24

Opening Balance as at 01.04.2023

2.32

- 2.32

Current Service Cost

0.44

- 0.44

Interest Expenses/ (Income)

0.17

- 0.17

Total Amount recognised in Statement
of Profit and Loss/ Expenditure During
Construction '

0.61

0.61

Remeasuremerits

Return on Plan Asset, excluding amount
included in interest expenses/{Income)

(Gain)/loss from change in demographic
assumptions

(Gain)/loss from change in financial
assumptions

Experience (gains)/Losses

Total Amount recognised in Other
Comprehensive Income

Contributions:-

-Employers

-Plan participants

Benefit payments

Closing Balance as at 31.03.2024

2.49

2.49

Total amount recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss/ Expenditure attributahle to
Constructions and total amount recognised under Other Comprehensive Income disclosed above
are based on the actuarial valuation report. This includes an amount of X Nil (previous year % Nil)
accounted as receivable/(payable) from/to Parent in respect of employees of NHPC posted in

CVPPL.

The net liability disclosed above related to unfunded plans.

Sensitivity Analysis ~ The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligations to changes in the

weighted principal assumptions is:

Particulars | Change in __Impact on Defined Benefit Obligation
assumptions Increase in Decrease in
assumptions assumptions
31st 31st 31st 31st 31st 31st
March March March March iViarch March

~7

D. 70
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, 2025 2024 ’ 2025 2024 ’ 2025 2024
Discount Decrease Increase
Rate 0.50% 0.50% by 7.49% 5.60%_ | by 8.12% 10.41%
{c) Defined Benefit Plans: Significant estimates: Actuarial assumptions:
Particulars 31st March 2025 31st March 2024
Discount Rate 6.99% 7.25%
Salary growth rate 6.50% 6.50%

{d) Risk Exposure: Through its defined benefit plans, the Company is exposed to a number of risks, the
most significant of which are detailed below:

Description of Risk Exposures: ,
Valuations are based on certain assumptions, which are dynamic in nature and vary over time. As
such, the company is exposed to various risks as follows: :

A) Salary Increase- Actual salary increase will increase the Plan's liability. Increase in salary
increase rate assumption in future valuations will also increase the liability.

B} Investment Risk - If Plan is funded then assets-liabilities mismatch and actual investment
return on assets lower than the discount rate assumed at the last valuation date can impact
the liability.

C} Discount Rate: Reduction in discount rate in subsequent valuations can increase the plan’s
liahility.

D) Mortality and disability — Actual deaths and disability cases proving lower or higher than
assumed in the valuation can impact the liabilities.

E) Withdrawals — Actual withdrawals proving higher or lower than assumed withdrawals and
change of withdrawal rates at subsequent valuations can impact Plan’s liability.

-{f) The expected maturity analysis of undiscounted defined beﬁeﬁt plans is as follows:

The expected maturity analysis of Gratuity, Post employment Medical Benefits, Allowances on
Retirement/Death and Memento.

{% in Lakhs)
Particulars ‘ Lessthana | Between1-2{ Between Over 5 Total
year | . years | 2-5years years
31.03.2025
Gratuity 15.04 12.03 43,45 518.70 589.26
Post-employment - 072 0.89 2.99 417.65 422.24
Medical Benefits (REHS)
Allowances on _ 0.01 0.08 0.26 3.42 3.77
Retirement/Death ]
TOTAL 15.76 13.00 46.73 939,77 1,015.27
31.03.2024 '
- Page 279
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Gratuity 12.47 9.77 27.51 436.69 486.44

Post-employment 0.02 0.03 0.30 320.72 321.08
Medical Benefits (REHS)
Allowances on 0.01 0.06 0.18 2.70 2.94

Retirement/Death

TOTAL 12,50 9.87 27.99 760.11 810.46

{C) Other long-term employee henefits (Leave Benefit): The Company provides for earned leave
and half-pay leave to the employees which accrue annually @ 30 days and 20 days
respectively. Earned Leave (EL) is also en-cashable while in service. The maximum ceiling of
encashment of earned leave is limited to 300 days. However, any shortfall in the maximum
limit of 300 days in earned leave on superannuation shall be fulfilied by half pay leave to that
extent. The liability for the same is recognised on the basis of actuarial valuation. The expenses
recognised during the year on the basis of actuarial valuation are % 567.87 Lakhs (Previous year
% 506.56 Lakhs). '

(D) The corresponding expenditure of actuarial valuation in respect of employees of NHPC who are
presently on the rolls of Chenab Valley Power Projects Limited has been transferred to CVPPL
in the respective year through a debit/credit advice. The effect of the same has heen
acknowledged in IUT certificate during the year

10.  Particulars of income and expenditure in foreign currency and consumption of spares are as

under:- :
(Xin Lakhs)
SL | Particulars For the year For the year
No. ended 31.03.2025 | ended 31.03.2024
a) Expenditure in Foreign Currency
i) Interest - -
ii) Other Misc. Matters - -
b) |Value of spare parts and Components
consumed in operating units.
i) Imported - -
i) Indigenous _ - -
c) Earning in foreign currency (Specify Nature) - -
11. Earnings Per Share:
a) The Earnings Per Share (Basic and Diluted) are as under:
Particulars For the year For the year
ended ended
31.03.2025 31.03.2024
Earnings ;?er Sharfe before Regulatory Income (%) — (0.0251) 0.0262
Basic and Diluted
Earnings pez: Share after Regulatory Income (%) — Basic (0.0246) 0.0261
and Diluted
Par value per.share (%) 10 10
b} Reconciliation of Earning used in calculating Earnings Per Share:
Particulars For the year For the year
ended ended
31.03.2025 31.03.2024
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Net Profit after Tax but before Regulatory Income

used as numerator (Amount in X in Lakhs) (1,272.62) 1,072.25

Net Profit after Tax and Regulatory Income uéed as

numerator (Amount in X in Lakhs) (1,248.11) 1068.19

c) Reconciliation of weighted average number of shares used as denominator :
Particulars For the year For the year
ended "~ ended

31.03.2025 31.03.2024

Weighted Average number of equity shares used as ) ‘

denominator {Numbers in Lakhs) 50,796.06 40,855.68

12. Disclosure related to Confirmation of Balances is as under :

(a) The Company has a system of obtaining periodic confirmation of balances from banks and

other parties. There are no unconfirmed balances in res

from banks & financial institutions.

pect of bank accounts and borrowings

{b} The confirmation in respect of Trade Receivables, Trade Payables, Deposits, loans {other than
employees), Advances to Contractors/Suppliers/Service Providers/Others including for
capital expenditure and material issued to contractors have been sought for outstanding
balances of X 0.05 Crore or above in respect of each party as at 31st December, 2024. Status
of confirmation of balances as at December 31, 2024 as well as amount outstanding as on

31.03.2025 is as under:

(X in Lakhs)
Particulars Outstanding Amount Outstanding
amount as on | confirmed | amount as on
31.12.2024 31.03.2025
Trade receivable (excluding unbilled)* - -
Deposits, Loans, Advances to 51,625.51 49,952.35 47,003.98
contractors/ suppliers/ service :
providers/ others including for capital
expenditure and material issued to
contractors
Security Deposit/Retention Money §,016.81 7,768.44 11,875.09
payable

* Trade receivables are including receivables on account

Beneficiaries and net of advance from customers.

of interest receivable from

(c) In the opinion of the management, unconfirmed balances will not require any adjustment
having any material impact on the Financial Statements of the Company.

13. Disclosure related to Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

(Refer Note 29)

i. As per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with guidelines issued by Department of
Public Enterprises, GOI, the Company is required to spend, in every financial year, at least two
per cent of the average net profits of the Company made during the three immediately

. preceding financial years in accordance with its CSR Policy. The details of CSR expenses for the

year are as under:
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(X in Lakhs)
S. Particulars For the vyear | For the year
No ended ended
31.03.2025 31.03.2024
A Amount required tc be spent during the year
(i}  Gross amount (2% of average net profit as 46.88 34.57
per Section 135 of Companies Act,2013)
(i) Surplus arising out of CSR project - -
{i)  Set off available from previous year - 1.20
(iv)] Total CSR obligation for the year [(i)+{ii} -(iii)] 46.88 33.37
B Amount approved by the Board to be spent during 48.38 34.57
the year
C Amount spent during the year 19.88 14.70
D Set off available for succeeding vears {C- Aliv)) - -
E Amount Unspent during the year (B-C) - 15.87
F CSR Expenditure to be incurred on Ongoing Projects 28.50 19.82
and deposited in Separate CSR Unspent Account
G Unspent Amount to be deposited in Fund - 0.05

Note:- The set off available in the succeeding years has not recognised as an asset as a matter of
prudence, considering the uncertainty involved in the adjustment of the same in future years.

The breakup of CSR expenditure under various heads of expenses incurred is as below:

{Xin Lakhs) -
sl Heads of Expenses constituting CSR For the year For the
No. expenses ended year ended

31.03.2025 31.03.2024
1 Health Care and Sanitation 19.88 14.70
2 Education and Skill Development - -
3 Women Empowerment /Senior Citizen - -
4 Environment - -
5 Art and Culture - -
6 Sports - -
7 Rural Development - -
8 Swachh Vidyalaya Abhiyan - -
9 Swachh Bharat Abhiyan - -
10 Disaster Management - -
11 Contribution to Central Government Fund - -
(including Contribution to PM CARES Fund)
12 Administrative Overhead - -
13 CSR Impact assessment - -
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ig Ongoing Activity 28.50 19.82
15 Unspent CSR - 0.05
Total amount 48.38 34.57

Other disclosures;-

{a} Details of expenditure incurred during the year paid in cash and yet to be paid in cash along with

the nature of expenditure (capital or revenue nature) is as under:-

. {Xin Lakhs)
Purpose For the year ended For the year ended 31.03.20243
: 31.03.2025
Paidin | Yettohe Total Paid in Yet to be Total
cash paid in {a+h) cash paid in {a+b)
{(a) cash (b) ' {a) cash (b)
{i} | Construction/ - - - . - -
| Acquisition of any
asset .
(i) | For purpose other 19.88 28.50 48.38 14.70 19.82 34,52
than (i} above
Total 15.88 28.50 48.38 14.70 10.82 34.52

(b } As stated above, a sum of X 28.50 Lakhs out of the total expenditure of X 48.38 Lakhs is yet to be
paid to concerned parties which are included in the relevant head of accounts pertaining to
liahilities.

14. Disclosures as required under Section 22 of The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development
Act, 2006 read with notification of Ministry of Corporate Affairs dated 11t October,2018 to the
extent information available with management are as under:

(X in Lakhs)
SI. | Particulars As at As at
No. 31.03.2025 31.03.2024
(i)
The principal amount and the interest due thereon
remaining unpaid to any supplier on Balance Sheet date:
a} Trade Payables: 186.74 129.25
-Principal (Refer Note 20.3) - -
-Interest
b) Others:
-Principal{Refer Note 20.4} 4.46 17.54
-Interest - -

(ii)

The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of
Section 16 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
Development Act, 2006, along with the amount of the
payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day
during the year.

(iif)

The amount of interest due and payable for the year of
delay in making payment {which have been paid but
beyond the appointed day during the year) but without
adding the interest specified under the Micro, Small and
Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006;

{iv)

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid as on
Balance Sheet date.

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable

B 000
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even in the succeeding years, until such date when the
interest dues above are actually paid to the small -
enterprise, for the purpose of disaliowance of a deductible
expenditure under section 23 of the Micro, Small and
Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006.

15. Disclosures regarding leases as per IND AS -116 “Leases”:

A) Company as Lessee:

(i)

Treatment of Leases as per Ind AS 116 :

The Company assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease, at the inception of the
contract. The Company recognises a right-of-use asset and a corresponding lease liability with
respect to all lease arrangements in which it is the lessee, except for short-term leases (defined
as leases with a lease term of 12 months or less) and leases of low value assets (such as tablets
and personal computers, small items of office furniture and telephones). For these leases, the
Company recognises the lease payfnents as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over
the term of the lease unless another systematic basis is more representative of the time
pattern in which economic benefits from the leased assets are consumed.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not
paid at the commencement date, discounted by using the rate implicit in the lease. If this rate
cannot be readily determined, the Compa ny uses its incremental borrowing rate.

The Company has applied the following practicai expedients on initial application of ind AS 116:

a.

(ii)

Applied a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases of similar assets in similar economic
environment with a similar end date.

Applied the exemption not to recognize right-of-use assets and liabilities for leases with less than
12 months of lease term on the date of initial application.

Excluded the initial direct costs, if any from the measurement of the right-of-use asset at the
date of recognition of right-of-use asset,

Used hindsight when determining the lease term if the contract contains options to extend or
terminate the lease.

The weighted average incremental borrowing rate applied to leases recognised during FY 2024- 25
is 7.47%.

Nature of lease: The Company’s significant leasing arrangements are in respect of the
following assets:

{a) Premises under cancellable lease arrangements for residential use of employees ranging

from 3-4 months to three years. -

{(b) Premises for offices, guest houses and transit camps on lease which are not non-cancellable

and are usually renewable on mutually agreeable terms. -

(c) Land obtained on lease for construction of projects and / or administrative offices.

(d) Vehicles on operating leases generally for a period of 1 to 2 years and such leases are not

non-cancellable.
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Amount recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss/ Expenditure Attributable to Construction in
respect of short term, low value and variable lease are as under:

(% in Lakhs)
S. No | Description 31.03.2025 | 31.03.2024
1 Expenditure on short-term leases 660.63 267.33
2 Expenditure on lease of low—vaiug assefs - -
3 Variable lease payments not included in the measurement of 81.74 67.21
lease liabilities

{iii)

(iv)

Movement in lease liabilities during the year:

Commitment for Short Term Leases as on 31.03.2025 is % 186.91 Lakhs {Previous Year % 149,06
Lakhs)

(X in Lakhs)
Particulars 31.03.2025 | 31.03.2024
Opening Balance 90.59 149.39
Additions in lease liabiiities 117.20 4238
Finance cost accrued during the year 4,90 7.36
Less: Payment of lease liabilities 76.18 108.55
Closing Bafa_m’:e 136.51 90.59

16. Disclosures under Ind AS-27 ‘Separate Financial Statements’:

Interest of Parent:
Principal Principal activities | Proportion of Ownership
Name of Companies place of interest as at
. operation 31.03.2025 | 31.03.2024
NHPC Limited india Power Generation 59.15% 54.02%
JKSPDC : ~ India Power Generation 40.85% " 45.98%

17, Ind AS 36- Impairment of Assets requires an entity to assess on each Balance Sheet date whether
there is any indication that an asset may be impaired. If any such indication exists, the entity is
required to estimate the recoverable amount of the asset. If there is no indication of a potential
impairment loss, the Standard does not require an enterprise to make a formal estimate of the
recoverable amount.

Management has determined that the project entrusted to the CVPPL are under
tenderlng/award/construction stage and no cash generating unit (CGU) exist as on date and there
exist no indication that would indicate for impairment of any of the CGUs during FY 2024-25.
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18.

(ii)

Nature and details of provisions (refer Note No. 17 and 22}

(i) General

Provisions are recognised when the company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as
a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation. When the company expects some or all of a provision to be
reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognised as a
separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating toa
provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current
pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting
is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a Finance Cost.

i) Provision for employee benefits {Other than provisions for defined contribution and
defined benefit plans which have been disclosed as per Ind AS-19 at S. No. 9 of Note No.
34): ‘ :

a)  Provision for Performance Related Pay/Incentive:

Short-term Provision has been recognised in the accounts towards Performance Related Pay/
incentive to employees on the basis of Management estimates as per company’s rules in this
regard which are based on the guidelines of the Department of Public Enterprises, Government
of India.

b)  Provision for Empldyee Remuneration-Pay Anomaly

Short term provision for pay anomaly of the employees of the company has been recognised
pursuant to judgement of the Hon'ble Punjab & Haryana High Court in the matter of NHPC
Officers Association Vs. Union of India & Others and All India Diploma Engineers Council &
Others Vs. Union of India & Others.

Other Provisions:
‘a)  Provision for Committed Capital Expenditure:

Provision has been recognised at discounted value in case of non- current amount for Capital
Expenditure to be incurred towards environment, compénsatory afforestation, local area
development, etc. which was a pre-condition for granting approval for construction of the
project and expenditure towards which had not been completed till comn‘?issioning of the
project. Such provisions are adjusted against the incurrence of actual expenditure as per
demand raised by the concerned State Government Authorities.

b)  Provisions for expenditure in respect of Arbitration Award/Court cases:

This includes provisions created on the basis of management assessment as to probable outfiow
in respect of contractors claims against which arbitration award/Court decision have been
received and which have been further challenged in a Court of Law. Utilization/outflow of the
provision is to be made on the outcome of the case.

c)  Provisions- Others: This includes provisions towards:-

(i) Contractor claims, Land compensation cases, disputed tax demands and other cases
created on the basis of management assessment towards probable outflow.
Utilization/outflow of the provision is to. be made on the outcome of the case.

(i) Wage revision of Central Government Employees whose services are utilised by the
company. ’ :

19. Regulatory Deferral Account balances in respect of exchange differences on Foreign Currency

Monetary items:

As per Ind AS 23- “Borrowing Costs”, borrowing cost on foreign currency loans to the extent
treated as an adjustment to interest costs is allowed to be capitalised during construction period.
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. Further, Ind AS 21-“The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates” provides that exchange

differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items at rates different from those at
which they were translated on initial recognition during the period or in previous financial
statements shall be recognized in the Profit and Loss in the period in which they arise.

Para D13AA of Ind AS 101- “First Time Adoption of Ind AS” provides that a first-time adopter may
continue the existing accounting policy adopted for accounting of exchange differences arising
from translation of long-term foreign currency monetary items. Accordingly, for periods beginning
on or after 01.04.2016, ail exchange differences arising on translation/ settlement of monetary
items other than exchange difference on borrowings to the extent treated as an adjustment to
interest cost during construction period are to be charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

As per the CERC Tariff Regulations 2014-19, any gain or loss on account of exchange risk variation
shall be recoverable as part of capital cost for calculation of tariff on Commercial Operation Date
{COD) of a project and on actual payment basis during Operation and Maintenance (O&M) period.
Further, CERC in previous tariff orders has allowed exchange differences incurred during the
construction period as a part of capital cost. :

Keeping in view the provisions of Ind AS 114- “Regulatory Deferral Accounts” as regards
recognition and CERC Tariff Regulations 2014-19 as regards recoverability, éxchange differences
arising on translation/ settiement of foreign currency monetary items to the extent charged to the
Statement of Profit and Loss are being recognized as ‘Regulatory Deferral Account balances’ with
effect from (with effect from.) 01.04.2016. These balances are adjusted from the year in which

- the same become recoverable from or payable to the heneficiaries after Commercial Operation

Date (COD) of the Project.

The regulated assets (+)/liability (-} recognized in the books to be recovered from or payabie to
beneficiaries in future periods are as follows: i

{Z in Lakhs)
Si. No. | Particulars Regulatory Deferral
Account Balances
A Opening balance as on 01.04.2024 52.31
B Addition during the year (assets (+)/ liability (-}) 26.67
C Amount collected (-)/refunded (+) during the year 2.17
b Regulatory income/(expense) recognized in the Statement of 24.51
Profit and Loss (B-C)
E Closing balance as on 31.03.2025 (A+D) 76.82

Tariff Regulations for the period 2019-2024 have been notified by the CERC. Regulations regarding
recoverability of Foreign Exchange rate Variation (FERV) as part of capital cost for calculation of
tariff on Commercial Operation Date (COD) of a project and on actual payment basis during O&M

_period of a Power Station as per Tariff Regulations 2014-19 have been continued for the tariff

period 2019-24 also. Accordingly, Management considers that adverse changes in Tariff
Reguiations are not likely to be a significant area of risk for the future recovery of RDA bhalances
recognized in respect of exchange differences on Foreign Currency Monetary items.

Recoverability of the Regulatory Deferral account balances is however, subject to Demand Risk
since recovery/payment of the regulatory deferral debit/credit balance shall be by way of billing
to the beneficiaries. Accordingly, the same is affected by the normal risks and uncertainties

AT AT N e W
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impacting sale of electricity in india like difficulty in signing of long term PPAs, etc. |

20. Disclosure regarding Relationship with Struck off Companies: Following is the disclosure regarding
balances with companies struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or section 560
of the Companies Act, 1956 as per requirement of Schedule-!ll of the Companies Act, 2013:

Name of | Nature of Balance Relationship Balance Relationship
the transactions with Outstanding | with the Cutstandi | with the
struck struck off company as at struck off ng as at struck off
off 31.03.2025 | company, if 31.03.202 | company, if
company any, to be 4 any, to be
disclosed disclosed
NA Investment in Nil NA Nil NA
securities
NA Recelvables Nil NA Nil NA
NA Payables Nit NA Nil NA
NA Shares held by struck il NA Nil NA
off company
NA Other outstanding Nil NA Nil NA
balances {to be
specified)

21. Disclosure regarding Registration of charges or satisfaction with Registrar of Companies (ROC):
Following is the disclosure as per requirement of Schedule-lii of the Companies Act, 2013, where
any charges or satisfaction yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period:

22,

23.

Brief description of . | Location of the Period (in days or Reason for delay in
the charges or - Registrar months) by which registration
satisfaction : such charge had to

' be registered
Nil Nil Nil Nil
Nii Nil it Nil

Changes in the accounting policies and estimates does not have any material impact on the
financial statements of the company.

Order of the Hon'ble Punjab & Haryana High Court in the matter of NHPC Officers Association Vs.
Union of India & Others and All India Diploma. Engineers Council and Others Vs. Union of india &
Others as per which pay anomalies in certain scales of pay were to be resolved w.e.flanuary 1,
1997 was received during the year ended 31st March, 2025. Pursuant to the said Order, arrears
payable to employees/ ex-employees has been estimated at Rs 1,419.94 Lakhs. Out of the same,

Rs 1,227.42 Lakhs has been capitaliz

of Profit & Loss.

ed while Rs 192.52 Lakhs has been charged to the Statement

Pagp 788
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24, Other Disclosure required under Schedule-lil of the Companies Act, 2013:

(i)

(ii)

(vi)

{vii)

(viii)

No funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share
premium or any other sources or kind offunds) by the Company to or in any other person(s)
or entity(ies), including foreign entities {“Intermediaries”) with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall lend or invest in party
identified by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or provide any guarantee,
security or the or the like on behalf of the Uitimate Beneficiaries.

The Company has not received any fund from any party(s) {Funding Party} with the
understanding that the Company shall whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”} or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or
other lender.

The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the
financial year, ' '

The provisions of clause (87) of section 2 of the Act read with the Comparties (Restriction on
number of Layers) Rules, 2017 are not applicable to the company as per Section 2(45) of the
Companies Act,2013

No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the company under the Benami
Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988.

The quarterly returns / statement of current assets filed by the company with banks /
financial institutions are in agreement with the books of accounts,

The Company does not have any transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts _
that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments
under the Income Tax Act, 1961.

25. Figures for the previous year have been regrouped/restated wherever necessary.

26. Reimbursement of State Goods and Services Taxes from State Taxes Department, UT of 1&K

in terms of scheme “Reimbursement of State Goods and Services Taxes on Utitization of Goods and
Service in the Power Projects in the Union Territory of Jammu and Kashmir (RSGTPP)” notified by
Finance Department, Government of Jammu & Kashmir vide Notification SO. 281 dt. 17.08.2021,
State Taxes Department, Government of J&K reimburses State Goods and Services Taxes {SGST) on
utilization of Goods and Service for development and construction of PakalDul HEP, Kiru HEP & Kwar
HEP of the Company. Accordingly, claims for SGST reimbursement are being filed for invoices that
have been paid by the Company to Suppliers of goods and services. : :

As per ibid notification and subsequent guidelines, the reimbursement of SGST shall be made for
SGST on invoices which are reflected in GSTR 24 of the Company and cash paid by it on Reverse
Charge Mechanism (RCM) basis. Consequently, SGST on supplier invoices which are reflected in
GSTR-2A of the Company and cash paid by it on Reverse Charge Mechanism (RCM) basis have been
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recognized in the books of accounts as recoverable from State Taxes Department, Government of
J&K (refer Note 11). Further, SGST on invoices amounting to Rs. 147.49 Lakhs {Previous Year Rs.
130.97 Lakhs which are not appearing in GSTR 2A are already included in PPE/CWIP and shall be
recognised as recoverable from State Taxes Department, Government of J&K when they get
reflected in GSTR 2A after reconciliation (ongoing process) with corresponding adjustment to

PPE/CWIP.

Signed as an annexure to Balance Sheet

for V A K & Associates.

Chartered Accountants
(FRN: 019636N)

Place : Jammu

Date : _&gj&gf}g}(

for and on behalf of the Board of Directors

%W
{Rajendra P¥asad Goyal) (Rames khiya)

Director Managing ctor

DIN No.08645380 DIN No. 10415

(Sanj% {SudhRir

General Manager (Finance) CompanySecretary
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